JOURALES*

Learn to:

- Build site special effects such as fades, sliding panels, and tabbed navigation
- Create a photo gallery for your blog or Web site
- Customize Twitter[®] and RSS feeds
- Add jQuery plug-ins for WordPress[®], Drupal[®], Joomla![®], and more





Get More and Do More at Dummies.com®



Cheat Sheets include

- Checklists
- Charts
- Common Instructions
- And Other Good Stuff!

To access the Cheat Sheet created specifically for this book, go to www.dummies.com/cheatsheet/jquery

Get Smart at Dummies.com

cheat

Dummies.com makes your life easier with 1,000s of answers on everything from removing wallpaper to using the latest version of Windows.

Check out our

- Videos
- Illustrated Articles
- Step-by-Step Instructions

Plus, each month you can win valuable prizes by entering our Dummies.com sweepstakes.*

Want a weekly dose of Dummies? Sign up for Newsletters on

- Digital Photography
- Microsoft Windows & Office
- Personal Finance & Investing
- Health & Wellness
- Computing, iPods & Cell Phones
- eBay
- Internet
- Food, Home & Garden

Find out "HOW" at Dummies.com

*Sweepstakes not currently available in all countries; visit Dummies.com for official rules.





by Lynn Beighley



jQuery For Dummies® Published by Wiley Publishing, Inc. 111 River Street Hoboken, NJ 07030-5774 www.wiley.com

Copyright © 2010 by Wiley Publishing, Inc., Indianapolis, Indiana

Published by Wiley Publishing, Inc., Indianapolis, Indiana

Published simultaneously in Canada

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise, except as permitted under Sections 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act, without either the prior written permission of the Publisher, or authorization through payment of the appropriate per-copy fee to the Copyright Clearance Center, 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, (978) 750-8400, fax (978) 646-8600. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Permissions Department, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 111 River Street, Hoboken, NJ 07030, (201) 748-6011, fax (201) 748-6008, or online at http://www.wiley.com/go/permissions.

Trademarks: Wiley, the Wiley Publishing logo, For Dummies, the Dummies Man logo, A Reference for the Rest of Us!, The Dummies Way, Dummies Daily, The Fun and Easy Way, Dummies.com, Making Everything Easier, and related trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of John Wiley & Sons, Inc. and/ or its affiliates in the United States and other countries, and may not be used without written permission. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. Wiley Publishing, Inc., is not associated with any product or vendor mentioned in this book.

LIMIT OF LIABILITY/DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY: THE PUBLISHER AND THE AUTHOR MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE CONTENTS OF THIS WORK AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITH-OUT LIMITATION WARRANTIES OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NO WARRANTY MAY BE CREATED OR EXTENDED BY SALES OR PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS. THE ADVICE AND STRATEGIES CONTAINED HEREIN MAY NOT BE SUITABLE FOR EVERY SITUATION. THIS WORK IS SOLD WITH THE UNDERSTANDING THAT THE PUBLISHER IS NOT ENGAGED IN RENDERING LEGAL, ACCOUNTING, OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. IF PROFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE IS REQUIRED, THE SERVICES OF A COMPETENT PROFESSIONAL PERSON SHOULD BE SOUGHT. NEITHER THE PUBLISHER NOR THE AUTHOR SHALL BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES ARISING HEREFROM. THE FACT THAT AN ORGANIZA-TION OR WEBSITE IS REFERRED TO IN THIS WORK AS A CITATION AND/OR A POTENTIAL SOURCE OF FURTHER INFORMATION DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE AUTHOR OR THE PUBLISHER ENDORSES THE INFORMATION THE ORGANIZATION OR WEBSITE MAY PROVIDE OR RECOMMENDATIONS IT MAY MAKE. FURTHER, READERS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT INTERNET WEBSITES LISTED IN THIS WORK MAY HAVE CHANGED OR DISAPPEARED BETWEEN WHEN THIS WORK WAS WRITTEN AND WHEN IT IS READ.

For general information on our other products and services, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002.

For technical support, please visit www.wiley.com/techsupport.

Wiley also publishes its books in a variety of electronic formats. Some content that appears in print may not be available in electronic books.

Library of Congress Control Number: 2010926840

ISBN: 978-0-470-58445-3

Manufactured in the United States of America

 $10 \hspace{0.2cm} 9 \hspace{0.2cm} 8 \hspace{0.2cm} 7 \hspace{0.2cm} 6 \hspace{0.2cm} 5 \hspace{0.2cm} 4 \hspace{0.2cm} 3 \hspace{0.2cm} 2 \hspace{0.2cm} 1$



About the Author

Lynn Beighley has been a Web developer and computer book author long before jQuery was a glimmer in John Resig's eye. This is her eleventh book. Lynn shares her off-kilter 1920's home with her husband, Drew, and two Bernese Mountain Dogs who are much too big to be the lap dogs they think they are.

Dedication

To Drew.

Author's Acknowledgments

I'd like to thank Kyle Looper for offering me the chance to write a second *Dummies* book on another great topic, and Susan Pink for her amazing dedication. She's a stickler for detail, and this book benefits greatly from it!

Publisher's Acknowledgments

We're proud of this book; please send us your comments at http://dummies.custhelp.com. For other comments, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002.

Some of the people who helped bring this book to market include the following:

Acquisitions, Editorial

Project Editor: Susan Pink

Acquisitions Editor: Kyle Looper

Copy Editor: Susan Pink

Technical Editor: Cody Lindley

Editorial Manager: Jodi Jensen

Editorial Assistant: Amanda Graham

Sr. Editorial Assistant: Cherie Case

Cartoons: Rich Tennant (www.the5thwave.com)

Composition Services Project Coordinator: Katherine Crocker Layout and Graphics: Joyce Haughey Proofreaders: Lindsay Littrell, Toni Settle Indexer: BIM Indexing & Proofreading Services

Publishing and Editorial for Technology Dummies

Richard Swadley, Vice President and Executive Group Publisher

Andy Cummings, Vice President and Publisher

Mary Bednarek, Executive Acquisitions Director

Mary C. Corder, Editorial Director

Publishing for Consumer Dummies

Diane Graves Steele, Vice President and Publisher

Composition Services

Debbie Stailey, Director of Composition Services

Contents at a Glance

......

.

.

.

.

Introduction 1
Part 1: Getting Started with jQuery 5
Chapter 1: Getting Up and Running with jQuery
Chapter 2: Accessing HTML Elements
Chapter 4: Managing Events
Part 11: Affecting Elements with Effects
Chapter 5: Playing Hide-and-Seek with Web Page Elements
Chapter 6: Sliding and Fading Web Page Elements
Chapter 7: Animating Web Page Elements 107
Part 111: Manipulating Your Web Page 123
Chapter 8: Making Web Page Content Dynamic
Chapter 9: Replacing, Removing, and Copying Web Page Elements
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets 155 Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins 157
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets 155 Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins 157 Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects 169
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets 155 Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins 157 Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects 169 Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms 181
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets 155 Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins 157 Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects 169 Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms 181 Chapter 13: Toying with Page Layout 191 Chapter 14: Incorporating a Licer Interface 202
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets 155 Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins 157 Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects 169 Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms 181 Chapter 13: Toying with Page Layout 191 Chapter 14: Incorporating a User Interface 203
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets155Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins157Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects169Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms181Chapter 13: Toying with Page Layout191Chapter 14: Incorporating a User Interface203Part V: Building AJAX Applications217
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets155Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins157Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects169Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms181Chapter 13: Toying with Page Layout191Chapter 14: Incorporating a User Interface203Part V: Building AJAX Applications217Chapter 15: Understanding How AJAX Works with jQuery219
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets155Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins157Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects169Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms181Chapter 13: Toying with Page Layout191Chapter 14: Incorporating a User Interface203Part V: Building AJAX Applications217Chapter 15: Understanding How AJAX Works with jQuery219Chapter 16: Using AJAX Plug-ins231
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets155Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins157Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects169Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms181Chapter 13: Toying with Page Layout191Chapter 14: Incorporating a User Interface203Part V: Building AJAX Applications217Chapter 15: Understanding How AJAX Works with jQuery219Chapter 16: Using AJAX Plug-ins231Part V1: Integrating jQuery with211
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets155Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins157Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects169Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms181Chapter 13: Toying with Page Layout191Chapter 14: Incorporating a User Interface203Part V: Building AJAX Applications217Chapter 15: Understanding How AJAX Works with jQuery219Chapter 16: Using AJAX Plug-ins231Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems243
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets155Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins157Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects169Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms181Chapter 13: Toying with Page Layout191Chapter 14: Incorporating a User Interface203Part V: Building AJAX Applications217Chapter 15: Understanding How AJAX Works with jQuery219Chapter 16: Using AJAX Plug-ins231Part VI: Întegrating jQuery with Content Management Systems243Chapter 17: Cool Image Effects with jQuery and Drupal245
Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets155Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins157Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects169Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms181Chapter 13: Toying with Page Layout191Chapter 14: Incorporating a User Interface203Part V: Building AJAX Applications217Chapter 15: Understanding How AJAX Works with jQuery219Chapter 16: Using AJAX Plug-ins231Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems243Chapter 17: Cool Image Effects with jQuery and Drupal245Chapter 18: Integrating jQuery and Joomla!259

Part VII: The Part of Tens	
Chapter 20: Ten Don't-Miss Plug-ins	
Chapter 21: Ten Design and Code Tricks	
Chapter 22: Ten jQuery Resources	
Index	

Table of Contents

.

....

.

.

.

Introdi	uction
	About This Book
	How to Use This Book
	Foolish Assumptions
	How This Book Is Organized
	Part I: Getting Started with jQuery
	Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects
	Part III: Manipulating Your Web Page
	Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets
	Part V: Building AJAX Applications
	Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems
	Part VII: The Part of Tens
	Icons Used in This Book
	Where to Go from Here
	Defining jQuery. Understanding jQuery effects and events
	Using plug-ins
	Installing jQuery
	Downloading jQuery
	Setting up a testing directory
	Setting up a testing directory Calling jQuery from a Web page
	Setting up a testing directory Calling jQuery from a Web page Viewing a Web page on your computer
0.	Setting up a testing directory Calling jQuery from a Web page Viewing a Web page on your computer Creating Your First jQuery Code
Cha	Setting up a testing directory Calling jQuery from a Web page Viewing a Web page on your computer Creating Your First jQuery Code pter 2: Accessing HTML Elements
Cha	Setting up a testing directory Calling jQuery from a Web page Viewing a Web page on your computer Creating Your First jQuery Code pter 2: Accessing HTML Elements Understanding Elements
Cha	Setting up a testing directory Calling jQuery from a Web page Viewing a Web page on your computer Creating Your First jQuery Code pter 2: Accessing HTML Elements Understanding Elements Overview of elements
Cha	Setting up a testing directory Calling jQuery from a Web page Viewing a Web page on your computer Creating Your First jQuery Code pter 2: Accessing HTML Elements Understanding Elements Overview of elements Common HTML elements
Cha	Setting up a testing directory Calling jQuery from a Web page Viewing a Web page on your computer Creating Your First jQuery Code pter 2: Accessing HTML Elements Understanding Elements Overview of elements Common HTML elements Getting and Setting Element Values
Cha	Setting up a testing directory Calling jQuery from a Web page Viewing a Web page on your computer Creating Your First jQuery Code pter 2: Accessing HTML Elements Understanding Elements Overview of elements Common HTML elements Getting and Setting Element Values Understanding element attribute values
Cha	Setting up a testing directory Calling jQuery from a Web page Viewing a Web page on your computer Creating Your First jQuery Code pter 2: Accessing HTML Elements Understanding Elements Overview of elements Common HTML elements Getting and Setting Element Values Understanding element attribute values Getting element attribute values

, and Positions35
60

Chapter 5: Playing Hide-and-Seek with Web Page Elements	71
Hiding Elements with jQuery	71
Hiding an element by type with a button	71
Hiding an element by id when clicked	74
Hiding an element by using the this keyword	76
Hiding an element with animation	76
Showing Elements with jQuery	79
Showing an element by id	79
Showing an element with animation	
Toggling Visibility with jQuery	
Using a toggle	
Toggling with animation	
Using a callback function	

Chapter 6: Sliding and Fading Web Page Elements	91
Sliding Elements with jQuery	
Sliding down	
Sliding up	94
Changing the slide speed	96
Sliding with a toggle effect	96
Sliding with a callback function	97
Fading Elements with jQuery	100
Fading in	100
Fading out	102
Partial fading	104
Chapter 7: Animating Web Page Elements	107
Understanding How jQuery Animation Works	
Animating Elements with jQuery	111
Animating height and width	111
Animating margin width and padding	113
Animating opacity	115
Animating font size and word spacing	117
Controlling Animation Duration	119
Animating with Show, Hide, and Toggle	120
Disabling All jQuery Animation	121

Part III: Manipulating Your Web Page 123

Chapter 8: Making Web Page Content Dynamic	125	
Getting and Setting Text Content	125	
Getting and Setting HTML Content	128	
Getting and Setting Form Values	131	
Inserting Content Inside Elements	134	
Appending content	135	
Prepending content	136	
Inserting Content Outside an Element	138	
Moving Elements Around	139	
Wrapping Content Around an Element	141	
Chapter 9: Replacing, Removing, and Copying Web Page Elements	143	
Replacing Elements	143	
Replacing an element with replaceWith()	143	
Replacing a parent element while retaining child elements	144	
Replacing an element with replaceAll()	146	

Removing Elements	147
Removing elements	
Removing content	
Cloning Elements	
Cloning elements with events	
Copying elements along with their events and data	152

Part 1V: Using Plug-ins and Widgets...... 155

Chapter 10: Understanding Plug-ins	157
How jQuery Plug-ins Work	157
Getting jQuery Plug-ins	158
Testing Your First jQuery Plug-ins	
Making your page snow	160
Highlighting table rows and columns	163
Adding a tooltip	165
Chapter 11: Playing with Image Effects	169
Creating a Lightbox with Colorbox	169
Getting Colorbox	171
Creating a basic image Colorbox	172
Adding a title to a lightbox	174
Displaying a set of images in a lightbox	174
Displaying a slideshow	177
Creating an Image Gallery	
Getting Galleria	
Creating a basic image gallery	179
Chapter 12: Jazzing Up Forms	
Displaying Default Values	
Validating Form Fields	
Creating a Date Picker	
Chapter 12: Toying with Page Loyout	101
Creating an Accordion Menu	191
Paginating Content	196
Creating a Floating <div></div> Element	198
Chapter 14: Incorporating a User Interface	
Using the jQuery User Interface	
Choosing Custom Download Options	205
Selecting a theme	
Customizing a theme	207

_____ Table of Contents

Downloading a theme	
Building your download file	
Using jQuery UI Widgets	
Adding an accordion	
Creating a datepicker	
Displaying tabs	

Part V: Building AJAX Applications 217

Chapter 15: Understanding How AJAX Works with jQuery	
Understanding AJAX	
Loading Data with AJAX	
Getting the contents of a text file	
Getting the contents of a Web page	
Getting part of a Web page	
Sending Data with AJAX	225
Chapter 16: Using AJAX Plug-ins	231
How AJAX iOuery Plug-ins Work	
Using AJAX File Uploader	
Rotating Dynamic Content	
Creating AJAX Pop-Up Windows	

Chapter 17: Cool Image Effects with jQuery and Drupal	245
Investigating Drupal Modules	
Finding Drupal modules	
Downloading Drupal modules	
Enabling the Image and Image Gallery modules	
Adding images to your gallery	
Creating Image Effects in Drupal	
Getting the Thickbox jQuery module for Drupal	
Enabling Thickbox	
Using Thickbox with your Image Gallery	
Integrating jOuery in Drupal	
Configuring Drupal to recognize jOuery	
Including the jQuery library in Drupal content	

Chapter 18: Integrating jQuery and Joomla!	259
Understanding How jQuery Works with Joomla!	
Configuring Joomla! to recognize jQuery	
Accessing jQuery from Joomla!	
Finding jQuery Extensions for Joomla!	
Using jQuery Extensions with Joomla!	
Creating an image gallery	
Displaying tweets from Twitter on your Joomla! page	
Chapter 19: Building Better Blogs with jQuery and WordPress	273
Making jQuery Work with WordPress	
Finding WordPress jQuery-Based Plug-ins	
Using the Colorbox jQuery Plug-in with WordPress	
t V11: The Part of Tens	. 283
Chapter 20: Ten Don't-Miss Plug-ins	285
unloadify	285
iCarousel	288
aTin	289
iOuerv pager	290
jQuery Flash	291
toggleElements	
Coda-Slider 2.0	
pagination	
Humanized Messages for jQuery	
Single Drop Down Menu	
Chapter 21: Ten Design and Code Tricks	297
Detecting Browser Types	
Animating a Background Image	
Resizing Text	
Disabling the Right-Click Menu	
Loading jQuery from Google	301
Creating a Simple Slide Panel	
Creating a Disappearing Effect	
Using a jQuery Cheat Sheet	
Making Elements Clickable	
Streamlining document.ready Code	
Chapter 22: Ten jQuery Resources	307
jQuery Web site	
jQuery on Wikipedia	
jQuery for Absolute Beginners Video Series	

_____ Table of Contents xix

Visual jQuery	
Use jQuery	
jOuery Plug-ins	
Smashing Magazine	
Speckyboy Design Magazine	
Nettuts+	
Woorkup	
1	

Index 3	19)
---------	----	---

XX jQuery For Dummies _____

Introduction

Query is all around you. You see it on hugely popular sites such as Twitter and Facebook. When you visit Yahoo! or Google, there it is. Someone's Aunt Mary has a snazzy Web site with jQuery effects for her pet photography business. But there you are, using animated gifs. Your site looks dated, and you aren't keeping up with your competition. It's time for you to add the power of jQuery to your site.

Welcome to the first edition of *jQuery For Dummies*, the book that was written especially for people who want to include jQuery code and plug-ins on their Web sites but haven't a clue how to start.

Maybe you've already tried to add jQuery to your site, but the documentation you've found is targeted to programmers. You want to know how to add some simple but compelling jQuery effects to your pages or some great prebuilt jQuery plug-ins, but you don't have the time to dig through tedious and yawn-inducing technical explanations of how to make it all work.

You need this book.

In *jQuery For Dummies*, I use everyday language to show you how to write jQuery code and use jQuery plug-ins. I don't assume that you know to program. You don't even need to know how to write HTML, although you'll get more out of this book if you do. The goal of this book is to show you, without the technical jargon, how to take advantage of jQuery with only a few lines of code added to your HTML pages.

About This Book

This isn't the kind of book you need to read from start to finish. You can pick up this book, turn to just about any page, and start reading. Each of its 22 chapters covers a specific aspect of jQuery — such as downloading jQuery, building simple jQuery effects, using amazing jQuery plug-ins, or integrating jQuery with popular Content Management Systems such as Drupal, Joomla!, and WordPress.

How to Use This Book

This book works like a reference. Decide on a topic you want to find out about. Look for it in the table of contents or in the index. Then turn to the area of interest and read as much as you need.

You don't have to memorize anything. This is a need-to-know book. Need to know how create an accordion menu? Pick up the book. Need to know how to fade in or fade out something on your Web page? Pick up the book. Want to find an awesome jQuery plug-in to display your photographs in an image gallery? You're all set.

This book rarely directs you elsewhere for information — just about everything that you need to know about jQuery is right here.

Finally, this book contains a lot of code. You can type the code or download it from the companion Web site at www.dummies.com/go/jqueryfd.

Foolish Assumptions

I'm making only one assumption about who you are: You're a nonprogrammer who has heard of jQuery and wants to add it to your own site. Both Macintosh and Windows users can use this book.

How This Book Is Organized

Inside this book, you find chapters arranged in seven parts. Each chapter breaks down into sections that cover various aspects of the chapter's main subject. The chapters are in a logical sequence, so reading them in order makes sense. But the book is modular enough that you can pick it up and start reading at any point.

Here's the lowdown on what's in each of the seven parts.

Part 1: Getting Started with jQuery

The chapters in this part are a layperson's introduction to what jQuery is all about, where to get it, and how to use it in a Web page. This part is a good place to start if you've never looked at jQuery code, aren't clear on what a Web server is, and don't know how to build a basic Web page.

The best thing about Part I is that it starts at the very beginning and doesn't assume that you know how to download, upload, and build Web pages. It also

covers the most fundamental parts of using jQuery: connecting the jQuery library to a Web page, selecting elements on your Web page, and making special effects happen when you want them to. When you finish Part I, you'll be able to change the content or appearance of elements on your page when a visitor mouses over a link on your page, clicks an image, and more.

Part 11: Affecting Elements with Effects

The goal of the chapters in Part II is to show you how to start changing the appearance of your Web page in response to user actions with jQuery. I take you beyond simply showing and hiding elements on a page to fun actions such as fading in and out and animating.

Part 111: Manipulating Your Web Page

Whereas Part II focuses on making elements on your page move, fade in and out, and animate, Part III gets to the heart of the matter. This is where you find out how to change the text and content on your page.

Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets

You take your site to a new level in Part IV, where you discover the plentiful free jQuery plug-ins developed by scores of talented programmers. The plugins are just waiting for you to download and integrate into your own site. And did I mention that they're free?

Part V: Building AJAX Applications

In Part V, you gain a broad understanding of AJAX and integrate some robust jQuery AJAX plug-ins into your own site. AJAX is complicated and can involve the integration of several programming languages. It's a topic that could easily fill up an entire book, but this part gives you a simple introduction and points you in the right direction for getting started.

Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems

Content Management Systems (CMS) are wildly popular, and it's no wonder. With a CMS, you can build an entire robust Web site in just a few hours. And

three of the most widely used CMS — Drupal, Joomla!, and WordPress — support jQuery. Part VI gives you pointers on including jQuery with all three.

Part VII: The Part of Tens

This wouldn't be a *Dummies* book without a collection of lists of interesting snippets: ten jQuery plug-ins or add-ons for your Web site, ten jQuery design tricks, and ten sites you can visit to find out even more about jQuery. You find all this in Part VII.

Icons Used in This Book

Those nifty little pictures in the margin aren't there to just pretty up the place. They also have practical functions.



Hold it — technical details lurk just around the corner. Read on only if you want to find out a little more about the inner workings of jQuery. But if your eyes glaze over, move on.



Pay special attention to this icon; it lets you know that some particularly useful tidbit is at hand — perhaps a shortcut or a little-used command that pays off big. And sometimes tips point you to important information in other parts of this book.



This icon indicates important, often basic, information that you should try to remember. You will need this information again and again, both in the examples in this book and in your own jQuery explorations.



Danger, Will Robinson! This icon highlights information that may help you avert disaster. And by disaster, I mean your code won't run, your plug-in won't function, and your day will be shot. You'll spend far too long trying to track down the problem. Instead, give this icon special attention.

Where to Go from Here

Yes, you can get there from here. With this book in hand, you're ready to add exciting jQuery effects and functionality to your Web pages. Browse through the table of contents and decide where you want to start. Your Web pages will never be the same!

Part I Getting Started with jQuery



"We should cast a circle, invoke the elements, and direct the energy. If that doesn't work, we'll read the manual."

In this part . . .

ou have to begin somewhere, and here's the place. Before you can use jQuery, you have to get the jQuery library. Then you need to know what to do with it. And just what is jQuery, anyway? These chapters give you all the answers.

After you have the jQuery library squared away, it's time to use it. Simply follow the clear, easy examples to add code to your Web page.

You'll also discover how to pinpoint Web page elements, such as images, divs, and links. And how to call jQuery when specific events occur, such as when an element is clicked or a div is moused over.

If you don't know anything about jQuery, or you don't know how to select elements, or you don't know how to detect events, start here.

Chapter 1 Getting Up and Running with jQuery

In This Chapter

- Getting jQuery
- Creating a test environment
- ▶ Using jQuery in a Web page
- Executing code after a Web page loads

Perhaps you're reading this book because you need to create an image viewer for your Web site. Maybe you want to make something on your page fade in and out. Or maybe you want to give visitors to your site a way to upload files. jQuery can help you add hundreds of impressive interactive effects to your Web page quickly and easily.

.

In this chapter, you find an overview of how jQuery works, how to use it in your own Web pages, and how to create your first simple Web page with a jQuery effect.

Finding Out What jQuery Can Do for You

jQuery gives Web developers and designers an easy way to create sophisticated effects with almost no coding. Because jQuery is so easy to implement, its popularity is growing. You see examples of jQuery all over the Web. Facebook and Twitter, for example, use a number of jQuery effects.

When you post a new tweet on Twitter, the page doesn't reload. Instead, the code behind the Web page calls a jQuery function to make your new tweet appear and all the other tweets on your page move down. Another jQuery feature on Twitter is the notification you receive when a new tweet arrives, as shown in Figure 1-1.

Part I: Getting Started with jQuery



If you click the notification, the new tweets appear on your page, and the older tweets slide down. The Web page never reloads; instead, the content on the page changes dynamically.

Defining jQuery

To understand jQuery, it helps to know a little about JavaScript, a programming language that your Web browser understands. JavaScript code can interact with images and text on your Web page — for example, hiding an image, moving text, or changing content after a certain period of time or when a visitor to your page does something, such as roll his mouse cursor over a link. JavaScript code can make an image appear when someone visiting a Web page clicks a button, can make a window pop up 30 seconds after you browse to a Web page, or can check to make sure a visitor to your site filled out a Web form correctly. JavaScript is robust and commonly used to add interactivity and dynamic effects to Web pages. But JavaScript is a complete programming language, and to use it effectively, you have to learn to program.

jQuery is an add-on library for JavaScript. Think of jQuery as JavaScript code that's been written for you. In general, all you have to do is include a line or two of code in your page that calls the jQuery code. jQuery does the hard JavaScript coding work for you.

Understanding jQuery effects and events

jQuery lets you easily change the appearance, location, or behavior of an element on a Web page. In Chapter 2, I discuss HTML elements in depth, but for now think of an *element* as something on a Web page such as an image, a block of text, a hyperlink, a table, or a heading.

jQuery code gives the text and image elements on a Web page various special effects, including the following:

- ✓ hide: Hides an element on your Web page.
- ▶ show: Displays an element on your Web page if the element is hidden.
- ✓ slideDown: Slides down an element on your Web page.
- ✓ slideUp: Slides up an element on your Web page.
- ✓ fadeIn: Fades in a hidden element on your Web page, making the element visible.
- fadeOut: Fades out an element on your Web page, making the element invisible.
- ✓ animate: Animates an element on your Web page in a particular direction.

You can use jQuery effects on elements on your page, but jQuery also lets you control when these effects take place. You can make an element on your page fade, slide, animate, and so on when you specify. Here are a few of the events that jQuery can use to trigger an effect:

- ✓ load: The effect occurs when a Web page has finished loading in the Web browser or when an element in a page has loaded, such as an image.
- mouseover: The effect occurs when the mouse cursor moves over a specific location on a Web page.
- mouseout: The effect occurs when the mouse cursor moves off a specific location on a Web page.
- ✓ change: If the value of something (for example, the text in a field on a Web form) changes, an event occurs. This is useful for making sure someone enters the correct information in a text box.

Using plug-ins

The true power of jQuery is in the many hundreds of plug-ins that use it to create amazing effects. *Plug-ins* are JavaScript programs that use and expand jQuery. To see an example of a popular and impressive plug-in, visit the Lightbox plug-in Web site at http:/leandrovieira.com/projects/jquery/lightbox. This plug-in lets visitors to your page click an image and see a larger version of the imaged overlaid (see Figure 1-2).

Part I: Getting Started with jQuery



Throughout this book, you find out about quite a few jQuery plug-ins, all free and easy to use, that turn a simple Web site into a robust and dynamic destination.

Installing jQuery

Before you can use jQuery, you need to download a copy of it. Then you need to decide where you want it to live. In this section, I discuss the basic steps involved in getting a copy of jQuery and then saving it to the right location depending on whether you're working on your personal computer or on a remote Web server. Later, you see how to include a line of code in your HTML file or Web page to see jQuery effects on your Web page.

Downloading jQuery

To get a copy of jQuery, follow these steps:

1. Browse to jquery.com and click the Download jQuery button, which is on the right (see Figure 1-3).

Clicking this button takes you to a page on http://code.google.com with a link to the latest version of jQuery. In my case, the filename is jquery-1.4.min.js. Your version may be newer and have a different number, but that won't make any difference for the code and examples in this book.

Chapter 1: Getting Up and Running with jQuery



Figure 1-3: Download the latest version of jQuery from jquery. com.



The letters min in the filename indicate that the file is minimized. This means that extra spaces and comments that don't do anything are removed, making the overall file size smaller. In general, it's best to download the minimized version of jQuery.

2. Click the link to the jQuery file.

A dialog box appears, asking you whether you want to open or save this file, as shown in Figure 1-4.



Depending on the browser you use to download the jQuery .js file, you might not see the dialog box asking you to save the file. You may instead be presented with a page full of JavaScript code. If that happens, choose Filet Save Page As and save the file.

3. Save this file to a directory on your computer that you will remember.

Setting up a testing directory

Now that you have a local copy of the jQuery file, you need to set up a location on your computer where you can create HTML files that use jQuery. To do this, follow these steps:

1. Create a directory or folder on your computer that's easy to browse to and name it webtest.

On a PC, if you create the directory on the C: / drive, the directory would be C: /webtest. On a Mac, you can create the directory on the desktop.

Part I: Getting Started with jQuery



2. Inside the webtest directory, create two directories, naming them js and images.

Figure 1-5 shows my directory named webtest and the folders in it.

3. Copy or move the jQuery file (jquery-1.4.min.js in my case) into the js directory.

	000	🚞 webtest		0
		\$ -	٩	
	V DEVICES	images		
	Macintosh HD	js js		
	▶ PLACES			
Figure 1-5:	SEARCH FOR			
The	© Yesterday			
webtest	E Past Week All Images			
directory	All Movies			
containing	in socurieris			
the js and				
images				
directories.				
	0 0 0 0	2 items, 64.08 GB available		· //.

Calling jQuery from a Web page

After you have your directory set up and the jQuery file saved in the js directory, you can create your first Web page.

For much of the rest of this book, you need an HTML editor or at least a text editor. If you're using a PC, you can use the Notepad program by choosing Start=>All Programs=>Accessories=>Notepad. On the Mac, you can use TextEdit by choosing Applications=>TextEdit.

If you use TextEdit on the Mac, make sure you first choose Format Make Plain Text.

In the following steps, you create an HTML page and add a line of code that connects the page to the jQuery library. This page won't do anything exciting, but correctly inserting the jQuery code in your Web page is vital. jQuery won't work if even a single character is incorrect, so type carefully.

To create your page, do the following:

- 1. Open the text editor or HTML editor of your choice.
- 2. Type the following code into the text document:



3. Save this file as test.html in the webtest directory you created in the last section.

No matter which editor you use, make sure you save your files with the .html extension, not .txt.

You still need to add the line of code that connects the jQuery library to this page.

4. Right after the HTML code <title>My Test Page</title>, add the following line of code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

The jQuery filename (jquery-1.4.min.js in the preceding line of code) must match the name of the file you downloaded from jquery.com. This line of code calls the jQuery code library. Later, when you add simple code to this Web page that uses jQuery, your Web browser will know how to find jQuery.



5. Save your test.html file again.

This time your file is saved with the line of code you just added.

Viewing a Web page on your computer

You've created a simple HTML page, and now you should look at it in your browser. To open your page, follow these steps:

1. Start the browser of your choice.

In this example, I use Firefox.

2. Choose File=>Open File.

An Open File dialog box appears.

- 3. Browse to the webtest directory and select the file you created earlier, test.html.
- 4. Click OK.

Your Web page now appears in your browser, as shown in Figure 1-6.


This page displays the title, My Test Page, and a line of text, This is my test page. The jQuery code is accessible by your Web page, but you're not using it for any effects in your page yet.

Creating Your First jQuery Code

Now that you know how to create a simple Web page with a <script> tag that calls, or includes, the jQuery library, you can create your first jQuery effect. In this section, you add an image to your page and add jQuery code that displays information about the image in an alert box. It isn't the most exciting use of jQuery, but it demonstrates the basic techniques you will use throughout this book.

To add an image to your HTML page:

1. Locate a small .gif image file and save it in the images directory you created earlier inside the webtest directory.

Try to find one that's no larger than 300x300 pixels.

If you don't have a .gif image handy, grab one by browsing to this location:

```
http://media.wiley.com/spa_assets/site/dummies2/include/images/topnav/home.
gif
```

This file is a small image of a house. Choose File Save File As and save this image to the images directory under webtest.

- 2. Open test.html in a text editor.
- 3. Add the following code after the line This is my test page:

```
<img src= "images/home.gif" height="28" width="28" alt="This is a test image.">
```

Make sure to change home.gif to match the file you're using.



Take a close look at this tag. It contains bits of code known as *attributes*. The attributes are src, height, width, and alt. Each of these contains information about the image. The src attribute contains the filename and location of the image. The height and width attributes contain the dimensions of the image in pixels. The alt attribute is additional text to display when the image is moused over or can't be displayed.

4. Save your test.html file but leave it open in your text editor.

If you view your page in a Web browser now, the image appears as shown in Figure 1-7.



Part I: Getting Started with jQuery

	Grab	File E	dit Captu	re Window	Help		10	-0 ¥ *	ŝ ↓ ((Charged) 	Mon 11:02 PM	q
	000					My Test Page						
		<u>c</u>) (×) 🍙 (file:///Use	ers/lynnbeighley/Deskt	op/webtest/test.h	tml			•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	Google	<u>Q</u>
		My Test P	age	+								₹
	This is my test (My Test P	age	<u>,+</u>)	dtals deads deads dearcipt Test Page dearcipt Test dodys This is wy test pag <img src="images/h
image."/> <th>€ tes - - - - - - - -</th> <th>t.html ≺\$cript> 8° width="28° ol</th> <th>t="This is a</th> <th>a test</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>	€ tes - - - - - - - -	t.html ≺\$cript> 8° width="28° ol	t="This is a	a test			
Figure 1-7: The test. html page with an image.												

You're ready to add some jQuery code. In the following steps, you add code that displays information about the image:

- 1. If test.html is not already open in your text editor, open it.
- 2. Locate the <script> line of code that you added that calls jQuery.
- 3. Below that line of code, after the </script> tag, add the following code:

```
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Do things here
});
</script>
```

You will see this code again and again throughout this book. The \$ (document) .ready code is calling a jQuery function that tells the browser that when a certain portion of the page has finished loading, do something. You still need to tell it what to do.



When you see the dollar sign in code, it means the code is interacting with jQuery by calling a jQuery function. The \$ character is a stand-in for the code word jQuery.



The //Do things here line is a comment. The two forward slash characters tell the Web browser to ignore the text that follows them on the same line. It's often handy to put comments in your code to tell yourself what you still need to do or what you have done.

4. Replace the //Do things here line with this code:

```
alert(jQuery('img').attr('alt'));
```

Remember the \$ sign? The preceding code line can also be written like this:

alert(\$('img').attr('alt'));

5. Save your file but leave it open in your text editor. View it in a browser.

The line of code you added tells the browser to open a JavaScript alert box when the page is ready. Figure 1-8 shows this alert box. The alert displays the text that is in the image tag following the alt attribute. Figure 1-8 also displays the entire source code for test.html.



6. Change the alert code to display the height of the image by modifying it to

alert(jQuery('img').attr('height'));

7. Save test.html and view it in your Web browser.

You now see the height of the image displayed in the alert box.

How jQuery works with your Web page

At its most basic, a Web page contains a <script> tag that includes the jQuery library and a <script> block of JavaScript code that contains calls to functions from the jQuery library.

Using JavaScript code to call jQuery functions is a bit confusing at first, but don't worry. The important point is to get a sense of how the code you used in this chapter works and what all the pieces mean. In this section, I take you through test.html line by line so it will be clearer:

- <!doctype...>: This long element tells the Web browser which version of HTML is used in the code that follows. You should always include it at the beginning of any HTML pages you create.
- <html>: This element begins the HTML page.
- <head>: This element designates the beginning of the head section. This section usually contains the title and any script element.
- <title>My Test Page</title>: This line displays the title of the page.
- <script type="text/java script">: This script tag tells the browser that everything inside is JavaScript code.
- \$(document).ready(function() {: The dollar sign is an alias for the jQuery function. The ready function waits for the Web page to load, and then the code contained inside it is executed.

- ✓ alert(jQuery('img'). attr('height'));: The alert function opens a pop-up alert box. The dollar sign that follows is calling the jQuery attr function. This function returns the value of whatever attribute is in quotes, in this case, the height. Notice that img precedes the attr function. In short, this function means, "look for all img elements you find in the HTML code, and return the value of the height attribute of the first one."
- >>;: This punctuation is closing the braceand parenthesis started in the \$(document).ready(function(){ line.
- </script>: This tag closes the <script> tag and ends the JavaScript code block.
- </head>: This tag closes the head section of the HTML.
- <body>: This tag begins the body section, where the main content consisting of HTML code, text, and images is written.
- This is my test page.: This line is a line of text that appears in the page.
- : This img element displays on the Web page an image with several attributes.
- /body>: This tag ends the content section of the page.
- /html>: This tag ends the HTML page.



You can use single or double quotes around elements and text in jQuery functions, but the best practices is to always use single quotes. Double quotes are best used in HTML code. For example, this is a jQuery function with single quotes:

```
alert($('img').attr('width'));
```

and this is HTML code with double quotes:

Part I: Getting Started with jQuery _____

Chapter 2 Accessing HTML Elements

. . . .

In This Chapter

- Finding out the elements of elements
- ▶ Getting HTML element attribute values
- Changing HTML element attribute values
- Displaying attribute values
- ▶ Changing HTML and text code inside HTML elements

Query is great for manipulating elements on a Web page. But to use it effectively, you need to know what an element is and which jQuery functions can be used on the elements you want to manipulate. In this chapter, I discuss the most common elements and how you can use jQuery to get and set element values. I also show you how to get and set the HTML code inside an HTML element to change the content of your Web page.

.

Understanding Elements

jQuery allows you to interact with and manipulate elements on your Web pages. *HTML elements* make up HTML pages and are denoted by tags, which are letters or words in angle brackets, < and >. For example, is an image element.

Overview of elements

Consider the HTML code that you created at the end of Chapter 1:

```
alert(jQuery('img').attr('alt'));
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
This is my test page.
<img src= "images/home.gif" height="28" width="28" alt="This is a test</pre>
              image." />
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains eight elements, which I discuss in the next section, Common HTML Elements: <html></html>, <head></head>, <title> </title>, <script></script> (used twice), <body></body>, , and .

When you open this content in a browser (see Figure 2-1), the only visible elements are the title, the text in the $\langle p \rangle$ element, and the alert box from the jQuery function in the second <script> element.

With the exception of the <html> element that surrounds everything else in the HTML code, elements are always nested inside other elements. For example, the line of text, This is my test page. is nested inside tags, which are inside <body> tags, which are inside <html> tags. Think of Russian stacking dolls.



When you think about elements, keep these rules of order in mind:

- \checkmark An element inside another element is the child of the outer element.
- The outer element is the parent of the inner element.
- \checkmark An individual element can, and often is, simultaneously both a parent and a child.

Common HTML elements

You may already be familiar with HTML. If not, here's a closer look at a few of most common HTML elements you should know:

- <html></html>: Tells the Web browser that everything inside the tags should be considered a Web page.
- <head></head>: Contains information that controls how the page is displayed. Elements responsible for JavaScript and CSS code and calls to other files are generally placed between these tags.
- <title></title>: Contains the title of the Web page, displayed on the title bar at the top of the browser.
- <body></body>: Holds all the content of the page.
- <style></style>: Controls the appearance and behavior of elements on your Web page.
- <script></script>: Makes JavaScript and other specified code available, either by calling a file or code placed between these tags. jQuery is included on the page with this tag.
- : Boldfaces any text within the tag.
- <h1></h1>: Creates header text.
- <div></div>: Creates a container of content.
- : Creates a paragraph.
- <a>: Creates a hyperlink.
- : Displays an image. Note that this tag doesn't have a matching end tag, so a slash character is used inside the tag to denote the end of the tag.
- <form></form>: Creates a Web form that can send user-submitted information to another Web page or code that can process this information.
- <input></input>: Creates a form element, such as a radio button, text input box, or a Submit button. Used as a child element inside <form> </form>.

✓ **<br** />: Inserts a line break. No matching end tag is needed.



: Creates a table, along with child tags : and

A more complete list of HTML elements is located at www.w3.org/TR/REChtml40/index/elements.html.

Getting and Setting Element Values

jQuery allows you to get and set values associated with your elements. In this section, I describe element attribute values and show you how to get them and how to change the elements by setting values for them with jQuery.

Understanding element attribute values

One feature of jQuery that makes it so powerful is that it allows you to manipulate the attribute values of elements. An *attribute* is an HTML code word that controls an aspect of the element. For example, consider this element:

```
<img src= "images/home.gif" height="28" width="28" alt="Little house" />
```

This line of code has the following four attributes:

- ✓ src: The URL or location of the image file to display
- ✓ height: The image height in pixels
- width: The image width in pixels
- ✓ alt: The text that appears in lieu of an image or, in some browsers, when the image is moused-over for a few seconds

These are a few of the many possible attribute values that an element can have. Other elements have different attributes.

The *value* of an attribute is the text that follows the equal sign after the attribute name. This value is typically surrounded in double quotes. For example, in the element just shown, the height attribute has a value of 28.

Getting element attribute values

If you want the value of an attribute, you can use the jQuery <code>attr()</code> function. The <code>attr()</code> function takes the name of an attribute on your page, such as <code>attr('src')</code>, and gives you the value of that attribute, that is, the information on the right side of the equal sign.

Consider this line of code:

```
var imageSource = $('img').attr('src');
```

To use the <code>attr()</code> method, you call a function method in the jQuery library. You have to include a call to the name of the jQuery function in your code. The \$ function tells the browser to use the jQuery function and specifies which element you are interested in.



The \$ is a shorthand way of calling jQuery. The following line of code works the same way as the preceding code:

```
imageSource = jQuery('img').attr('src');
```

This code stores the value of the src attribute from an element into the imageSource variable.



A *variable* is a place to store values. Think of a variable as a box containing whatever is on the other side of the = sign. In the preceding example, I created a variable named imageSource and stored in it whatever was in the src attribute of the tag.

In the following steps, you get the value of the src attribute. Then you save it in a variable and display it in an alert box:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                        "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
// Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<strong>This is my test page.</strong>
<img src= "images/home.gif" height="28" width="28" alt="This is a test</pre>
                                                           image." />
</body>
</html>
```



You can browse to www.dummies.com/go/jquery and copy this code and paste it into your text editor or Web editor. Look at Chapter 1 for instructions on creating Web pages using Notepad (Windows) or TextEdit (Mac) and viewing them in your Web browser.

Part I: Getting Started with jQuery



Make sure you name your file with .html at the end of the name.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following two lines of code:

```
var imageFile = $('img').attr('src');
alert (imageFile);
```

The first line says, "Get the value of the src attribute for the element and save it in the imageFile variable. The second line says, "Display in an alert box the value stored in the imageFile variable."



You can name your variables anything you want, as long as the name contains no spaces and no special characters. Stick to letters, and avoid numbers. It's best to give your variables meaningful names, so you remember the purpose of each variable.

3. Save this file and then open it in your browser.

You see an alert box displaying the source directory and filename of the image on the page, as shown in Figure 2-2.

Displaying an attribute value in an alert box is not a particularly useful trick. But the point here is to understand how to get those values and store them in variables.

There are specific rules for naming variables:

- ✓ JavaScript variable names start with a letter, \$, or an underscore.
- ✓ Names can contain only letters, numbers, \$, and underscores; no spaces or other special characters are allowed.
- ✓ You can't use reserved words (which have special meanings) as variable names.

Getting element content

Some HTML elements have text elements between their opening and closing tags that you can manipulate using jQuery. Consider this code:

This is some text.

With jQuery, I can get the text between the opening and closing tag. To get an element's content with jQuery, do the following:





1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
           "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
// Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<strong>This is my test page.</strong>
This is some text.
</body>
</html>
```

You can browse to www.dummies.com/go/jquery and copy this code and paste it into your text or Web editor.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following two lines of code:

```
var pContent = $('p').text();
alert (pContent);
```

The first line says, "Get the HTML content of the element and save it in the pContent variable. The second line says, "Display in an alert box the value stored in the pContent variable."

3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

You see an alert box displaying the content of the element, as shown in Figure 2-3.

Setting element attribute values

Suppose that you want to change an image displayed on a page. Because the displayed image is based on what is stored in the src attribute, changing the src value will change which image is displayed on the page.



For the next example, you need two image files of the same height and width. You can download cover1.jpg and cover2.jpg from www.dummies.com/ go/jquery. Save these files to your webtest directory in the images directory.



Figure 2-3: displaying the contents of the

www.allitebooks.com

To change the attribute value of an HTML element, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                             "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
  <html>
 <head>
 <title>My Test Page</title>
 <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
 $(document).ready(function(){
 // Your code goes here.
});
 </script>
 </head>
<body>
 <strong>This is my test page.</strong>
 <img src="images/cover1.jpg" alt="cover1" />
 </body>
 </html>
```

2. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

Note that the image that appears is cover1.jpg.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('img').attr({src: 'images/cover2.jpg', alt: 'cover2'});

This code says, "Find the element, and change the src attribute to images/cover2.jpg and the alt attribute to cover2."

4. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

This time, the image that appears is cover2.jpg, as shown in Figure 2-4.

Removing element attribute values

Removing an attribute value is easy; you just use the removeAttr() function. For example, the following code removes the height attribute from an tag:

```
$('img').removeAttr('height');
```

Part I: Getting Started with jQuery



Changing HTML Content

Earlier in the chapter, you copied the HTML content from an element and displayed it in an alert box. After you copy HTML content, you can place it inside any other HTML element on the page.

To copy HTML content from one element and place it in another, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
</script>
</head>
<body>
<strong>This is the code in the STRONG element.</strong>
This is the code in the P element.
<img src="images/cover1.jpg" alt="cover1" />
</body>
</html>
```

2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.

Note the text in the and elements (see Figure 2-5). They each have HTML tags that italicize parts of the text.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
var strongContent = $('strong').html();
var pContent = $('p').html();
```

\$('strong').html(pContent); \$('p').html(strongContent);

The first line gets the HTML content inside the element and stores it in the strongContent variable. The second line stores the content of the element in the pContent variable. Now that you have the content from each element, you need to set it in each element.

4. Add this code below the two lines you just added:

```
🗯 Grab File Edit Capture Window Help
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        📌 🖸 🛜 🔹 Sat 2:04 PM 🕴
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         Q
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        My Test Page
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           습 🔹 · (B · ( Google
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 Q

    C X 
    file:///Applications/webtest/ch2-5.html
    file://Applications/webtest/ch2-5.html
    file://Applications/webtest/ch2-5.html

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                +
                                                                                                                                                              My Test Page
                                                                        This is the code in the STRONG element.
                                                                        This is the code in the P element.
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        Source of: file:///Applications/webtest/ch2-5.html
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        000
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        <html>
<html>
<html>
clitle>Wy Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.3.2.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function())
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          // Your code goes here.
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        });
</mark/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sectors/sector
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        </body>
</html>
Two
text.
```

Figure 2-5: Two elements containing text. The first line puts the HTML code stored in pContent in the element. The second puts the HTML code stored in strongContent in the element.

5. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

The code that was originally in the element is now in the element, and vice versa (see Figure 2-6).



Changing Text Content

Sometimes you don't want the actual HTML code in an element; you want only the text. To do so, replace the <code>html()</code> function with the <code>text()</code> function. In the preceding example, you swapped the HTML code. If you want to swap only the text and not the HTML code, use this code:

```
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
var strongContent = $('strong').text();
var pContent = $('p').text();
$('strong').text(pContent);
$('p').text(strongContent);
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<strong>This is the text in the <em>STRONG</em> element.</strong>
cy>This is the text in the <em>P</em> element.
</body>
</html>
```

Note that the tags are no longer present, so nothing is italicized (see Figure 2-7). Using the text() method strips out HTML elements.



Part I: Getting Started with jQuery _____

Chapter 3

Selecting HTML Elements, Attributes, and Positions

In This Chapter

- Understanding jQuery selectors
- Selecting everything
- Counting the number of selected elements
- Identifying form elements
- Choosing element attributes
- Finding hidden elements
- Selecting child and parent elements

n Chapter 2, you find out how to get and set an element's attributes and HTML inside elements. All the examples in that chapter focus on getting and setting values in a single element type on a page. But when you have multiple elements of the same type, sometimes you need to filter a particular element or elements and leave other ones alone. This is where jQuery selectors come in handy.

.

You can use a selector to choose a particular type of element and also to select an element based on its attributes, id, CSS class, and order on the page (for example, the third or the fifth). You can even choose elements based on their parents or children.

After you select the element or elements you want, you can use other jQuery functions to manipulate them. This chapter is all about selecting elements with jQuery selectors.

Using jQuery Selectors

In this section, you select all the elements of a single type. You also find out how to filter elements based on id values, CSS classes, and their order on the page.

Selecting specific element types

You may not realize it, but you use a selector in Chapter 2. Take a look at the following code, which changes the src and alt attributes for elements:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
              "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
$('img').attr({src: 'images/cover2.jpg', alt: 'cover2'});
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<strong>This is my test page.</strong>
<img src="images/cover1.jpg" alt="cover1" />
</body>
</html>
```

This code changes the src and alt attributes for an element. The code ('img') is selecting the element.

You use the same selector with the jQuery html() and text() functions to change the HTML code or text in all matching elements on a page. To see this in action, follow these steps to change the text in all the elements on a page:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
Some text
<strong>another name</strong>
More text
<strong>another name</strong>
Even more text
<strong>your name</strong>
Last bit of text
</body>
</html>
```



You can download this code from www.dummies.com/go/jquery. If you instead type the code yourself, the text inside the and elements doesn't matter, so use whatever you want. The important point is to have several elements.

2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.

Note the bold text in the elements (see Figure 3-1).



3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:



The strongContent variable stores the text *jQuery for Dummies*. Now that you have the content you want in the elements, you need to use a selector to select all the elements and change the text in them with the text() function.

4. Add this code below the line you just added:

```
$('strong').text(strongContent);
```

This code puts the text stored in strongContent in all the elements on the page.

5. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

The text that was originally in the elements has been replaced, as shown in Figure 3-2.



Selecting all elements

You can select every element on a page by using the * character. For example, if I wanted to add an id attribute to every element in the preceding code, I could use this line of code:

www.allitebooks.com



```
$('*').attr({id: 'myNewID'});
```

You shouldn't use the * character with some jQuery functions. Consider this line of code:

```
$('*')text('Not a good idea.');
```

When this line of code executes, it first replaces the outermost element's text. Because the outermost parent element of any HTML page is the <html> element, you end up with this HTML code on your page:

```
<html>Not a good idea.</html>
```

In general, it's practical to use the * selector when you want to assign a CSS style or an attribute to every element on a page or can narrow the results further in some other way.

Selecting an id

In Chapter 2, you see src, alt, height, and width attributes used for elements. There are other attributes, such as the id attribute, that you can assign to all elements. The id attribute contains a unique identifier that you can use with a selector to pinpoint a specific element. For example, here is code that assigns ids to two elements:

```
Some textMore text
```

The first element has the someTxt id. The second has the moreTxt id. If I want to select the second element, I can use the id name moreTxt in a selector.

Several rules govern id attributes. An id

- ✓ An id must be unique. You can use an id only once per HTML page.
- An id can contain only letters, numbers, hyphens, underscores, colons, and periods.
- ✓ An id must begin with a letter.
- An id is case-sensitive. The id you use in the HTML tag must match the one you use in your selector.
- An id is used in jQuery with a pound sign (#) in front of the id name. In my HTML code, for example, I use id = 'myidname'. But when I use the id with a selector in the jQuery code, I place a pound sign in front of the id name, that is, '#myidname'.



Pay attention to how the pound sign is used in the following example. You see the pound sign used only in the code in the <script> section, not in the HTML tag.

To display an attribute from an element using an id selector, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
          "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
// Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<bodv>
Some text
More text
</body>
</html>
```

2. Locate this line in the code: // Your code goes here. Replace that line with the following code:

alert (\$('#moreTxt').text());

This code opens an alert box containing the text stored in the selector named with the id attribute moreTxt.

3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

The text in the element with the moreTxt attribute displays in an alert box, as shown in Figure 3-3.

Selecting classes

Using ids to select specific elements gives you a lot of control over the elements on your page. But because ids are unique, you have to select each element by id. If you want to select four elements on your page, for example, you have to use all four ids in your code. For example, to set the src attribute for four elements on a page, you would use the following code:

```
$('#anid').attr('src') = 'images/newImage.gif';
$('#anotherid').attr('src') = 'images/newImage.gif';
```

```
$('#myid').attr('src') = 'images/newImage.gif';
                 $('#hereisanid').attr('src') = 'images/newImage.gif';
                                                                                       🔮 🕅 2 🍁 😗 🛜 🐠 Sun 7:49 PM 🖇
                 🗯 Grab File Edit Capture Window Help
                                                                                                                         Q
                                                                  My Test Page
                                                                                                  ☆マ)・(S)・(Google
                                                                                                                          Q
                 ◄) ►) - (C) (X) (♠) (☐ (file:///Application)
                                                                [JavaScript Application]
                                          +
                          My Test Page
                                                                More text
                                                                                                                            -
                Some text
                                                                             OK
                More text
                                        000
                                                               Source of: file:///Applications/webtest/3-3.htm
                                        <html>
                                        <head>
                                        chead>
<kitle>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.3.2.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
                                        alert ($("#moreTxt").text());
                                        });
</script>
</scad>
<body>
Some text
More text
</body>
</stad>
 Figure 3-3:
 Web page
  with alert
box display-
ing the text
    from the
    element
        with
 moreTxt
         id.
```



To select elements by id, the code in the HTML contains id attributes for each element without a pound sign.

Each of these lines sets the src attribute of a particular element. If you use a special attribute known as a class, you can select all elements with that attribute with a single line of code, such as:

```
$('.someClass').attr('src') = 'images/newImage.gif';
```

Several rules govern class attributes.

- A class may be used by more than one element. You can use an id only once per HTML page.
- An element may contain more than one class. If you want to give an element multiple class attributes, use a space between class names. For example, here are three class attributes assigned to a single element:

A class attribute is used in jQuery with a period (.) in front of the class name. In HTML code, for example, I use class = "myclass". But when I use the class with a selector in the jQuery code, I place a period in front of the class name, that is, '.myclass'.

To change the text in ${<}p{>}$ and ${<}strong{>}$ elements with the same class, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
         "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
// Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<strong class="changemytext">some name</strong>
Some text
<strong>another name</strong>
More text
<strong>another name</strong>
Even more text
<strong class="changemytext">your name</strong>
Last bit of text
</body>
</html>
```

Four elements have the same class attribute, changemytext. Note that a class can be used as often as you want, and different types of elements can share a class. If you save and open this file in a browser, you see the same page shown previously in this chapter in Figure 3-1.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('.changemytext').text('This is new text.');

This code changes the text in all the and elements with the changemytext class attribute to the new text.

3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

The text originally in the and elements with the class attribute changemytext has been replaced, as shown in Figure 3-4.



Selecting by order

When you have several of the same type of elements on a page, you may want to select by order. For example, you might want to select the third element on the page. jQuery has a set of functions that lets you select based on an element's position on the page.



When using lists of things in the jQuery library, the first item in the list is always considered number 0, not number 1. Code examples in this section that choose an element based on its position in a list count from the beginning of the list starting with 0.

Consider this code with several different elements, , , and . There are eleven total elements, four tags, four tags, and two tags:

```
$(document).ready(function(){
// Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<strong>Element, first strong tag</strong>
Element, first p tag
<strong>Element, second strong tag</strong>
Element, second p tag
<strong>Element, third strong tag</strong>
Element, third p tag
<img src="images/cover1.jpg" alt="Element"/>
<strong>Element, fourth strong tag</strong>
<img src="images/cover1.jpg" alt="Element" />
Element, fourth p tag
<img src="images/cover2.jpg" alt="Element" />
</body>
</html>
```

Following are some order selectors and examples of their use with elements in the preceding code:



Try the code in the following examples by replacing the //Your code goes here line in the preceding code.

:first: Selects the first matching element. This code returns the value
 of the src attribute of the first , which is images/cover1.jpg.

```
$('img:first').attr('src');
```

:last: Selects the last matching element. This code returns the value of
 the src attribute of the last , which is images/cover2.jpg.

```
$('img:last').attr('src');
```

:even: Matches even elements, starting with 0. This code changes the text of the first and third elements (see Figure 3-5).

```
$('strong:even').text('Changed this text.');
```

iodd: Matches odd elements, starting with 1. This code changes the text of the second and fourth elements.

```
$('strong:odd').text('Changed this text.');
```

Chapter 3: Selecting HTML Elements, Attributes, and Positions



Lists of things used with jQuery begin numbering at 0, not 1. To select the first element, use an index of 0. The second element has an index of 1, the third an index of 2, and so on.

 :eq(index): Matches a specific element by counting from the first ele- ment to the index value. Suppose that you want to choose the third element on the page. Because the count starts with 0, to select the third element, do the following:

```
$('strong:eq(2)').text('Changed this text.');
```

- :gt (index): Selects all elements with an index value greater than the index. Selected elements are elements below the selected element on the page.
- It (index): Selects all elements with an index value less than the index. Selected elements are above the selected element on the page.



Selecting from Forms

jQuery has a special set of filters just for selecting elements in HTML forms. The examples in this section work with the following code to select form elements:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
              "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
// Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<form action="" method="post">
Your name<input type="text" />
<input type="checkbox" />
<input type = "radio" />
<select><option>First Choice</option></select>
<input type="submit" />
</form>
</body>
</html>
```

The following are some of the form element selectors and examples of their use on elements in the preceding code:

:input: Selects all form elements including <input />, <select>,
 <textarea>, and <button>. This code shows the number of input
 elements in my form in an alert box:

```
alert( $(':input').length);
```



When a selector selects more than one element, the result is a list of values known as an *array*. When I select all the inputs on my page, I get back an array of all the elements. The length keyword tells me how many elements are in my array.

:text: Selects all elements with the type attribute set to text. The following code returns the value 1 in an alert box:

```
alert( $(':text').length);
```

:radio: Selects all elements with the type attribute set to radio. The following code returns the value 1 in an alert box:

```
alert( $(':radio').length);
```

:checkbox: Selects all elements with type attribute set to radio. The following code sets the checked attribute to true for all check boxes (see Figure 3-6):

```
$(':checkbox').attr({checked:'true'});
```

:checked: Selects all check boxes and radio buttons that are checked.



Selecting Attributes

Elements can be selected by using their attributes and attribute values. Here are some attribute filters:



```
alert( $('img[height]').length);
```

You can leave off the name of the element to select all the elements with a particular attribute. For example, the following code returns all elements with a height attribute, whether or not they are elements:

alert(\$('[height]').length);

[attribute=value]: Selects all elements with a particular attribute set to a specific value. The following code displays the number of elements with a class attribute set to myclass:

alert(\$('[class=myclass]').length);

[attribute:=value]: Selects all elements with a particular attribute not set to a specific value. The following code displays the number of elements with a class attribute that isn't myclass. Elements with no class attribute are ignored:

```
alert( $('[class!=myclass]').length);
```

Selecting Visibility

Being able to hide and show elements are some of the fun things you can easily do with jQuery. In Chapter 5, you find out how to hide elements. The following selectors will come in handy then:

- 🛩 :hidden: Selects all hidden elements
- :visible: Selects all visible elements

Selecting Parents and Children

Often the elements you need to select are nested inside other elements. The following code shows two <div> elements, each with the same content inside:



www.allitebooks.com

```
$(document).ready(function(){
// Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div id="myfirstdiv">
<strong class="changemytext">some name</strong>
Some text
<strong>another name</strong>
More text
</div>
<div id="myseconddiv">
<strong class="changemytext">some name</strong>
Some text
<strong>another name</strong>
More text
</div>
</body>
</html>
```



The outer element is considered the parent, and inner elements are the children.

To select elements based on their parents or children, try these selectors:

:first-child: Selects the first child element. The following code
 selects the first child of the first <div> and changes the text of the
 selected element:

```
$('div:first-child').text('Change me.');
```

Iast-child: Selects the last child element. The following code selects the last child of the second <div> and changes the text of the selected element:

\$('div:last-child').text('Change me.');

parent > child: Selects the child element of the parent element. This
code changes the text of every element that is a child of a
<div> element (see Figure 3-7).

```
$('div > strong').text('Change me.');
```



Keep in mind that the selectors in this chapter are not all the available jQuery selectors. Fortunately, knowing how to use these will make it easy to use any that aren't discussed here. You can find the complete list of selectors at http://api.jquery.com/category/selectors/.

Part I: Getting Started with jQuery


Chapter 4 Managing Events

.

In This Chapter

- Calling jQuery when a Web page loads
- Handling an event
- Reacting to clicks and double-clicks
- ▶ Detecting when an element gets focus
- Noticing keyboard events
- Catching mouse movements
- Simplifying your code with interaction helpers

hapter 2 shows you how to change the values of HTML elements and attributes. Chapter 3 reveals how to select precisely the element or set of elements you want to manipulate. In those chapters, every change you make to a selected element happens when the Web page loads.

But what if you want to change something on your page when someone clicks a link? In jQuery, clicking a link is an *event*. Other events are buttons being clicked, the mouse cursor moving a location on the page, and the page being closed. This chapter tells you how to manipulate HTML elements with jQuery in response to events.

Using jQuery When the Page Loads

To make something happen when a Web page loads in a browser, you use the $read_Y()$ function. This function tells the Web browser to carry out any commands inside the parentheses following the $read_Y$ command.

The following code calls the $jQuery\, {\tt ready}\,(\,)\,$ function. Any code inside that function is executed:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
               "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<script src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script>
$(document).ready(function(){
var myImage= $('img').attr('src');
$('div').text(myImage);
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<img src= "images/home.gif" height="28" width="28" alt="Little house">
<div></div>
</body>
</html>
```

You use jQuery functions to grab the src attribute from an element and display that attribute as text in a <div> element. More specifically, the ready() function contains commands to first locate the element and save the src attribute value in the myImage variable. The next line uses a selector to locate the <div> tag and sets the text inside the <div> element to the value stored in the myImage variable. All this code takes place when the HTML code in the page is loaded. Images and other media may still be loading, but as soon as the HTML code has loaded, the ready() event will fire.



In the examples in this chapter, the event code is placed inside the ready() function. You can leave out the ready() function and include only the code inside it, but it's a good practice to make sure the HTML code is loaded before you allow any other code to execute. Putting your event code inside the ready() function ensures that all the HTML code is present.

Handling Events

Being able to tell when visitors to your page do something, such as moving their mouse over a link or double-clicking an image, is how your Web page becomes *dynamic*. The elements on your page respond to what visitors do.

Before jQuery, you detected events with JavaScript code. However, you had to write a lot of code, and each browser type required different code. For example, the code to detect mouse actions in the current version of Internet Explorer differs from the code for the current version of Safari. Fortunately, jQuery takes care of browser differences for you. With jQuery, the same code works no matter which browser your visitor uses. And you need just a line or two of code rather than many lines.

In this section, you take a look at some specific events and how to use them to make your Web page respond to your visitor's actions.

Clicking and double-clicking

One of the most common events you want to detect is when an element on your Web page is clicked. The following example shows you how you make an alert box open when someone clicks text on your page:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:



You can download this code from www.dummies.com/go/jquery. If you do create this file yourself, make sure you include a <div> element with the class="clickme" attribute and text between the open and close <div> tags.

- 2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.
- 3. Click the text in the <div> element (see Figure 4-1). Nothing happens.
- 4. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('.clickme').click(function() {
    alert('You clicked on something.');
});
```

</html>

A selector attaches the click event to the clickme class. You can name your class whatever you want.



Chapter 3 shows you how to use a selector to find all elements on a page with a specific class attribute. Keep in mind that you can use any of the selectors in Chapter 3 with the events discussed in this chapter.

5. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

6. Click the text.

An alert box pops up in response to the click event, as shown in Figure 4-2.

The problem with using a click event with something such as text on a Web page is that visitors to your page won't know that it's something they can click. In general, the click event should be used with things that look like they are clickable, such as buttons or images that act like buttons.

In the following example, we use a small image as a button. This example uses the dblclick event, which means the element has to be double-clicked to execute the event code:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                           "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
 <head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div class="clickme"><img src="images/home.gif"></div>
</body>
</html>
```



This code uses the home.gif image in the images directory inside my Web directory. See Chapter 1 for more information on how the files in this book's examples are organized.

- 2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.
- 3. Click the text in the <div> element (refer to Figure 4-3); nothing happens.





Part I: Getting Started with jQuery



4. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('.clickme').dblclick(function() {
    alert('You double-clicked on something.');
});
```

A selector attaches the dblclick event to elements that have a class value of clickme. The <div> element has a clickme class and contains an img element.

5. Save this file, and then open it in your browser. Double-click the image.

An alert box pops up in response to the double-click event, as shown in Figure 4-4.



The <div> element with the clickme class is now clickable. Double-clicking the <div> element, which includes everything inside it, will open an alert box.

You aren't limited to using alert boxes in response to events. In later chapters, you find out how to make elements appear, disappear, fade out, animate, and do other effects. Any effect you can use in jQuery can be used in response to an event.



Giving an element focus

An element on a Web page gains focus when you click it with the mouse or press the tab key. To see how this works, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<br/>
Last Name: <input type="text" id="textbox2" /></body></html>
```

2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser. Use the mouse cursor to click in each of the two text boxes.

As you click each text box, note the small cursor. When you click in a text box, it becomes the current focus.

- **3.** Press the tab key on your keyboard several times to see the focus change.
- 4. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('#textbox2').focus(function() {
   alert('textbox2 has focus');
});
```

5. Save this file, and then reload the page in your browser. Click inside the bottom text box.

An alert box pops up in response to the focus event, as shown in Figure 4-5. You can also use the tab key to give this text box focus.





This example uses an id attribute as the selector rather than a class selector. You can use many other selectors as well. Refer to Chapter 3 for more information about using selectors.

Detecting a keyboard event

It can be useful to detect when a key on the keyboard is pressed by someone visiting your site. The following events are associated with the keyboard, and you can attach events to any of them:

- ✓ keydown: A key is pressed.
- ✓ keyup: A pressed key is released.
- ✓ keypress: A key is pressed and released.

The keydown event takes place before the keyup event. If someone holds down a key and doesn't release it, the keydown event takes place. If someone presses a key and releases it, a keypress takes place.

Every key on the keyboard is associated with a numeric value. For example, A equals 65, B equals 66, and Z equals 90. These numbers are called ASCII values. You can see a chart of these values at www.ascii.cl. Now that we know these values, we can detect when a particular letter key is pressed.

To detect when someone presses and releases a specific key (the keypress event), do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code and save it:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                                "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
 <head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
Type the letter Z: <input type="text" id="textbox1" />
 </body>
 </html>
```

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('input').keypress(function (e) {
    if (e.which == 90) alert ('Z was typed.')
});
```

This code contains an if statement. The ASCII value from the keyboard is saved as e.which, and the if statement says, "If the ASCII value is equal to 90, open an alert box." The e argument contains the information about which key was pressed.



The secret to this code is all in the e argument. Each event has the event object passed into the function, which is how you know which event occurred. To find out more about key and button events, visit http://api.jquery.com/event.which/.

3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser. Type some letters, including a capital *Z*, in the input box.

An alert box pops up in response to the capital Z being typed, as shown in Figure 4-6.



Detecting a mouse event

Arguably more useful than detecting keyboard presses are the events that let you detect mouse movements. An earlier example in this chapter shows you how to detect mouse clicks and double-clicks. But you can also detect many other mouse events, including

- ✓ mousedown: The mouse button is pressed over an element.
- mouseenter: The mouse cursor enters the selected element but the element is not a child element.
- ✓ mouseleave: The mouse cursor leaves the selected element.
- ✓ mousemove: The mouse is moved.
- ✓ mouseout: The mouse cursor leaves the selected element.
- mouseover: The mouse cursor enters the selected element or any of its child elements.
- ✓ mouseup: The mouse button is released.

The following example shows you how to detect when the mouse moves over and leaves an element on the page:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code and save it:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
          "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<img src="images/home.gif" id="mouseoverme">
<div id="outputdiv">This text will change.</div>
</body>
</html>
```

This puts an image on the page with an id attribute of mouseoverme. The page also has a <div> element with the outputdiv id attribute. The <div> element is used to display text when your mouse moves over the image. 2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('#mouseoverme').mouseover(function() {
```

```
$('#outputdiv').text('You moused over the image.'); });
```

A selector attaches the mouseover event to the element with the mouseoverme id. The second line of code changes the text in the <div> element with the outputdiv id when the element is moused over.

- 3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.
- 4. Move your mouse over the image and notice how the text changes, as shown in Figure 4-7.
- 5. Add the following code below the code you added in Step 2:

```
$('#mouseoverme').mouseout(function() {
$('#outputdiv').text('You moused out of the image.'); });
```

This block of code is nearly identical to the one you added in Step 2. But instead of using the mouseover event, this code uses the mouseout event and the text that appears in the <div> element changes to indicate that you are mousing out of the element.

- 6. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.
- 7. Move your mouse over the image and out of the image and notice how the text changes, as shown in Figure 4-8.





Working with Interaction Helpers

Suppose you want to use mouseover and mouseout events together frequently, or you want to detect more than one click on an element. jQuery has two event functions to simplify both activities. They are known as interaction helpers. Think of an *interaction helper* as multiple events bundled into a single function to simplify your code.

Hovering

In the preceding example, you used two mouse events together to change the text in a <div> element: mouseover and mouseout. To make things simpler, jQuery has an event known as hover, which combines the mouseenter and mouseleave events. To use the single hover event, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code and save it:

```
</head>
<body>
<img src="images/home.gif" id="mouseoverme">
<div id="outputdiv">This text will change.</div>
</body>
</html>
```

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('#mouseoverme').hover(
function() {
$('#outputdiv').text('You moused over the image.');
},
function(){
$('#outputdiv').text('You moused out of the image.');
});
```

A selector attaches the hover event to the element with the mouseoverme id. The first function inside the hover event changes the text in the <div> element with the outputdiv id when the element is moused over. The second function changes the text in the <div> element to indicate that the mouse has moved off the image.



The syntax of the hover event is hover (over, out). The function you put in first happens when the mouseover event takes place. The function you put second, after the comma, happens when the mouseout event takes place.

Be careful with those parentheses, curly braces, semicolons, and the comma in the hover event helper.

- 3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.
- 4. Move your mouse over and off the image and notice how the text changes, as shown in Figure 4-9.



Toggling functions

The toggle event allows you to execute different code each time an element is clicked. The following example lets you customize the text in a < div> element each time a user clicks an element:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code and save it:

```
<img src="images/home.gif" id="toggleme">
<div id="outputdiv">This text will change.</div>
</body>
</html>
```

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('#toggleme').toggle(
function() {
$('#outputdiv').text('You clicked the image once.');
},
function(){
$('#outputdiv').text('You clicked the image twice.');
},
function(){
$('#outputdiv').text('You clicked the image three times.');
});
```

A selector attaches the toggle event to the element with the toggleme id. The first function inside the toggle event changes the text in the <div> element containing the outputdiv id value when you click the element the first time. The second function changes the text in the <div> element the second time you click the image, and the third function changes the text in the <div> element a third time.



The syntax of the hover event is toggle(function1, function2, function3, function4, ...). The function you put in first happens when the click event first takes place. The function you put in second, after the comma, happens when the click event takes place again, and so on.

- 3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.
- 4. Click the image repeatedly and notice how the text changes, as shown in Figure 4-10.

When you reach the end of the list of functions, the first toggle function executes again.



Part I: Getting Started with jQuery _____

Part II Affecting Elements with Effects



'Why don't you try blurring the brimstone and then putting a nice glow effect around the hellfire."

In this part . . .

Here's where you get to make elements in your pages do magic tricks. Hide them, show them, fade them in and out, and even make them move across the page. It's your turn to pull the rabbit out of your hat.

Chapter 5

Playing Hide-and-Seek with Web Page Elements

In This Chapter

- Hiding elements
- Showing hidden elements
- ▶ Toggling element visibility

Two common, impressive effects often used on Web pages are hiding visible page elements and showing hidden page elements. In this chapter, you find out how to use jQuery to make Web page elements disappear, appear, and toggle between being visible and invisible.



To trigger the hiding or showing of an element, you'll probably want to use an event, such as a button press or an image being moused over. This chapter uses simple events such as the ones discussed in Chapter 4.

Hiding Elements with jQuery

You can hide elements on a page as a result of an event. The examples in this section show you how to hide an element using a variety of selectors and events.

Hiding an element by type with a button

The following example shows you how you make everything inside <div> elements disappear when a user clicks a button on your page:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
    "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
```

```
<html>
  <head>
 <title>My Test Page</title>
 <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
 $(document).ready(function(){
 //Your code goes here.
});
 </script>
 </head>
 <body>
 <div>This will be hidden.</div>
 <div>This will be hidden.</div>
 <input value="Hide" type="submit">
 </bodv>
 </html>
```

This code contains two <div> elements and a button.

- 2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.
- 3. Note the text in the <div> elements, shown in Figure 5-1. Click the button; nothing happens.
- 4. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').hide();
});
```

Quite a few things are going on here. The code says, "When the button is clicked, hide everything in the <div> elements." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event to set up the action. The hide function, used with the <div> selector, hides both <div> elements.



Chapter 3 shows you how to use selectors, and Chapter 4 shows you how to use an event, such as the click event.

5. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

6. Click the button.

Everything in both <div> elements is now hidden, as shown in Figure 5-2.

When you clicked the button in this example, you hid all the elements that contained the <div> selector in the page. In general, it makes sense instead to pinpoint a specific element to hide as the result of an event.



You can assign an id to any HTML element you want. You can also use a class selector if you want to select several elements on a page. Check out Chapter 3 for more information on selectors.

Chapter 5: Playing Hide-and-Seek with Web Page Elements



Hiding an element by id when clicked

The next example shows you how you make everything inside a <div> element with an id disappear when someone clicks that <div> element:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                             "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
 <html>
 <head>
 <title>My Test Page</title>
 <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
 $(document).ready(function(){
 //Your code goes here.
});
 </script>
 </head>
 <body>
 <div id="hideme">This will be hidden.</div>
 <div>This will not be hidden.</div>
 </body>
 </html>
```

This code contains a < div> element with an id attribute named hideme. Unlike the preceding example, there is no button.

2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.

Note the text in the <div> elements, as shown in Figure 5-3.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('#hideme').click(function () {
    $('#hideme').hide();
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, hide the element with the hideme id." The code uses the :submit selector and the click event to set up the action. The hide function, used with an id selector, hides the element with the hideme id.

4. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

5. Click the first line of text, "This will be hidden."

Everything in both <div> elements is now hidden, as shown in Figure 5-4.

Note that the second <div> element moves up on the page. When you hide an element, it is not only invisible but also behaves as though it were removed from the page. All the page elements below it move up.

Chapter 5: Playing Hide-and-Seek with Web Page Elements



Hiding an element by using the this keyword

Take another look at the code you used in the preceding example:

```
$('#hideme').click(function () {
    $('#hideme').hide();
});
```

The outer click event is selecting the hideme id. The inner hide function is also selecting the same hideme id. The following code uses the special this keyword with the hide function and works the same way as the preceding code:

```
$('#hideme').click(function () {
    $(this).hide();
});
```

After you select the class id, or use any other selector, functions inside the code block can use the this keyword to refer to the selected elements. To test this, repeat the example in the preceding section, but replace '#hideme' with this in the code in Step 3. Note that you don't use quotes when you use this.

Hiding an element with animation

By default, when you hide an element, it disappears instantly. The hide function allows you to animate the effect, making it appear as though the element is fading out. To add fade out animations when an element hides, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div id="slowhide">This will be hidden slowly.</div>
<div id="fasthide">This will be hidden quickly.</div>
<div>This will not be hidden.</div>
<input value="Hide" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains a button and three <div> elements, two with ids.

- 2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.
- 3. Note the text in the <div> elements, as shown in Figure 5-5. Click the button; nothing happens.
- 4. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('#slowhide').hide('slow');
        $('#fasthide').hide('fast');
});
```



The code says, "When the button is clicked, use a slow speed to hide the element with the slowhide id. Hide the element with the fasthide id quickly." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event to set up the action.



jQuery has two predefined speeds — slow and fast. You can also use a number that representing the number of milliseconds during which you want the animation to occur. For example, if I want a very slow animation, I can replace the line

```
$('#slowhide').hide('slow');
```

with

\$('#slowhide').hide(1000);

Note that you don't use quotes when you use a number. Also, the number 1000 is very slow. Just for fun, try the example using 10000. The fade out is really, really slow. If you don't provide a speed, the default is 400.

5. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.

6. Click the button.

The <div> elements hide at different rates of speed and the button and remaining <div> element move up, as shown in Figure 5-6.



Showing Elements with jQuery

Showing hidden page elements is similar to hiding page elements, except you have to have something to display, that is, you must have elements hidden before you can show them. In this section, the example code contains hidden elements that appear in response to events.

Showing an element by id

The following example demonstrates how you make a hidden < div> element with an id appear when someone clicks a button on your page:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
           "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div id="showme" style="display:none">This will appear.</div>
<input value="Show" type="submit"></body>
</html>
```

This code contains a <div> element with an id attribute named showme. This <div> element is set as hidden using the CSS style attribute set to display:none.

2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.

The <div> element does not appear on the page, as shown in Figure 5-7.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('#showme').show();
});
```

Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects



The code says, "When the button is clicked, show the element with the showme id." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event to set up the action. The show function, with an id selector, displays the element with the showme id.

4. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

5. Click the button.

The hidden <div> element is now visible, as shown in Figure 5-8.

Note how the now-visible <div> element shifted the button lower. When a hidden element becomes visible, it behaves as though it were added to the page. All the page elements below it move down. This action is called a *browser repaint*.



Showing an element with animation

When you show a hidden element, it disappears instantly. As with the hide function, the show function allows you to make it appear as though the element is fading in. To add fade in animations when elements are displayed, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
//Your code goes here.
```

```
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div id="slowshow" style="display:none">This will be shown slowly.</div>
<div id="fastshow" style="display:none">This will be shown guickly.</div>
<input value="Show" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains two <div> elements and a button.

2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.

Note that the text in the <div> elements is not visible, as shown in Figure 5-9.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('#slowshow').show(2000);
    $('#fastshow').show(500);
});
```



The code says, "When the button is clicked, show the element with the slowshow id at a speed of 2000 milliseconds. Show the element with the fastshow id at a speed of 500 milliseconds." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event to set up the action.

You can use the three predefined speeds — slow, medium, and fast — or a number representing the number of milliseconds during which you want the animation to occur.

4. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

5. Click the button.

The <div> elements appear at different rates of speed and the button moves down, as shown in Figure 5-10.



Toggling Visibility with jQuery

Being able to show and hide elements is handy, but what happens when you want to swap back and forth between hiding and showing an element? The toggle function handles these tasks for you.



Using a toggle

The following example shows you how to make everything inside <div> elements toggle between hidden and shown when someone repeatedly clicks a button on your page:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                         "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
 <html>
 <head>
 <title>My Test Page</title>
 <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
 $(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
 </script>
 </head>
 <body>
 <div>This will be hidden.</div>
 <div>This will be hidden.</div>
 <input value="Toggle" type="submit">
 </body>
 </html>
```

This code contains two <div> elements and a button.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').toggle();
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, hide all <div> elements if they are shown, and show them if they are hidden." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event to set up the action. The toggle function, used with the <div> selector, toggles both <div> elements.

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

Everything in both < div > elements is now hidden the first time you click, as shown in Figure 5-11.



- 5. Click the button again to make everything in the <div> elements reappear.
- 6. Locate the second <div> in the <body> section of the code and replace it with this line:

<div style="display:none">This is initially hidden.</div>

This hides the second <div> element when the page loads.

7. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

8. Click the button.

You now see only the first < div> element when you load the page. Clicking the button makes the first < div> element disappear and the second one appear, as shown in Figure 5-12.

9. Click the button again to toggle the two <div> elements.

Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects



Toggling with animation

You can toggle with animation by adding a speed setting to the toggle function, just as you can with the hide and show functions. To animate the toggle function, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:
```
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div>This will be an animated toggle.</div>
<input value="Toggle" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').toggle('slow');
});
```

The toggle function in this code is set to a slow speed.

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The < div> element now fades out or fades in slowly each time you click the button, as shown in Figure 5-13.



Using a callback function

All three effects in this chapter — hide, show, and toggle — allow you to add a callback function. A *callback function* is code that executes after the effect is finished. Here's an example of code using a callback function that opens an alert box after you toggle an element:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                            "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
  <html>
 <head>
 <title>My Test Page</title>
 <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
 $(document).ready(function(){
 //Your code goes here.
});
 </script>
 </head>
 <bodv>
 <div>This will be an animated toggle.</div>
 <input value="Toggle" type="submit">
 </bodv>
  </html>
```

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').toggle('slow',
function callback() {
    alert('The toggle is finished')
});
});
```



This code executes an animated toggle on any < div> elements. When the toggle animation is finished, an alert box appears.

Take a close look at the syntax of the callback function. The toggle function uses the following syntax:

```
toggle(speed, function callback(){};)
```

If you don't want to animate your toggle, you can delete the ${\tt speed}$ setting and use this code:

```
toggle(function callback(){};)
```

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The < div> element now fades out or fades in slowly each time you click the button. Then the callback function opens the alert box, indicating that the effect has finished, as shown in Figure 5-14.



You can use callback functions with the show and hide functions as well as the toggle function.



Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects

Chapter 6 Sliding and Fading Web Page Elements

In This Chapter

- Sliding elements up and down
- Controlling the sliding speed
- Fading elements in and out
- Making elements translucent

Two impressive effects that jQuery make easy to accomplish are fading and sliding. When an element fades, it goes from fully opaque to semitransparent or completely transparent. When an element slides, it slowly appears on the page, starting from the top down or the bottom up.

.

In this chapter, you find out how to slide and fade elements, and also how to control the speed at which these effects happen. You also see how to use a callback function, which is code that executes after the effect is finished.

Sliding Elements with jQuery

The *sliding* effect means an element becomes visible from either the top down or the bottom up. Nothing moves on the page except the element as it becomes visible.



Both the sliding down and sliding up effects are more impressive when you use them with images or blocks with a background color, so the examples in this chapter use <div> blocks with background colors and images to demonstrate the effects.

Sliding down

To make a page element appear to slide down, you first need to hide the element. To hidean element, you set its style attribute to display=none.



Most of the examples in this chapter use images and are more impressive when the image is large. If you don't have a large image file saved to your test images directory, you can grab one from the following:

```
http://media.wiley.com/spa_assets/site/dummies2/include/images/bg/hp-header-bg.
gif
```

Browse to this location and choose File Save As. Save the image to the images directory you are using to test your code, as created in Chapter 1. Name the image big.gif.

To make an element appear on a page using the sliding down effect, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                        "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div style="display:none"><img src="images/big.gif" /> </div>
<input value="Slide Down" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains a hidden <div> element with an image and a button.

- 2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.
- **3.** Note that the image doesn't appear (see Figure 6-1). Click the button; nothing happens.



4. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').slideDown();
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, make everything in the <div> element appear using the slideDown effect." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event to set up the action.



Chapter 3 shows you how to use selectors, and Chapter 4 shows you how to use an event, such as the click event.

5. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

6. Click the button.

The slideDown effect makes the image in the hidden < div> element appear from the top down, as shown in Figure 6-2.

Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects



Sliding up

The slide up effect hides an element by making it slide up.

To make an element disappear on a page by using the slide up effect, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<body>
<div><img src="images/big.gif" /> </div>
<input value="Slide Up" type="submit"></body>
</html>
```

This code contains a <div> element with an image and a button.

2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.

Note that the image appears, as shown in Figure 6-3.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').slideUp();
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, make everything in the <div> disappear using the slideUp effect." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event.

4. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

5. Click the button.

The slideUp effect makes the image in the <div> element slide up and then disappear from view, as shown in Figure 6-4.



ents

95

Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects



Changing the slide speed

You can control the speed of the slide up or slide down effect with the speed setting. jQuery has three predefined speeds: slow, medium, and fast. You can also use a number that represents the number of milliseconds during which you want the animation to occur. For example, if I want a very slow slide up, I can use the line

```
$('div').slideUp('slow');
```

or

\$('div').slideUp(1000);

Note that you don't use quotes when you use a number. Also, the number 1000 is very slow. The slide down effect operates the same way.

Sliding with a toggle effect

The slide up and slide down effects work together to hide and show elements. You can use the slide toggle effect to allow a visitor to toggle between an event sliding up and sliding down. To use the slide toggle effect, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
           "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div><img src="images/big.gif" /></div>
<input value="Slide Toggle" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains a button and a visible $<\!\texttt{div}\!>$ element containing an image.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').slideToggle();
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, toggle all <div> elements to slide up if they are shown and slide down if they are hidden." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event to set up the action. The toggle function toggles the <div> elements.

- 3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.
- 4. Click the button.

Everything in the $<\!\texttt{div}\!>$ element slides up the first time you click, as shown in Figure 6-5.

5. Click the button again to make everything in the <div> element slide down.

Sliding with a callback function

The slide up, slide down, and slide toggle effects allow you to use a *callback* function, which is code that executes after the effect is finished. Here's an example of code using a callback function that opens an alert box after an element is toggled:



1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
            "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div><img src="images/big.gif" /></div>
<input value="Slide Toggle" type="submit">
</bodv>
</html>
```

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
   $('div').slideToggle(
  function callback() {
```

```
alert('The slide effect is finished')
});
});
```

This code executes a slide toggle on any <div> elements. When the slide animation is finished, an alert box appears. The slide toggle function uses the following syntax:

```
slideToggle(speed, function callback(){};)
```

If you don't want to animate your toggle, you can delete the speed setting and use the following code:

slideToggle(function callback(){};)

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The <div> element now slides up or down each time you click the button. Then the callback function opens the alert box, indicating that the effect has finished, as shown in Figure 6-6.



You can use callback functions with the slide up and slide down effects as well as the slide toggle function.



Fading Elements with jQuery

The *fade effect* is when an element fades out by becoming increasingly transparent over time until it disappears or fades in by becoming less transparent. jQuery has fade out and fade in effects and also allows you to partially fade an element, making it semitransparent.

Fading in

To make a page element fade in, it needs to first be hidden. You do this by setting the style attribute of the element to display=none.



To follow along with these exercises, you need an image in the images directory that you are using to test your code. Name this image big.gif.

To make an element appear to fade in, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                       "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
 <html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function() {
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div style="display:none"><img src="images/big.gif" /> </div>
<input value="Fade In" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains a button and a hidden < div> element with an image.

2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.

The image doesn't appear (see Figure 6-7).



3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').fadeIn();
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, make everything in the <div> fade in." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event.

4. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

5. Click the button.

The image in the hidden <div> element appears to fade in, as shown in Figure 6-8.

6. Replace \$('div').fadeIn(); with the following code:

\$('div').fadeIn('fast');

Now when you save and reload this file in your browser and click the button, the fade in effect occurs more quickly.

102 Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects



Fading out

The fade out effect takes a visible element and hides it by making it appear to fade out.

To make an element disappear on a page using the fade out effect, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
            "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function() {
//Your code goes here.
```

```
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div><img src="images/big.gif" /> </div>
<input value="Fade Out" type="submit"></body>
</html>
```

This code contains a button and a <div> element with an image.

2. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.

The image is visible, as shown in Figure 6-9.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').fadeOut();
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, make everything in the <div> element disappear using the slideUp effect." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event.



4. Save this file, and then reload it in your browser.

5. Click the button.

The image in the <div> element fades out and disappears from view (see Figure 6-10).



Partial fading

jQuery has a fade effect that allows an element to fade a certain amount and become transparent. The function syntax is

fadeTo(speed, percent, [callback]);

The percent is expressed as a decimal and is used to control how much to fade out the element. For example, if you want to make something fade out halfway, you use .5 for the percent value.



The callback function is optional, but you must specify a speed and a percent. Unlike other effects, the duration must be specified.

To make an element partially fade out, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

</html> 2. Save the file.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').fadeTo('slow', .55);
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, make everything in the <div> element fade out at 50 percent."

4. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

5. Click the button.

The image in the <div> element appears to partially fade out, as shown in Figure 6-11.

Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects



Chapter 7

Animating Web Page Elements

In This Chapter

- Animating height and width
- Animating font size and word spacing
- Stopping animations dynamically
- ▶ Controlling animation speed

Chapter 5 shows you how to animate the hiding and showing of Web page elements. Chapter 6 discusses more animation effects: sliding and fading. In addition to those preprogrammed effects, jQuery allows you to easily animate many CSS style settings of elements. These style settings include the font size, height, and width of an image or the <div> element. In fact, any CSS value that is numeric can be animated. With jQuery animation, you can make page elements grow larger or smaller over time or move across the page.

.

In this chapter, you discover how to animate elements and element attributes, such as height and width. You also see how to control the speed of animations and how to stop and start them in response to events.

Understanding How jQuery Animation Works

jQuery allows you to animate a number of CSS style settings associated with HTML elements. Consider the following code:

This code creates a gray box with a thick, dotted red border, as shown in Figure 7-1.

$m{8}$ Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects $_$

]	🗯 Grab File Edit Captur	re Window Help	126 🖗 😗 奈 ♦	Mon 9:27 PM \$ Q
	000	My Test Page		0
		file:///Applications/webtest/7-1.html	\$\$¥)·@	Google Q
	My Test Page	+		ź
	My div	Source of file////A	unlications/webtest/7_1 html	-
		<head> <title>Ny Test Page</title> </head> <body> <div style="width:200px; height:200
</body> 	px; background-color: gray; border:	:10px; bord-
Figure 7-1: CSS styles assigned to		4))+
a <div></div>				
element.	Done			*/
	LE BOODLA	🖉 💭 💽 💫 Ps 🖗 🔨 Fw 😛 🖉 Dw S		0

The <div> element in this code is associated with the following styles:

- ✓ width: The width of the <div> in pixels
- ✓ height: The height of the <div> in pixels
- ✓ border: The thickness of the border around the <div> in pixels
- ✓ background-color: The color of the <div>
- ✓ border-color: The color of the border
- ✓ border-style: The appearance of the border

jQuery can animate the width, height, and border. These are all numeric values, so they can grow or shrink.



Limitations exist about what can be animated. jQuery can't change a style setting from one color to another in an animation. Nor can it change the style of a border. However, you can use a plug-in to animate colors. For more information, go to http://plugins.jquery.com/project/color.

Here's an example of code that animates the height and width of a <div> element. Give it a try to get your feet wet. An explanation of what it does follows:

108

```
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
   $(':submit').click(function(){
      $('div').animate({
              width: '280px',
              height: '140px'
     });
   });
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div style="width:200px; height:200px; background-color: gray; border:10px">My
              div</div>
<br />
<input value="Animate" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code animates the <div> element, changing the width from 200px to 280px and the height from 200px to 140px, as shown in Figure 7-2.

The heart of this code is the animate function. A simple form of the jQuery animate function syntax is

```
animate(params, duration, callback)
```

The three parts of the function are

✓ params: A comma-delimited list of style rules to animate. For example:

```
width: '100px', right: '600px'
```

- duration: An optional argument controlling the speed of the animation. Acceptable values are slow, medium, fast, or a numeric value representing the speed in milliseconds.
- callback: An optional code that executes after the animation has completed.

An optional easing argument specifies whether the animation gets faster near the end or begins faster and then slows down. Easing requires an additional plug-in. Read more about it at jquery.com.



110 Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects





When you're looking at jQuery code samples, you might notice that jQuery style elements are sometimes named slightly differently than CSS style elements. Whereas a CSS style uses a hyphen (for example, border-width), the jQuery version omits the hyphen, runs the words together, and capitalizes the second word (for example, borderWidth). jQuery can use either version.

The practice of capitalizing the second word of two words run together, such as borderWidth, is known as *camel case* because the capital letter makes the expression look like it has a hump in the middle, like a camel. I didn't make this up!

Here are a few more common styles that can be animated with jQuery. The camel case and hyphenated versions both work with jQuery.

- borderWidth (border-width): The width of the four borders. You can also set each border width individually with border-bottom-width, border-left-width, border-right-width, and border-top-width.
- ✓ height: The height of an element.
- ✓ width: The width of an element.
- fontSize (font-size): The font size of text.
- margin: The margin of an element. You can also set each margin individually with margin-bottom, margin-left, margin-right, and margin-top.

- padding: Padding, or space around an element. You can also pad each side individually with padding-bottom, padding-left, paddingright, and padding-top.
- ✓ bottom: The bottom margin edge for a positioned box.
- ✓ left: The left margin edge for a positioned box.
- ✓ right: The right margin edge for a positioned box.
- ✓ top: The top margin edge for a positioned box.
- wordSpacing (word-spacing): An increase or a decrease in the space between words.

Animating Elements with jQuery

This section contains examples of different types of elements and CSS styles that jQuery can animate. Keep in mind that you can mix and match many of the styles with different elements. For example, you can use the width style with both a <div> element and an element.

Animating height and width

To animate an element's height and width, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
          "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div style="width:200px; height:200px;
background-color: gray; border:10px">My div</div>
<br />
<input value="Animate" type="submit"></body>
</html>
```

This code contains a <div> element and a button.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function(){
   $('div').animate({
          width: '280px', height: '500px'
           });
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, make the <div> element animate to 280px wide and 500px high." This code uses the :submit selector and the click event to set up the action.

Chapter 3 shows you how to use selectors, and Chapter 4 shows you how to use an event, such as the click event.

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The <div> element animates and grows from 200px by 200px to 280px by 600px, as shown in Figure 7-3.

5. Replace width: '280px', height: '500px' with

width: '20px', height: '50px'

This makes the original <div> element shrink instead of grow.





6. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

7. Click the button.

The <div> element animates and shrinks from 200px by 200px to 20px by 50px, as shown in Figure 7-4. Note that the text inside the <div> element wraps to fit inside the smaller space.



Animating margin width and padding

To animate an element's margin and padding, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div style="width:200px; height:200px;
background-color: gray; border:10px">My div</div>
<br />
<input value="Animate" type="submit"></body>
</html>
```

This code contains a <div> element and a button.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function(){
   $('div').animate({
          margin: '50px'
           });
 });
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, animate the <div> element's margin to 50px in width."

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The <div> element's margin animates and grows from 0 to 50px, as shown in Figure 7-5.



5. Replace margin: '50px' with

padding:'50px'

This code makes the padding — the space inside the <div> — grow.

6. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

7. Click the button.

The padding inside the < div> element animates and grows from 0 to 50px, as shown in Figure 7-6. Note that the text inside the < div> element is no longer flush with the upper-left corner.



Animating opacity

jQuery allows you to animate the opacity of elements and make them appear to fade to and from a semitransparent state. To animate opacity, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div class="fadethis" style="width:200px; height:200px;</pre>
background-color: red; border:10px">My div</div>
<br />
<img class="fadethis" src = "images/home.gif" />
<br />
<input value="Animate" type="submit"></body>
</html>
```



This code contains a <div> element and an image, both with the same class, fademe.

You can name classes anything you want. Classes give you the ability to easily select multiple elements with the same selector.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function() {
  $('.fadethis').animate({
       opacity: 0.25
     });
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, animate all elements of the fademe class to .25 opacity (25 percent)."

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

Both the <div> element and the element animate and fade to 25 percent opacity, as shown in Figure 7-7.



Animating font size and word spacing

To animate shrinking or growing text and change the spacing between words, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<body>
<div>I'd like to say a few short words.</div>
<br />
<input value="Animate" type="submit"></body>
</html>
```

This code contains a <div> element with some text.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function() {
   $('div').animate({
        fontSize: '100px'
      });
});
```

Although you're changing the CSS style known as font-size, make sure you use fontSize when you use the animate function.

The code says, "When the button is clicked, animate the text in the <div> element, increasing it to a font size of 100px."

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The text in the <div> element animates and grows to 100px, as shown in Figure 7-8.





5. Replace fontSize: '100px' with

wordSpacing: '50px'

- 6. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.
- 7. Click the button.

The space between each word in the <div> element animates and increases, as shown in Figure 7-9.



Controlling Animation Duration

You can control the length of any animation with the duration parameter. You can use the predefined speeds slow or fast. Or you can use a number that represents the number of milliseconds during which you want the animation to occur. For example, if I want a very slow animation of a change in word spacing, as in the preceding example, I can use the code or

```
$('div').animate({
       fontSize: '100px'
      }, 'slow');
$('div').animate({
       fontSize: '100px'
      }, 1000);
```

Note that you don't use quotes when you use a number, and that you need a comma before the duration setting and after the curly brace in both instances.

Animating with Show, Hide, and Toggle

In Chapter 5, you discover how to use the show, hide, and toggle effects. They can be used also inside the animate function in place of a numeric value for a style. For example, the following code uses the toggle effect to hide and then show a <div> element:

```
<head>
 <title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
  $(document).ready(function(){
                  $(':submit').click(function(){
                                 $('div').animate({
                                                                           width: 'toggle',
                                 });
                      });
 });
  </script>
  </head>
 <body>
  <div style="width:200px; height:200px; background-color: gray; border:10px">My
                                                                             div</div>
  <br />
  <input value="Animate" type="submit">
  </body>
```

The first time you click the Animate button, the width shrinks until the <div> element vanishes. Clicking the button again makes the element expand and reappear.

Disabling All jQuery Animation

It's sometimes useful to provide a way to stop animations. The stop function lets you stop an animation. The following code calls a stop function whenever you click the Stop button:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
               "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
$('#gobtn').click(function(){
   $('div').animate({
        fontSize: '100px'
     },3000);
});
$('#stopbtn').click(function() {
  $('div').stop();
});
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div>I'd like to say a few short words.</div>
<br />
<input id="gobtn" value="Animate" type="submit"><br />
<input id="stopbtn" value="Stop" type="submit"></body>
</html>
```

This code contains a <div> element with text and two buttons. The first button, with the gobtn id attribute, triggers the animate function and makes the text size increase at a slow rate (3000 milliseconds) with the following code:

```
$('#gobtn').click(function(){
    $('div').animate({
        fontSize: '100px'
        },3000);
});
```

The second button, with the stopbtn id attribute, triggers the stop function when you click the button.



If you click the Go button after clicking the Stop button, the animation resumes where it left off.

Part II: Affecting Elements with Effects _____
<u>Part III</u> Manipulating Your Web Page



Mary-Jo, come here quick! Look at this special effect I learned with jQuery."

In this part . . .

What you say on your Web page matters. And jQuery lets you change what you say dynamically in response to user events such as clicking or mousing over things. You can even grab what your visitor types in forms. This section is all about getting content from your Web page and dynamically adding, editing, and deleting content on your Web page.

And if that wasn't enough, you find out how to replace, remove, and copy any HTML element or group of elements on your page. jQuery gives you total power over the content of your Web pages.

Chapter 8 Making Web Page Content Dynamic

.

In This Chapter

- Controlling text on your page
- Changing HTML content dynamically
- Putting an element inside another elements
- Placing content outside elements
- ▶ Wrapping elements around elements
- Getting values from form elements
- Changing the order of elements

Previous chapters discuss adding animation to your pages and hiding content. But jQuery goes far beyond special effects when it comes to making your pages dynamic. With jQuery, you can easily change the content on a Web page without reloading the page. Text and image content can be changed in response to an event, such as an animation completing, a link being clicked, or a cursor moving over an element.

Getting and Setting Text Content

You can retrieve text content from any element on your page that contains text by using a selector and the text() function.



The text() function will not work with values typed into text boxes. To get values typed into form elements, use val() function, discussed later in this chapter in "Getting and Setting Form Values."

To get the text from all <div> elements when a user clicks a submit button, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<html>
 <head>
 <title>My Test Page</title>
 <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
 $(document).ready(function(){
 //Your code goes here.
});
 </script>
 </head>
 <body>
 <div>This is text from a div.</div>
 <div>This is text from a another div.</div>
 <br />
 <input value="Get Text" type="submit">
 </body>
 </html>
```

This code contains a button and two <div> elements, each with text.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
alert( $('div').text() );
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, display the text from all <div> elements in an alert box."

EMEMBER

Chapter 3 shows you how to use selectors, and Chapter 4 shows you how to use an event, such as the mouseover event.

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The text from both <div> elements appears in an alert box, as shown in Figure 8-1.

When you get text, you pull it in from an element of your page into your code. You can also go the other way and change or set the text in response to an event. To change the text in all <div> elements when the user clicks a submit button, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the same code as in Step 1 of the preceding exercise.

2. Change

<input value="Get Text" type="submit">

```
to
```

```
<input value="Set Text" type="submit">
```

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
  $('div').text('This is new text.') ;
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, set the text of all < div > elements to the text in quotes in the text() function."

4. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

5. Click the button.

The text in both <div> elements changes, as shown in Figure 8-2.



${m 8}$ Part III: Manipulating Your Web Page



Getting and Setting HTML Content

As with getting and setting text content, you can also get and set any HTML code from any element on your page by using a selector and the html() function.

To select the HTML inside a <div> element using an id attribute when a user clicks a submit button, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.3.2.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div id="outer">
<div>This is text from a div.</div>
<img src = "images/home.gif" />
```

```
<div>This is text from a another div.</div>
</div>
<br />
<input value="Get HTML" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains a button and a parent <div> element that contains two <div> elements and an element.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    alert( $('#outer').html() );
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, open an alert box and display the HTML inside the element with the outer id."

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The HTML from the outer <div> element appears in an alert box, as shown in Figure 8-3.

Because the HTML code is displayed in an alert box, it is displayed as just text, not as HTML. But when you set the HTML code on your page, it shows up as HTML, allowing you to control the appearance and add HTML links and images. To set HTML code in your page, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the same code as in Step 1 of the preceding exercise.

2. Below the line

```
<input value="Get HTML" type="submit">
```

add

<div id="showcode"></div>

This <div> element will be used as a place to put the HTML code.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
$('#showcode').html( $('#outer').html());
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, set the HTML inside the element with the showcode id to the HTML inside the element with the outer id."

4. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

5. Click the button.

The HTML in the bottom <div> element changes, as shown in Figure 8-4.

Part III: Manipulating Your Web Page





Getting and Setting Form Values

The text() and html() functions manipulate text and code that already exists on the page. But if you have a form and want to get the value of an input box, for example, you need to use the val() function instead.

The following example gets the text a user has entered in a text field and displays it on the page as soon as the user removes the cursor from the text field:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function() {
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<input type = "text" />
<div></div>
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains a text field and a < div> element.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':text').mouseout(function () {
    alert( $(':text').val() );
    });
```

The code says, "When the mouse cursor moves out of the text field, open an alert box and display the value inside the text field."

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Type something in the text field, and then move your cursor outside the field.

An alert box opens containing the text from the text field, as shown in Figure 8-5. This behavior is more than a little annoying. Instead of an alert box, we can display the value in the <div> element.

2 Part III: Manipulating Your Web Page



5. Change

```
alert( $(':text').val() );
```

to

\$('div').text(\$(':text').val());

- 6. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.
- 7. Type something in the text field, and then move your cursor outside the field.

Now the text field text appears in the < div> element, as shown in Figure 8-6.



To set a value in a form element, follow these steps:

- 1. Create a Web page containing the same code as in Step 1 of the preceding exercise.
- 2. Below the line

<input type = "text" />

add this code to create a select box:

```
<select id="colorselect">
<option>Red</option>
<option>Green</option>
<option>Yellow</option>
</select>
```

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('#colorselect').change(function () {
$(':text').val( ( $(this).val() ) );
});
```

The change() function detects when the value in the element with the colorselect id has changed. When the select box value has changed, this change event is triggered. The second line assigns the value from

the select box to the text field. The outer val() function assigns the value in parentheses. The inner val() function uses the this keyword to get the value from the select box.

The this JavaScript keyword means that the code should use the selector that was used in the outer function. In the case of the preceding code, this stands in for the "#colorselect" code. The this keyword doesn't need quotes, but the selector does.

4. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

5. Select one of the drop-down values.

The value in the text field changes to match what you selected, as shown in Figure 8-7.



Inserting Content Inside Elements

Sometimes the <code>html()</code> function isn't sufficient. For example, suppose you want to add content to the end of existing content. If all you have to work with is the <code>html()</code> function, you could



- 1. Grab the current content in the element.
- 2. Save this current content to a variable.
- 3. Use JavaScript concatenation to combine this content with the new content.
- 4. Use the html() function to put the new combined content back into the original element.

Fortunately, jQuery has functions that combine all four steps into a single easy operation.

Appending content

To append or add content after existing content inside an element, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<bodv>
<div>My name is</div>
<br />
<input value="Go" type="submit">
</bodv>
</html>
```

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').append(' Lynn');
    });
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, append this content to the content in the <div> element." If the <div> element is empty, the content will still be placed in the <div> element.

- 3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.
- 4. Click the button.

The content is appended, as shown in Figure 8-8.

Prepending content

The prepend function allows you to place content in front of a selected element. The following example shows you how to place content in front of an element using the prepend() function:

- 1. Create a Web page containing the code from Step 1 of the preceding exercise.
- 2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('div').append(' Lynn');
    $('div').prepend('<strong>Hi</strong>, ');
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, append this content to the content in any <div> element, then prepend content to the content in any <div> element." Note that you can use regular HTML code as well as text, as long as it's in quotes.

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The content has now been prepended and appended, as shown in Figure 8-9.

Chapter 8: Making Web Page Content Dynamic



Inserting Content Outside an Element

In addition to appending and prepending content inside elements, jQuery has a simple function that allows you to put content in front of an element or after an element. Prepending and appending functions place content inside selected elements. The before() and after() functions place content outside the selected elements.

To insert content before or after an element, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<html>
 <head>
 <title>My Test Page</title>
 <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
 $(document).ready(function(){
 //Your code goes here.
});
 </script>
 </head>
 <bodv>
 <div>Inside <img src = "images/home.gif" /> Inside</div>
 <br />
 <input value="Go" type="submit">
 </body>
 </html>
```

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
   $('div').before('Before<br />');
   $('div').after('<br />After');
  });
```

One of the nicest things about jQuery is the sensible way functions are named. It's easy to figure out that the before() function places content before the <div> element and the after() function places content after the <div> element.

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The content has been placed before and after the $<\!\texttt{div}\!>$ element, as shown in Figure 8-10.



Moving Elements Around

You can also move elements before or after other elements using the insert-Before() and insertAfter() functions, respectively. For example, suppose your page has an image and a <div> element, in that order, but you want the image to follow the <div> element after a button is clicked. Do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<img src="images/home.gif" />
<div>Move the house!</div>
<br />
<input value="Go" type="submit">
```

</body> </html>

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
  $('div').insertBefore('img');
  });
```

The insertBefore() function places the <div> element before the element.



The code is case sensitive. You must use the camel case capitalization with these two functions (insertBefore() and insertAfter()); otherwise the code will not work.

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The < div> element is placed before the < img> element, as shown in Figure 8-11.





We could have used the insertAfter() function in the preceding example like so:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
  $('img').insertAfter('div');
 });
```

This code says to put the element after the <div> element.

Wrapping Content Around an Element

You can wrap an element around an element on the page with the wrap() function. For example, the following code inserts a <div> element with a red background color around each <div> element on the page when a user clicks a button:

```
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
$(':submit').click(function () {
$('div').wrap('<div style=background-color:red;></div>');
});
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div>Color me red.</div>
<br />
<div>Me too.</div>
<br />
<input value="Go" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code wraps a red <div> element around each <div> element when you click the button, as shown in Figure 8-12.

Another function will wrap an element around all matching elements. Suppose that you wanted to make both <div> elements in the preceding code wrapped by a single red <div> element. Replace the wrap() function with the wrapAll() function, as shown in Figure 8-13.

The final function in the wrap family is wrapInner(). This function wraps all the child elements of the selected element with the specified HTML code.

Part III: Manipulating Your Web Page



Chapter 9

Replacing, Removing, and Copying Web Page Elements

In This Chapter

- Replacing HTML elements with other elements
- Deleting elements selectively
- Cloning elements and events
- Copying elements without events

n Chapter 8, you find out how to change the content on your page. This chapter focuses on locating elements and replacing them, removing them, or copying them elsewhere on the page in response to an event.

.

Replacing Elements

jQuery has two functions that let you replace elements. These two functions, replaceWith() and replaceAll(), allow you to select elements, specify what you want to replace them with, and replace them.

Replacing an element with replaceWith ()

Suppose you have a element that you want to turn into a <div> element with formatting in response to a click event. To accomplish this task, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

This code contains a button and a element with child elements.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. line with the following code:

```
$(":submit").click(function () {
   $("p").replaceWith("<div>I am a div</div>") ;
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, select all $<\!\!\rm p\!\!>$ elements and replace each with the $<\!\!\rm div\!\!>$ element."

3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The element is now a <div> element, but all the child elements that were in the element are replaced with the text *I am a div*, as shown in Figure 9-1.

Replacing a parent element while retaining child elements

In the preceding example, the replaceWith() function replaced all selected elements with the content in parentheses. Although this behavior is sometimes useful, it usually makes more sense to keep the current HTML in the element you're replacing so that it appears in the new element.

You can retain the original child elements from the element you're replacing by using the html() function and placing that captured code into the new element. To do this, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the same code used in Step 1 of the preceding example.



2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(":submit").click(function () {
    $("p").replaceWith() ;
    });
```

3. Add this line of code inside the parentheses of the replaceWith() function:

```
"<div style=background-color:#aaaaaa>" + $("p").html() + "</div>"
```

STURE STURE

the HTML that is in the element into the new <div> element."
The html() function grabs the content from the element before the
replaceWith() function changes the element to a <div> element.

Make sure you include the quotes. This code changes the element

to a <div> element with the preceding CSS style code. It also says, "Put

4. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

5. Click the button.

The $<_{p}>$ element is now a gray $<_{div}>$ element surrounding the HTML that used to be in the $<_{p}>$ element, as shown in Figure 9-2.

146 Part III: Manipulating Your Web Page



Figure 9-2: The element becomes a <div> element with child elements.

Replacing an element with replaceAll()

The replaceWith() and replaceAll() functions do the same thing, but their syntax differs. For example, the following code uses replaceAll() to replace a element with a formatted <div> element:

- 1. Create a Web page containing the same code used in Step 1 of the preceding example.
- 2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(":submit").click(function () {
$().replaceAll("p") ;
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, call the replaceAll() function." The code inside the replaceAll() function is the selector. The function still needs code in the empty parentheses in front of it. The code needs to say, "Replace the element with a <div> element with a gray background color."

3. Add the following line of code inside the empty parentheses in front of the replaceWith function:

```
"<div style=background-color:#aaaaaa>" + $("p").html() + "</div>"
```

This code changes the element to a <div> element with attached CSS style code. It also includes the html() function, which puts the HTML that was in the element into the new <div> element.

4. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

5. Click the button.

As with the preceding example, the $<_{p}>$ element is now a gray $<_{div}>$ element surrounding the content, as shown in Figure 9-3.



Removing Elements

You can use the <code>replaceAll()</code> and <code>replaceWith()</code> functions to remove elements by simply not providing code to replace for each function. In the case of <code>replaceWith()</code>, the following removes all elements and does not replace them with anything:

```
$("p").replaceWith() ;
```

The following code also removes the elements:

```
$("").replaceAll("p") ;
```

But you can also use the <code>remove()</code> function to remove elements. And another handy function, <code>empty()</code>, removes any child elements from a selected parent element. The next two sections show you examples of these functions.

Removing elements

The following example uses the remove() function to remove elements:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                 "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
 <html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<strong>Remove me.</strong>
<br />
<em>Don't remove me.</em>
<br />
Remove the extra word <strong>here</strong> in this sentence.
<input value="Remove" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains two elements.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(":submit").click(function () {
    $("strong").remove() ;
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, remove all elements and any code inside them."

3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The elements are gone, as shown in Figure 9-4.

Chapter 9: Replacing, Removing, and Copying Web Page Elements



Removing content

The empty() function removes all content, including elements and text, from a selected parent element. The parent node remains.

The following example uses the ${\tt empty}()$ function to remove everything inside the <code></code> elements:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<body>
<div> Outside <em> Outside <strong> Inside  Inside  Inside </strong>
Outside </em> Outside </div>
<input value="Empty" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains several elements.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(":submit").click(function () {
    $("strong").remove();
    });
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, remove everything inside the element."

3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The content inside the element is gone, as shown in Figure 9-5.



Cloning Elements

You can use the clone() function to copy an element and then duplicate it elsewhere on your page. You can even make the element appear in multiple places.

Cloning elements with events

To clone an element multiple times on a page, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                              "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).readv(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<img src = "images/home.gif" />
Put an image after this line.
<input value="Copy" type="submit">
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains several elements.

2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(":submit").click(function () {
    $("img").clone().insertAfter("p");
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, copy the element and place copies after each element."

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

4. Click the button.

The house image now appears after each < p> element, as shown in Figure 9-6.

152 Part III: Manipulating Your Web Page



Copying elements along with their events and data

Suppose you have an image with a mouseover event attached to it. If you want to clone that image as in the preceding example, the new copy of the image wouldn't have the mouseover event attached to it by default. But using the clone() function and the true keyword, you can make a copy of an element and its actions. To see this work, follow these steps:

- 1. Create a Web page containing the code from Step 1 of the preceding example.
- 2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('img').mouseover(
function() {alert('mouseover');
});
```

The code says, "When you mouse over an element, open an alert box."

- 3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.
- 4. Mouse over the image.

An alert box appears.

5. Add the following code after the code you inserted in Step 2:

```
$(':submit').click(function () {
    $('img').clone().insertAfter('p');
});
```

The code says, "When the button is clicked, copy the element and place copies after each element."

6. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

7. Click the button.

The house image now appears after each element, as shown in Figure 9-7. But only the original element, when moused over, displays an alert box. You need to add the true keyword to the clone function to tell it to copy the image and its events.



8. Locate the clone() function and add the word true inside the empty parentheses, like so:

\$('img').clone(true).insertAfter('p');

- 9. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.
- 10. Click the button.

Now when you mouse over any image, the alert box opens.

Part IV Using Plug-ins and Widgets



"See? I created a little felon figure that runs around our Web site hiding behind banner ads. On the last page, our logo puts him in a non lethal choke hold and brings him back to the home page."

In this part . . .

Inlike when you were in school, sometimes it's better to use someone else's work. In the next few chapters, you discover a world of jQuery goodness. From plug-ins that let you create gorgeous menus and image galleries to widgets such as calendars complete with a custom color scheme, the next few chapters are full of cool free jQuery stuff.

Chapter 10

Understanding Plug-ins

In This Chapter

- Finding plug-ins
- Installing plug-ins
- Highlighting table columns dynamically
- Using tooltips

Parts I and II focus on code that uses functions in the jQuery library. Among other things, you find out how to select, animate, and change HTML content in response to events. Putting these techniques together makes your Web page dynamic. But building complicated effects can be a lot of work.

Fortunately, plug-ins do the work for you. *jQuery plug-ins* are free extensions to the jQuery library that create robust JavaScript effects with little effort on your part to install and use them.

This chapter introduces you to jQuery plug-ins, tells you where to get them, and shows you how to install a few small ones.

How jQuery Plug-ins Work

jQuery plug-ins work in much the same way as jQuery. When you find a plug-in you want, you download a .js file and save it to a directory on your Web server. On your Web page, you include the path to that file. For example, the following code contains two lines. The first line connects to the jQuery library, and the second connects to the jquery.columnhover.js JavaScript plug-in file:

```
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery.columnhover.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
```

After your Web page calls the source code for the plug-in, you have access to it.

Some plug-ins require code in the <script> element, some require CSS code, and most require specific id or class attributes in your HTML elements. Each plug-in has documentation that shows you how to use it.

Getting jQuery Plug-ins

You can find an exhaustive listing of jQuery plug-ins at plugins.jquery. com. The plug-ins are divided into categories, as shown in Figure 10-1.

Here are some of the more popular categories of plug-ins:

- ✓ Ajax: Allow the Web page to pass and receive data from your Web server or database
- Animation and Effects: Create interesting animations and special effects
- ✓ Browser Tweaks: Manage the way specific browsers behave
- ✓ DOM: Manipulate HTML elements
- Drag-and-Drop: Create effects that allow the viewer to drag-and-drop elements
- ✓ Events: Detect more advanced events and user actions
- ✓ Forms: Manipulate and validate Web forms
- ✓ **jQuery Extensions:** Change the behavior and interface of jQuery
- Layout and User Interface: Change the appearance of elements
- Media: Work with media such as Flash movies or video
- Menus and Navigation: Create advanced menu systems
- ✓ **Tables:** Change the way HTML tables work
- Widgets: Include reusable components, such as calendars and color pickers
- ✓ Windows and Overlays: Create pop-up window effects on your Web page

To get a plug-in, follow these steps:

- 1. Browse to plugins.jquery.com and click through the categories until you locate the plug-in you want to use.
- 2. Locate the Releases table on the plug-in's information page and click the release that matches the version of jQuery you're using.

The recommended release is listed on the right side of the Releases table, as shown in Figure 10-2.

- 3. Click the Download link and save the file to a location you'll remember on your computer.
- 4. Unzip the new file, and then save the .js file to the same directory on your Web server where your jQuery file is stored.




Testing Your First jQuery Plug-ins

In this section, you find out how to install and use three different plug-ins: the Snowfall plug-in, the Colorize plug-in for tables, and the Hovertip tooltip plug-in. The Snowfall plug-in creates the effect of animated snow falling on your Web page. Colorize is a plug-in that makes HTML tables easier to view by allowing visitors to click and highlight rows or columns in a table. Hovertip creates a small tooltip box that appears when a page element is hovered over with the mouse.

Making your page snow

The Snowfall plug-in is a simple, fun plug-in that creates an animated snowfall effect. You can apply the snow to a single element, such as an image, or to your entire page. To use the Snowfall plug-in, follow these steps

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
          "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body style="background-color: #000;">
<div style="background-color: #AAA; width: 400px;height: 500px;">Is it
           snowing in here?</div>
</bodv>
</html>
```

This code creates a black page with a gray <div> element.

- 2. Browse to plugins.jquery.com/project/snowfall and download the most recent Snowfall plug-in.
- 3. Unzip the plug-in, and then save it in the js directory on your Web server.
- 4. Locate this line in the code:

```
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
```

and below it add this line:



<script type="text/javascript" src="js/snowfall.jquery.js"></script>

The filename for the plug-in in your code must match the plug-in you downloaded and saved to the js directory on your Web server.

5. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$(document).snowfall();

The snowfall() function is part of the Snowfall plug-in. This line of code tells the plug-in to make snow fall on the entire Web page.

6. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

You see small white snowflakes falling on your page, as shown in Figure 10-3.



Figure 10-3: Snowflakes drift down the page.

The preceding example makes the entire page appear to snow. If you want to limit the plug-in to a specific area on the screen, do the following:

- 1. Follow Steps 1-4 in the preceding example.
- 2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('div').snowfall();
```

3. Save the file, and then view it in your browser.

The snowfall now shows up only in the <div> elements, as shown in Figure 10-4.

Plug-ins often have options. In the case of the Snowflake plug-in, you can change some of the default settings, such as the color of the flakes and the speed at which they fall. Here is a list of the options you can change and their default values:

- ✓ flakeCount: 35
- ✓ flakeColor: '#ffffff'
- ✓ minSize: 1
- ✓ maxSize: 3
- ✓ minSpeed: 2
- ✓ maxSpeed: 3



To change the color and size of the flakes, do the following:

- 1. Follow all the steps in the preceding example.
- 2. Replace \$('div').snowfall(); with the following code:

\$('div').snowfall({flakeColor:'#ff0000', maxSize: 20});

The settings must be inside curly braces inside the snowfall() function. Separate each setting with a comma.

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

The snow now consists of small and large square blocks, as shown in Figure 10-5.



Highlighting table rows and columns

Although HTML tables are not as popular as they once were, they're still useful for presenting tabular information. The Colorize plug-in for tables colors ever other row of a table and highlights a row when you click it. To use the Colorize plug-in, follow these steps:



1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                        "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
ABCD
                                        EFGH
                                        IJKL
                                        MN0P
                                         QRST
</body>
</html>
```

This code creates a simple eight-celled table with a border.

- 2. Browse to plugins.jquery.com/project/Colorize and download the most recent Colorize plug-in.
- 3. Unzip the plug-in, and then save it in the js directory on your Web server.
- 4. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

and below it add this line:



<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery.colorize-2.0.0.js" ></script>

The filename for the plug-in in your code must match the plug-in you downloaded and saved to the js directory on your Web server.

5. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('table').colorize();

The colorize() function tells the plug-in to add a colored background to every other row of your table.

6. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

You see a table with colored rows. Click a row to highlight it, as shown in Figure 10-6.



Figure 10-6: A table with the Colorize plug-in.



As with the Snowfall plug-in, Colorize offers lots of options for customization. Consult the documentation on the plug-in Web page at http://plugins. jquery.com/project/Colorize.

Adding a tooltip

Tooltips are pop-up boxes or balloons that appear when you move the cursor over a specific spot on a Web page, such as a link or an image. The tooltip usually contains text describing the item the cursor is hovering over. Hundreds of tooltip plug-ins are available. The following example shows you how to install and use a basic tooltip plug-in called Hovertip:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<a href="" id="mylink">Move your mouse over me</a>
<div class="hovertipContent">You are hovering over a link.</div>
</body>
</html>
```

This code contains a link and a <div> element. The text in the <div> element is displayed when a cursor hovers over the link.

2. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

Note that the text in the <div> element is visible, as shown in Figure 10-7. It will be hidden when you add the code to link in the plug-in.

3. Browse to code.google.com/p/hovertip/downloads/list and download the most recent Hovertip file.

4. Unzip this file.

Note that this zip file contains both a .js file and a .css file.



166



5. Save the Hovertip .js file to the js directory on your Web server, and save the Hovertip .css file to the css directory on your Web server.

If you don't have a css directory, you should create one in the same location as your js directory.

6. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

and below it add these lines:

```
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery.hovertip.min.js" ></script>
<link rel=StyleSheet href="css/jquery.hovertip.css" TYPE="text/css">
```

7. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('#mylink').hovertip();

The hovertip() method tells the plug-in to use the text in the <div> element that follows your link and display it as a tooltip.

8. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

When you mouse over the link, you see the text from the hidden <div> element displayed in a tooltip, as shown in Figure 10-8.



One of the nice features about this plug-in is that it allows you to use HTML code in the tooltip. For example, if you want your tooltip to display an image, follow these steps

- 1. Follow Steps 1-6 in the preceding example.
- 2. Locate this line in the code:

<div class="hovertipContent">You are hovering over a link.</div>

and replace it with this line:

```
<div class="hovertipContent">Here is an image of a house: <img src="images/
home.gif /></div>
```

3. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

When you mouse over the link, you see the text and image from the <div> element displayed in a tooltip, as shown in Figure 10-9.



You can use any HTML code you want in the < div> element, and it will appear in the tooltip.



Chapter 11

Playing with Image Effects

.

In This Chapter

- Displaying an image in a lightbox
- Creating a slideshow
- ▶ Using an image gallery

n the past, if you wanted to create an image gallery on the Web, you typically used thumbnail images and linked them to HTML pages containing a larger view of the image that was clicked. Now many Web sites that feature image-based content rely on jQuery to display those images dynamically. Instead of clicking a thumbnail and changing to another page, you can hover your cursor over an image to open a larger version.

That's just one of the creative ways you can present images using jQuery and jQuery plug-ins. This chapter describes popular jQuery plug-in techniques used to present images to visitors.

Creating a Lightbox with Colorbox

In photography, a lightbox is a glass pane with light below it that is used to view photographs on translucent film. The term *lightbox* has been extended to describe an image (or other Web content) displayed in the middle of a black frame. Generally, a visitor will click a link or thumbnail image, and a dark block will animate and cover the Web page. At the center of the block is a larger version of the image that the visitor clicked. Figure 11-1 shows a page before a link is clicked. Figure 11-2 shows a lightbox overlaying the original page with a translucent fill and a larger version of the image.

170 Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets _





Figure 11-2: A Web page with a lightbox overlay.

Many lightbox plug-ins are available, but one of my favorites is Colorbox (colorpowered.com/colorbox), a robust plug-in built using jQuery. This section shows you how to install and use the Colorbox plug-in in a Web page.

Getting Colorbox

To get and install the Colorbox plug-in, follow these steps:

- 1. Browse to colorpowered.com/colorbox.
- 2. Click the Download link on the left side of the page, as shown in Figure 11-3.
- 3. Save the file to a location you'll remember on your computer.
- 4. Unzip the new file.

This file contains several directories.

- 5. Open the unzipped colorbox directory, and save the jquery. colorbox-min.js file to the same directory on your Web server as the jQuery file.
- 6. Navigate back to the unzipped colorbox directory and open the example1 directory. Save the colorbox.css file to the css directory on your Web server.



Figure 11-3: Colorbox site with a Download

172 Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets



If you don't have a css directory, you should create one in the same location as your js directory.

7. Before leaving the example1 directory in the colorbox zip file, locate the example1/images directory. Copy all the images in example1/ images to the css directory on your Web server.

These are the images used by the Colorbox plug-in.

Before you begin creating your first Colorbox effect, you should have some image files handy. In the next few examples, I use a set of large images that I saved in the content directory on my Web server. My images are photos of Paris, so I've named them paris1.jpg, paris2.jpg, and so on.

Your Web server directory structure should consist of four directories, js, css, images, and content. Figure 11-4 shows the structure of the Web directory.



The structure of the Web server directory.

> Now that the files are organized on your Web server, you can link to them in your Web page and use the Colorbox plug-in.

Creating a basic image Colorbox

After you've saved and organized your files, you can create your first Colorbox effect. To create a simple Colorbox, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
           "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<a href="content/paris1.jpg">Click me</a>
</body>
</html>
```

This code creates a simple page with a link to an image.

2. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

and *above* it add these lines:



The filenames for your js and css plug-in files in your code must match the names you downloaded and saved to the js and css directories on your Web server. You also need to change the image name in the <a> element from paris1.jpg to the image name in your content directory.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('a').colorbox();

The colorbox() method is part of the Colorbox plug-in. This line of code tells the plug-in to respond to the <a> element on your page.

4. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

When you click the link, the page is covered by a translucent animated background and your image appears in a lightbox, as shown in Figure 11-5.



This example uses text inside the <a> element to create a link that opens the lightbox. You can instead use an image as a link by replacing the link text with an tag that points to a thumbnail image.

Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets



Adding a title to a lightbox

You can also display a title under your image in the lightbox. Simply do the following:

- 1. Follow Steps 1–3 in the preceding example.
- 2. Replace the line with the <a> link element with the following code:

Click me

The title attribute in the image becomes the title.

3. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

The image now has a title, as shown in Figure 11-6.

Displaying a set of images in a lightbox

Colorbox can also display a set of images, with previous and next buttons appearing in the lightbox to view the images. To display a set of images in a lightbox, follow these steps:



1. Create a Web page containing the final code from the preceding example:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
          "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<link type="text/css" media="screen" rel="stylesheet" href="css/colorbox.</pre>
           css" />
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/ jquery.colorbox-min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
$('a').colorbox();
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<a href="content/paris1.jpg" title="Paris Rain Spout" >Click me</a>
</body>
</html>
```

2. Locate this line in the code:

Click me

and change it to add the rel attribute with a value of mygroup:

```
<a rel="mygroup" href="content/paris1.jpg" title="Paris Rain Spout">Click
           me</a>
```

3. Add additional <a> elements below the <a> element:

```
<a rel="mygroup" href="content/paris2.jpg" title="Montmarte"></a>
<a rel="mygroup" href="content/paris3.jpg" title="Statue"></a>
<a rel="mygroup" href="content/paris4.jpg" title="Gargoyles"></a>
<a rel="mygroup" href="content/paris5.jpg" title="Blocks"></a>
```

Note that each link has the same rel="mygroup" attribute. You can set the rel attribute to any name, but all images that you want to group must have the same rel attribute. Also note that only the first <a> element has text (Click me) that creates a link between the open and closing <a> tags.

4. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

When you click the link, you see previous and next arrow buttons in the lightbox, as shown in Figure 11-7.



Displaying a slideshow

You can turn a lightbox with multiple grouped images into a slideshow that plays automatically. To create a slideshow, do the following:

- 1. Follow Steps 1-4 in the preceding example.
- 2. Replace this line:

\$('a').colorbox();

with this:

\$('a').colorbox({slideshow:true});

3. Save the file, and then open it in your browser.

The images in the lightbox automatically scroll in a slideshow fashion.

Colorbox has many additional options and capabilities. Visit <code>colorpowered.com/colorbox</code> to find out how to

- ✓ Display HTML from another Web site in a lightbox
- u Use other transition animations when the lightbox opens and closes
- Display videos or Flash movies in a lightbox

Creating an Image Gallery

Image galleries consist of a set of thumbnail images on a Web page. When you mouse over or click a thumbnail, a larger version of the image is displayed, usually on the same Web page.

In this section, you find out how to install and use the Galleria image gallery plug-in, which is shown in Figure 11-8.

Getting Galleria

To get and install the Galleria plug-in, do the following:

- 1. Browse to devkick.com/lab/galleria.
- 2. Scroll down the page and locate the links to download the Galleria plug-in and Galleria CSS files, as shown in Figure 11-9.

178 Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets _





- 3. Right-click the Galleria plug-in link. Choose Save Link As and then save the jquery.galleria.js file to the js directory on your Web server.
- 4. Right-click the galleria.css link. Choose Save Link As and save galleria.css to the css directory on your Web server.

As with Colorbox in the first section of this chapter, you need to have some images. In the following example, I use a set of large images saved in the content directory on my Web server.

Creating a basic image gallery

To create a simple Galleria image gallery, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

2. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

and below it add these lines:



The filenames for your js and css plug-in files in your code must match the names you downloaded and saved to the js and css directories on your Web server.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(function($) { $('ul.gallery').galleria(); });
```

4. Place this code after the <body> tag in your page:

```
<img src="content/paris1.jpg" title="Paris Water Spout">
<img src="content/paris2.jpg" title="Montmarte" >
<img src="content/paris3.jpg" title="Statue">
<img src="content/paris4.jpg" title="Gargoyles">
<img src="content/paris5.jpg" title="Blocks">
```

Note that each <1i> element contains an <imq> tag with the path to a gallery image. The title attribute specifies a title that will appear below the large image.

You need to change the image names in the elements to the image names in your content directory.

5. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

Galleria automatically generates thumbnails. When you click one, the large version of the image appears with the appropriate title below it, as shown in Figure 11-10.





Chapter 12 Jazzing Up Forms

In This Chapter

- Displaying default values in form fields
- Requiring specific form fields
- Validating form fields
- Using a date picker for date form fields

simple HTML form is powerful when connected to a backend processing script. You can gather information from your visitors and store or e-mail it. But basic HTML forms are just that, basic. They don't detect the information that is being entered. And there is no indication of what should be entered in a given field unless you add descriptive text.

.

Hundreds of great form enhancement plug-ins exist. The goal of this chapter is to introduce you to a sampling of how you can spruce up HTML forms with jQuery plug-ins.

Displaying Default Values

Figure 12-1 shows a basic HTML form with multiple fields. The Clearfield plug-in allows you to specify text that appears in each field and disappears when the user clicks the field. Figure 12-2 shows the same form in Figure 12-1 but using the Clearfield plug-in.

182 Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets _____

Grab File Edit	Capture Window Help My Test Page	12:10 PM	
	file:///Applications/webdir/ch12-1.html	∫ file:///Applications/webdir/ch12-1.html	
My Test Page	(+)		
First Name:			
ast Name:	Source of: file:///Applications/webdir	/ch12-1.html	
omment:	<pre></pre> //WBLIC "-//WBC//DTD XHTML 1.("http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xht (http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xht)	strict//EN" mll-strict.dtd">	
	<pre><head> <title>My Test Page</title></head></pre>		
	<pre><script javascript"="" src="js/jquer
<script type=" text="" type="text/javascript"></pre></td><td>-y-1.4.min.js"></script></pre>		
	<pre>\$(document).ready(function(){</pre>		
	//Your code goes here.		
	}); 		
	 <body> <form></form></body>		
	First Name: <input type="text"/>		
	Last Name: <input type="text"/> 		
	Comment: <input type="text"/> 		
		1	
Done			
Done	\$°°	4.7 ° M V O 2 R ~ 6 B	
Done	Ĩ°IJØ■ U BB UP O∮⊡SR(J∕U		
	Ĩ°₩Ø■ \ ⊫ၰ <mark>⊻</mark> ₩♥₽₽€₽₩Sh()≯U	&∃^`¤♥©È& =∎	
	⋬∁⋓ ⋈⋈⋈⋈⋈⋈⋈⋈ ⋓⋧⋓⋧∊⋳⋎⋎		
Done	Capture Window Help	Sum 7:58 PM	
Done	Capture Window Help My Test Page	Sun 7:58 PM	
Done	Capture Window Help My Test Page	Sun 7:58 PM	
Done Construction of the second seco	Capture Window Help My Test Page	Sun 7:58 PM	
Done Cab File Edit Cab File Edit Cab Cab File Edit Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab	Capture Window Help My Test Page (file:///Applications/webdir/ch12-1.html + ame ame	Sum 7:58 PM	
Done Cab File Edit Cab File Edit Cab Cab File Edit Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab	Capture Window Help My Test Page (file:///Applications/webdir/ch12-1.html + ame	Sum 7:58 PM	
Done Cab File Edit Cab File Edit Cab Cab File Edit Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab Cab	Capture Window Help My Test Page (file:///Applications/webdir/ch12-1.html + ame	Sun 7:58 PM	
Done Crab File Edit Crab File Edit Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test Page My Test Page My Test Page My Test Page My Test Page Source of: file:///Applications/webdir/ch12 Source of: file:///Applications/webdir/ch12	2-1.html	
Done Crab File Edit Crab File Edit My Test Page First Name: Enter your first na Last Name: Enter your last na Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	2-1.html # 2-1.html # # # # # # # # # # # # #	
Done Grab File Edit Grab File Edit My Test Page First Name: Enter your first ni Last Name: Enter your last na Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	2-1.html □ dtd">	
Done Grab File Edit Grab File Edit My Test Page First Name: Enter your first ni Last Name: Enter your last na Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	2-1.html dtd"> a"> di.g">	
Done Grab File Edit Grab File Edit My Test Page First Name: Enter your first ni Last Name: Enter your last na Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test Page The:///Applications/webdir/ch12-1.html + ame me Source of: file:///Applications/webdir/ch1 	2-1.html " dt d"> as *> d_in*>	
Done Grab File Edit Grab File Edit My Test Page First Name: Enter your first na Last Name: Enter your last na Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	2-1.html [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™]	
Done Grab File Edit Grab File Edit My Test Page First Name: Enter your first na Last Name: Enter your last na Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	Z-1.html [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™]	
Done Crab File Edit Crab File Edit My Test Page First Name: Enter your first na Last Name: Enter your first na Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test Page file:///Applications/webdir/ch12-1.html + ame ame Source of: file:///Applications/webdir/ch1 	2-1.html [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™]	
Done Crab File Edit Crab File Edit My Text Page First Name: Enter your first na Last Name: Enter your first na Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test Page file:///Applications/webdir/ch12-1.html + ame ame Source of: file:///Applications/webdir/ch1 Counce of: file:///Applications/webdir/ch1 Counc	2-1.html [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™] [™]	
Done Crab File Edit Crab File Edit My Test Page First Name: Enter your first ni Last Name: Enter your first ni Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	2-1.html dtd"> a"> d_jg">	
Done Crab File Edit Crab File Edit Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	2-1.html dtd"> s*	
Done Crab File Edit Crab Fil	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	Z-1.html dtd"> s*> d_js"> d_js"> a_js"> d_js">	
Done Crab File Edit Crab File Edit Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	Z-1.html "dtd"> a"> d_jn"> d_jn"> ame" />	
Done Cab File Edit Cab File Edit	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	2-1.html "dtd"> s*> drig"> drig"> r your first name" /> ame" />	
Done Carlo File Edit Carlo File Edit Carlo Carlo My Test Page First Name: Enter your first ni Last Name: Enter your first na Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	Z-1.html " dtd"> a"> d_jn"> ame" />	
Done Crab File Edit Crab File Edit Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	<pre>2-1.html " dtd"> a*> drig"> ame" /> ame" /></pre>	
Done Crab File Edit Crab File Edit My Test Page First Name: Enter your first na Last Name: Enter your first na Comment: Comments	Capture Window Help My Test Page My Test P	Z-1.html "dtd"> g"> d_ig"> ame" />	

To get and install the Clearfield plug-in, follow these steps:

- 1. Browse to labs.thesedays.com/projects/jquery/clearfield.
- 2. Locate the link to download the Clearfield plug-in on the right side of the page, as shown in Figure 12-3.
- 3. Right-click the Clearfield plug-in link and choose Save Link As. Save the jquery.clearfield.js file to the js directory on your Web server.

To add the Clearfield plug-in hints to your form fields, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

});
</script>
</head>
<body>
</body>
</html>

2. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

and below it add this line:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery.clearfield.js"></script>

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('input').clearField();

4. Place this code after the <body> tag:

```
<form>

First Name: <input type="text" class="hint" value="Enter your first name"

/>

<br />

Last Name: <input type="text" value="Enter your last name" />

<br />

Comment: <input type="text" value="Comments" />

</form>
```

The text stored in the value attribute of each field will be displayed in the corresponding field until clicked by the user.

Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets



5. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

Clearfield adds the text in the value attribute to the input fields of your form. When the user clicks a form field, the text disappears.

Validating Form Fields

One of the most useful enhancements to a Web form is adding validation. A *validated form field* means that the field is checked when the form is submitted to make sure that the correct information has been entered. Usually the person filling out the form receives notification when incorrect information is entered in a field. For example, a validated field asking for a first name should return a message when someone tries to enter numbers in that field. The form can't be submitted until the correct information is in all the fields.

The jQuery Validation plug-in is robust and easy to implement. To get and install the Validation plug-in, follow these steps:

- 1. Browse to plugins.jquery.com/project/validate.
- 2. Download the latest version of the Validation plug-in zip file to a location you'll remember.
- 3. Unzip the Validation plug-in zip file.

The extracted file contains a number of directories and files, as shown in Figure 12-4.



4. Save a copy of the jquery.validate.pack.js file to the js directory on your Web server.

To add the Validation plug-in to your page, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                                                              "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
                            <html>
                            <head>
                           <title>My Test Page</title>
                           <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
                           <script type="text/javascript">
                           $(document).ready(function(){
                           //Your code goes here.
                           });
                           </script>
                           </head>
                           <body>
                            </body>
                            </html>
2. Locate this line in the code:
```

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

and below it add this line:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/ jquery.validate.pack.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></scr

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('#commentForm').validate();
```

4. Add the following code after the <body> tag:

```
<form id="commentForm" >
First Name: <input name="name" size="25" class="required" minlength="2" />
<br />
E-Mail: <input name="email" size="25" class="required email" />
<br />
URL: <input name="url" size="25" class="url" value="" />
<br />
Comment: <textarea id="ccomment" name="comment" cols="22"
         class="required"></textarea>
<br />
<input class="submit" type="submit" value="Submit"/>
</form>
```

The first name field is required, as indicated by the class="required" attribute. The name must be at least two characters, as indicated by the minlength="2" attribute. The E-Mail field is required and must fit the pattern of an e-mail, with an @ sign and a period followed by a domain name, as indicated by the class="required email" attribute. The URL field isn't required, but if the user enters a URL, it must fit the correct pattern, for example, http://abc.abc. The URL pattern is controlled by the class="url" attribute.

5. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

Validation checks for valid input controlled by the rules you set in your code. When bad data is entered, error messages appear to the right of invalid fields, as shown in Figure 12-5.



The preceding example barely scratches the surface of what the Validate plug-in can do. To find out about the Validation plug-in's additional options and customizations, check out http://bassistance.de/jquery-plugins/ jquery-plugin-validation.



Creating a Date Picker

When users are supposed to enter a date on a form, they might enter a date in a variety of formats. For example, the date January 31, 2010 can be entered as 1/31/2010, Jan. 31 2010, 1-31-10, or even the European variation 31/1/2010. You can use validation to enforce a specific date format, but a friendlier solution is to offer your visitors a mini pop-up calendar from which to choose a date. Figure 12-6 shows an example of a jQuery calendar plug-in.



It only makes sense to use a calendar when the date you want your user to enter is within a few weeks before or after the current date. It's inconvenient for them to have to scroll forward or backward for months or years to select a date.

Date Input is a no-frills date picker plug-in that pops up when a visitor clicks a date field in a form. To get and install the Date Input plug-in, follow these steps:

- 1. Browse to plugins.jquery.com/project/date-input.
- 2. Scroll down to the plug-in download link and download date_input-1.2.1.zip or the latest version of the plug-in.
- **3. Unzip the file.**
- 4. Open the extracted date_input directory.

188 Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets _

AD-CON	(The http://iguangii.com/damos/datapicker/	N =) = (ST = Coorie
	nitp.//jqueryun.com/uemos/uatepicker/	W Y / Congle
JQuery UI - Demos & Docum	nentati +	
	jQuery Plugins U	H Meetups Forum Blog About Dor
υ jQu	Download Demos & Documentati	on Themes Development Sup
Interactions		Thome' III Linkinger
Draggable	Datepicker	Theme. of Lightness
Droppable		
Resizable		New window Examples
Selectable	the second se	
Sortable	Date: 01/15/2010	Default functionality
1811127 - 191	January 2010 0	Format date
Widgets	Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa	Restrict date range
Accordion	1 2	Localize calendar
Autocomplete	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Populate alternate field
Button	10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Display inline
Datepicker	17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Display button bar
Dialog	24 25 26 27 28 29 30	Display month & year
Progressbar	31	Detectio ether months
Slider		Charles in other months
Web -		Show week of the year
Tabs		Display multiple months
Tabs		
Effects		lcon trigger
Effects Add Class		Icon trigger Animations

5. Save the jquery.date_input.pack.js file to the js directory on your Web server, and save date_input.css to the css directory on your Web server.

To create a form with a date input field using the Date Input plug-in, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
          "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
</body>
</html>
```

2. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

and below it add these lines:

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('#datefield').date_input();

4. Add the following code after the <body> tag:

<input type='text' id='datefield' />

5. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

6. Click in the input box.

A calendar appears below the form field, as shown in Figure 12-7.



Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets _____

Chapter 13

Toying with Page Layout

In This Chapter

- Creating accordion-style menus
- Breaking long pages into shorter, navigable chunks
- Making elements float

Query and jQuery plug-ins are great for giving you more control over the layout of your site, and this chapter shows you a few fun page layout tricks. You find out how to create an accordion menu that expands and contracts as items are clicked. You also see how to break up (or paginate) large, content-heavy Web pages into smaller chunks with automatically generated navigation links. Finally, you discover how to create a floating element that remains visible when you scroll down the page.

Creating an Accordion Menu

A *static menu* on a Web site consists of a set of links, typically across the top or on the left side of the page. An *accordion menu* presents the visitor with a list of links and sublinks that expand and contract when clicked. Figure 13-1 shows an accordion menu closed. Figure 13-2 shows a section of the same menu expanded after you click a menu item.

192 Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets _





To get and install a simple accordion menu plug-in, follow these steps:

- 1. Browse to www.unwrongest.com/projects/accordion.
- 2. Locate the link to download the jquery.accordion-1.3.zip plug-in on the right side of the page, as shown in Figure 13-3.
- 3. Click and save the jquery.accordion-1.3.zip file.
- 4. Extract the zip file. Save the jquery.accordion.source.js file to the js directory on your Web server.



To use the accordion menu, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
</body>
</html>
```

2. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s

and below it add this line:

```
<script src="js/jquery.accordion.source.js" type="text/javascript"</pre>
            charset="utf-8"></script>
```

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('ul').accordion();

4. Place this code after the <body> tag:

```
<a href="#a">First set</a>
  <1i>>
    <a href="#a"><a href="test.html">sublink 1</a>
    <a href="#a"><a href="test.html">sublink 2</a>
    <a href="#a"><a href="test.html">sublink 3</a>
    <a href="#b">Second set</a>
  <111>
    <1i>
   <a href="#b"><a href="test.html">sublink 1</a>
    <a href="#b"><a href="test.html">sublink 2</a>
    <a href="#b"><a href="test.html">sublink 3</a>
```



Be careful not to miss any of the tags. Every tag and tag has a matching tag or tag, respectively.

You can download all the code in this book from www.dummies.com/ go/jquery.

5. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.
The Accordion plug-in turns your unordered list element into a menu with an accordion effect, as shown in Figure 13-4. This current version is plain. In the next step, you apply CSS formatting to make it more impressive.

6. Just before the </head> tag that closes the HEAD section, add the following CSS style code:

<pre>.accordion { list-style-type: none; padding: 0; margin: 0 0 30px; border:</pre>	<style></th></tr><tr><td><pre>lpx solid #17a; border-top: none; border-left: none; } .accordion ul { padding: 0; margin: 0; float: left; display: block; width: 100%; } .accordion li { background: #3cf; cursor: pointer; list-style-type: none; padding: 0; margin: 0; float: left; display: block; width: 100%; } .accordion li div { padding: 20px; background: #aef; display: block; clear: both; float: left; width: 360px; } .accordion a { text-decoration: none; border-bottom: 1px solid #4df; font: bold 1.1em/2em Arial, sans-serif; color: #222; padding: 0 10px; display: block; } .accordion li ul li { background: #7FD2FF; font-size: 0.9em; } </pre></td><td>.accordion { list-style-type: none; padding: 0; margin: 0 0 30px; border:</td></tr><tr><td><pre>.accordion ul { padding: 0; margin: 0; float: left; display: block; width: 100%; } .accordion li { background: #3cf; cursor: pointer; list-style-type: none; padding: 0; margin: 0; float: left; display: block; width: 100%; } .accordion li div { padding: 20px; background: #aef; display: block; clear: both; float: left; width: 360px; } .accordion a { text-decoration: none; border-bottom: 1px solid #4df; font: bold 1.1em/2em Arial, sans-serif; color: #222; padding: 0 10px; display: block; } .accordion li ul li { background: #7FD2FF; font-size: 0.9em; } </style> <td><pre>1px solid #17a; border-top: none; border-left: none; }</pre></td>	<pre>1px solid #17a; border-top: none; border-left: none; }</pre>
<pre>100%; } .accordion li { background: #3cf; cursor: pointer; list-style-type: none; padding: 0; margin: 0; float: left; display: block; width: 100%; } .accordion li div { padding: 20px; background: #aef; display: block; clear: both; float: left; width: 360px; } .accordion a { text-decoration: none; border-bottom: 1px solid #4df; font: bold 1.1em/2em Arial, sans-serif; color: #222; padding: 0 10px; display: block; } .accordion li ul li { background: #7FD2FF; font-size: 0.9em; } </pre>	.accordion ul { padding: 0; margin: 0; float: left; display: block; width:	
<pre>.accordion li { background: #3cf; cursor: pointer; list-style-type: none; padding: 0; margin: 0; float: left; display: block; width: 100%;} .accordion li div { padding: 20px; background: #aef; display: block; clear: both; float: left; width: 360px;} .accordion a { text-decoration: none; border-bottom: 1px solid #4df; font: bold 1.1em/2em Arial, sans-serif; color: #222; padding: 0 10px; display: block;} .accordion li ul li { background: #7FD2FF; font-size: 0.9em; } </pre>	100%; }	
<pre>padding: 0; margin: 0; float: left; display: block; width: 100%;} .accordion li div { padding: 20px; background: #aef; display: block; clear: both; float: left; width: 360px;} .accordion a { text-decoration: none; border-bottom: 1px solid #4df; font: bold 1.1em/2em Arial, sans-serif; color: #222; padding: 0 10px; display: block;} .accordion li ul li { background: #7FD2FF; font-size: 0.9em; } </pre>	.accordion li { background: #3cf; cursor: pointer; list-style-type: none;	
<pre>100%;} .accordion li div { padding: 20px; background: #aef; display: block; clear: both; float: left; width: 360px;} .accordion a { text-decoration: none; border-bottom: 1px solid #4df; font: bold 1.1em/2em Arial, sans-serif; color: #222; padding: 0 10px; display: block;} .accordion li ul li { background: #7FD2FF; font-size: 0.9em; } </pre>	padding: 0; margin: 0; float: left; display: block; width:	
<pre>.accordion li div { padding: 20px; background: #aef; display: block; clear:</pre>	100%;}	
<pre>both; float: left; width: 360px;} .accordion a { text-decoration: none; border-bottom: 1px solid #4df; font:</pre>	.accordion li div { padding: 20px; background: #aef; display: block; clear:	
<pre>.accordion a { text-decoration: none; border-bottom: 1px solid #4df; font:</pre>	<pre>both; float: left; width: 360px;}</pre>	
<pre>bold 1.1em/2em Arial, sans-serif; color: #222; padding: 0 10px; display: block;} .accordion li ul li { background: #7FD2FF; font-size: 0.9em; } </pre>	.accordion a { text-decoration: none; border-bottom: 1px solid #4df; font:	
<pre>display: block;} .accordion li ul li { background: #7FD2FF; font-size: 0.9em; } </pre>	<pre>bold 1.1em/2em Arial, sans-serif; color: #222; padding: 0 10px;</pre>	
.accordion li ul li { background: #7FD2FF; font-size: 0.9em; }	display: block;}	
	.accordion li ul li { background: #7FD2FF; font-size: 0.9em; }	
•		

This CSS code changes the background colors, specifies borders, and controls the appearance of the text in menu, as shown in Figure 13-5.



Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets





The demo on the Web page includes small graphics that indicate whether a tab is opened or closed. Browse to http://sandbox.unwrongest.com/jquery.accordion and choose View=Source to take a closer look.

CSS code can be used to style most elements you manipulate with jQuery. If you'd like to find out more about CSS, I recommend that you take a look at *HTML, XHTML and CSS All-In-One For Dummies,* 2nd Edition, by Andy Harris (Wiley).

Paginating Content

Suppose that you have a long page full of text. Your visitors might be willing to scroll through all that text, but it's more elegant to display it as readable chunks. You can break up the text by creating a bunch of Web pages and creating navigation links, but why not have a plug-in do the work for you?

To install the simple-to-use Pagination plug-in, follow these steps:

1. Browse to plugins.jquery.com/project/jquery-pagination.

- 2. Locate the link to download the paginator.js file.
- 3. Click and save the file to the js directory on your Web server.

To use the Pagination plug-in, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

2. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

and below it add this line:

<script src="js/paginator.js"></script>

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('div').pagination();

4. Place this code after the <body> tag:

```
<div>
A
B
C
D
E
F
F
F
I
I
I
J
K
L
</div>
```

Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets



Feel free to fill up the elements with any text you like.

5. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

The Pagination plug-in turns the content in your <div> element into a set of sections with navigation links (see Figure 13-6).

You can include more than text in your elements. Other HTML elements work as well, such as and <div> tags.



Creating a Floating <div> Element

The Floating Div plug-in allows you to create a <div> element that always stays on the browser screen when someone scrolls down a long page. To see an example, look at amirharel.com/labs/fo/float_demo.html. The lyrics extend down the page; as you scroll, the embedded video scrolls down too.



To install the Floating Div plug-in, follow these steps:

- 1. Browse to plugins.jquery.com/project/floatobject.
- 2. Locate the link to download the latest version of the plug-in.
- 3. Right-click and choose Save As.
- 4. Delete .txt in the filename (see Figure 13-7).

This file ends with the .txt file extension. You need to remove that extra extension so that the filename ends with .js.

5. Save the renamed file to the js directory on your Web server.



To create a floating element, follow these steps:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:



</body> </html>

```
<title>My Test Page</title>
 <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
 $(document).ready(function(){
 //Your code goes here.
});
 </script>
 </head>
 <body>
```

2. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s

and below it add this line:

<script src="js/jquery.floatobject-1.4.js"></script>

Make sure the name of the . js file matches the name of the file you saved in your js directory in Step 4 of the preceding exercise.

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('#mydiv').makeFloat({x:'current',y:'current'});

This code selects the element with the id attribute of mydiv. The code keeps track of the current location of the selected element, and moves it to the same coordinates on the screen when the Web page is scrolled down.

4. Place this code after the <body> tag:

<div style="float:right;" id="mydiv">I'm floating</div>

5. Add enough content to the page so that it becomes necessary to scroll down to see the bottom of the page.

For example, you can cut and paste
something
 again and again to fill up the page.

6. Save this file, and then view it in your browser.

The floating element is in the upper-right corner initially. When you scroll, the floating <div> element maintains its location on the screen even when the page is scrolled down (see Figure 13-8).



You can put any HTML element in the floating <div> element. You can also put in elements that have attached jQuery code and effects, such as an accordion menu.





Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets _____

Chapter 14

Incorporating a User Interface

In This Chapter

- ▶ Understanding the jQuery user interface
- Customizing a theme
- Downloading and installing the jQuery UI
- Selecting specific widgets

Some jQuery plug-ins and widgets are extremely popular. The jQuery developer community has created a special library of code on top of the jQuery library that contains a collection of user interface widgets, interactions with elements, and special effects. The jQuery User Interface library also allows you to customize the appearance of the included widgets, controlling the colors and fonts.

.

In this chapter, you find out how to customize the jQuery User Interface library and use it in your pages. You select a predefined set of CSS styles and graphics known as a *theme*, customize it, install it, and then use selected interactions, effects, and widgets on your pages.

Using the jQuery User Interface

The jQuery User Interface (UI) Web site is at http://jqueryui.com. On this site, which is shown in Figure 14-1, you can download all the effects, widgets, and themes available through the jQuery UI.

204 Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets



The jQuery UI lets you interact with HTML elements in new ways. The available interactions are

- ✓ Dragging: Click an element and hold down the mouse button to drag the element around the page or inside another element on the page.
- ✓ Dropping: Drag and drop an element on a target element. The target element can change in response to the dragged element being dropped on it.
- **Resizing:** Resize an element by clicking and dragging its corners.
- Selecting: Select elements in a group by holding down the mouse button and dragging a selection box around them.
- ✓ Sorting: Sort elements in a list by dragging them to new locations in the list.

The jQuery UI also gives you a number of new effects. These are

Effects Core: Extends internal jQuery effects; includes morphing and easing. These core effects are required by the additional effects in this list.

- Blind: Creates a roller blind animation on an element, causing the element to open or close from the bottom border of the element.
- ✓ Bounce: Bounces an element horizontally or vertically a specified number of times.
- Clip: Closes or opens an element from the bottom and top simultaneously.
- ▶ Drop: Moves the element in one direction and simultaneously hides it.
- Explode: Breaks the element apart into a specified number of pieces. Can also work in reverse, starting with exploded pieces converging to form the element.
- **Fold:** Collapses the element horizontally and then vertically.
- Highlight: Highlights the background of the element in a defined color for a custom duration.
- Pulsate: Pulsates the element by fading it in and out a specified number of times.
- Scale: Grows or shrinks the element.
- Shake: Shakes the element horizontally or vertically a specified number of times.
- ✓ Slide: Slides the element into or out of view.





You can see demonstrations of these effects at jqueryui.com/demos/ effect.

All these effects are available to you when you download the jQuery UI.

Choosing Custom Download Options

Before you can use the jQuery UI library, you need to choose a theme. The theme controls the appearance of the widgets (for example, a date picker, an accordion menu, or tabs). The theme contains information about the appearance of widgets, including which font to use, what colors to use, and how to style the borders. You end up with a uniform appearance for all widgets used in your page.

Selecting a theme

You can download the jQuery UI library with your choice of theme. You can even customize a theme's colors and fonts. To select a theme, follow these steps:

- 1. Click the Themes button at jqueryui.com or browse directly to jqueryui.com/themeroller.
- 2. In the ThemeRoller section of the page, click the Gallery tab (see Figure 14-2).

You see thumbnail images of calendars. Each represents a different theme and demonstrates what the calendar widget looks like in that theme.

3. Click the UI darkness theme to select it.

In Figure 14-3, the sample widgets on the right change appearance to match the selected theme.



Figure 14-2: The theme gallery with thumbnails.

Chapter 14: Incorporating a User Interface



Customizing a theme

After you select a theme, you can customize many of its features, including colors, fonts, and even the roundness of the corners it uses for widget borders.

You can select and customize a theme in two ways:

- ✓ Select the simple gray-and-white theme called Smoothness shown on the Themes page. Click the Roll Your Own tab of ThemeRoller.
- ✓ From the Gallery tab of ThemeRoller, click the Edit link under the theme you want to customize.



As you customize a theme, keep an eye on the sample widgets on the right. Each change you make updates the widgets immediately, so you can preview your changes.

The Roll Your Own tab presents an accordion list of options that you can change, as shown in Figure 14-4.

208 Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets



Clicking each horizontal bar opens the set of options below it. Figure 14-4 shows the Corner Radius and Content sections expanded.



Don't be nervous about changing these settings. Playing with the sizes and colors and seeing the changes reflected in the widgets on the right helps you understand what you want for your settings when you download a custom theme.

The sections available for customization on the Roll Your Own tab are as follows:

✓ Font Settings: Controls the font face, weight, and size for the widget titles (for example, the titles Section 1, 2, and 3 under the Accordion widget).



Corner Radius: Controls the roundness of the corners. The higher the number, the rounder the corners.

Just for fun, try setting this value to 200px. The boxes on the right become almost circular. Setting the value to 0px results in square corners.

✓ Header/Toolbar: Controls the appearance of your widget's header and toolbar. Figure 14-5 shows the color wheel that opens when you click the background color setting. The center of the color wheel controls the darkness or lightness of the color, and the wheel controls the hue (the actual color).

You can add a pattern to the header by clicking the small box to the right of the background color. In Figure 14-5, the header is set to a diagonal stripe pattern. You can also control the colors of the border, text, and icons in the Header/Toolbar section.

- Content: Controls the color, pattern, and font of the content in each widget.
- Clickable: default, hover, and active state: These states control how the clickable parts of the widget appear when they are selected and before and after a mouse cursor moves over them. For example, a tab is in the active state when it's the current top tab. Otherwise, tabs are in the default state and change to the hover state when moused over.
- Highlight: Controls the color, pattern, and font of the highlighted section of any widget. For example, the Highlight section controls the appearance of the current date in the calendar.
- **Error:** Controls the color, pattern, and font of error messages displayed by a widget.



The color wheel pop-up. Modal Screen for Overlays: Controls the color, pattern, and opacity of overlays, which are the translucent screens that cover the current Web page and display content in the center of the page.



✓ Drop Shadows: Controls the color, pattern, and opacity of overlays and the direction and thickness of the shadow.

To modify an existing theme, select the theme in the ThemeRoller Gallery tab and click the Edit link below it.

Downloading a theme

When you've selected the theme you want from the Gallery tab or modified a theme with the Roll Your Own tab, you need to download it:

- To download a theme from the Gallery with no changes, click the Download link under the theme of your choice.
- ✓ To download a theme you've customized with the Roll Your Own tab, click the Download Theme button at the top of the tab.

Both download options take you to the same place, the Build Your Download page, which is shown in Figure 14-6.



Building your download file

The Build Your Download page is where you put everything together. After you select a theme, you choose which widgets, effects, and interactions you want to include in your download file.



You choose or edit the theme first, before going to the Build Your Download page.

To create your download file, follow these steps:

1. Choose or edit your theme and click the Download link or Download Theme button.

(See the preceding section, "Downloading a theme," for more information on selecting and customizing themes.) The Build Your Download page appears (refer to Figure 14-6). By default, the UI Core, Interactions, Widgets, and Effects options are selected.

- 2. Select the interactions you want on your site.
- 3. Select the widgets you want on your site.
- 4. Select the effects you want on your site.
- 5. Click the Download button, which is on the right side of the screen.

You are prompted to save a .zip file containing your custom jQuery UI files. Save this file to a location you will remember.



You have already chosen your theme at this point, so it is included in the download.

The jQuery UI with your chosen options and theme has now been downloaded. Next, you need to install the contents of the zip file to your Web server.

To install the jQuery UI code, do the following:

1. Unzip the file you downloaded in the preceding exercise.

You see several directories, including css, development-bundle, and js, as shown in Figure 14-7.

- 2. Copy the files in the css directory of the zip file to the css directory on your Web server.
- 3. Copy the files from the js directory of the zip file to the js directory on your Web server.
- 4. Copy the index.html file from the zip file to the base HTML directory on your Web server.

212 Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets _

	000	🚞 jquery-ui-1	.7.2.custo	m		\Box
		* -		٩		
	V DEVICES	Name		Date Modified	Size	Kind
	🖾 iDisk	▼ 🚞 css		Today, 9:38 PM		Folder
	Macintosh HD	🔻 📺 ui-darkness		Today, 9:38 PM		Folder
		images		Today, 9:38 PM		Folder
	▶ SHARED	🚡 jquery-ui-1.7.2.custom.css		Feb 1, 2010 5:00 AM	29 KB	Cascaument
	▶ PLACES	development-bundle		Today, 9:38 PM		Folder
	V SEARCH FOR	AUTHORS.txt		Jun 12, 2009 4:20 AM	4 KB	Plain Text
Figure 14-7:	(L) Today	demos		Today, 9:38 PM		Folder
	Yesterday	docs		Today, 9:38 PM		Folder
Ihe	Past Week	external		Today, 9:38 PM		Folder
		GPL-LICENSE.txt		Jun 12, 2009 4:20 AM	16 KB	Plain Text
unzippea file	All Movies	📑 jquery–1.3.2.js		Jun 12, 2009 4:20 AM	123 KB	JavaScument
containing	All Desuments	MIT-LICENSE.txt		Jun 12, 2009 4:20 AM	4 KB	Plain Text
containing	All Documents	themes		Today, 9:38 PM		Folder
the iOuerv		▶ 🛄 ui		Today, 9:38 PM		Folder
and jeading		version.txt		Jun 12, 2009 4:20 AM	4 KB	Plain Text
UI and a		index.html		Feb 1, 2010 5:00 AM	33 KB	HTML ument
		▼ 🚞 js		Today, 9:38 PM		Folder
custom		jquery-1.3.2.min.js		Jun 12, 2009 4:19 AM	57 KB	JavaScument
thomo		📆 jquery-ui-1.7.2.custom.min.js		Feb 1, 2010 5:00 AM	197 KB	JavaScument
ulenie.						
	19 items, 57.96 GB available				11.	



If you don't know the location of the js and HTML directories, refer to Chapter 1 for more information on the organization of a Web site.

5. Open the index.html file on your Web browser.

You see the widgets that you selected using the theme settings you chose, as shown in Figure 14-8.



Using jQuery U1 Widgets

Your downloaded jQuery UI files contain the code you need to run the widgets you selected. This section shows you how to use several jQuery UI widgets. Type the following code for all examples in this chapter:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
               "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<link type="text/css" href="css/ui-darkness/jquery-ui-1.7.2.custom.css"</pre>
              rel="stylesheet" />
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-ui-1.7.2.custom.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
</body>
</html>
```



The links to the css files and jquery-ui files, such as css/ui-darkness/ jquery-ui-1.7.2.custom.css, have to match the filenames you stored in the css and js directories.

Adding an accordion

An accordion menu expands when you click a section. To create an accordion menu, follow these steps:

- 1. Create a Web page containing the code listed at the beginning of this section.
- 2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('#accordion').accordion({ header: 'h3' });
```

3. Add the following code after the <body> tag:

```
<div id="accordion">
 <div><h3><a href="#">A</a></h3>
   <div>Text about A</div>
 </div>
 <div><h3><a href="#">B</a></h3>
   <div>Text about B.</div>
 </div>
 <div><h3><a href="#">C</a></h3>
   <div>Text about C.</div>
</div>
</div>
```

4. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

You see an accordion menu.

Creating a datepicker

A datepicker is a small calendar that pops up so that you can click a specific date, To create a datepicker, follow these steps:

- 1. Create a Web page containing the code listed at the beginning of this section.
- 2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$(`#datepicker').datepicker({
inline: true
});
```

3. Add the following code after the <body> tag:

<div id="datepicker"></div>

4. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

You see a datepicker with your chosen theme, as shown in Figure 14-9.

Displaying tabs

To create a menu with tabs, follow these steps:

- 1. Create a Web page containing the code listed at the beginning of this section.
- 2. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$('#tabs').tabs();
```

3. Add the following code after the <body> tag:

```
<div id="tabs">
<a href="#tab-a">A tab</a>
<a href="#tab-b">Another tab</a>
<a href="#tab-c">A third tab</a>
<div id="tab-a">This is the first tab</div>
<div id="tab-b">This is the second tab</div>
<div id="tab-c">This is the third tab</div>
</div>
```

4. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

You see tabs with your chosen theme, as shown in Figure 14-10.





Part IV: Using Plug-ins and Widgets _____

<u>Part V</u> Building AJAX Applications



'As a Web site designer I never thought I'd say this, but I don't think your site has enough bells and whistles."

In this part . . .

ou may not have heard of AJAX, but you've probably seen it in use. Every time you go to a Web site and the content on the page updates without the page reloading, you can be sure that AJAX is being used. AJAX is a big deal right now, and clever jQuery plug-in developers know it.

The next two chapters offer you a taste of how jQuery and AJAX work together. The subject of AJAX is worthy of a book on its own; Part V is a friendly introduction. When you're finished reading this part, you'll know where to find the best AJAX plug-ins for jQuery.

Chapter 15

Understanding How AJAX Works with jQuery

In This Chapter

- Using AJAX functions
- ▶ Loading content from other Web pages
- Sending form data to the Web server
- Updating a Web page without reloading it
- ▶ Triggering code at specific times

In this fairly recently, when you searched for something on a Web page or filled out a form and clicked the Submit button, a new page loaded. Now with AJAX, you can build pages that let a visitor submit information or search without ever reloading the page. Instead, the results are dynamically displayed on the same Web page as the form. In this chapter, you get an introduction to AJAX.

.

Understanding AJAX

AJAX stands for asynchronous JavaScript and XML, a scary-sounding mix of technologies, but don't let the buzzwords scare you. Think of AJAX as a programming technique that combines several technologies. And remember, you're in luck because jQuery simplifies AJAX for you.

The basic idea behind AJAX is to allow a Web page to interact with the Web server and to send information to the current page and get information from the current page without the visitor ever leaving the page.

Using jQuery AJAX functions, you get data from and send data to other pages or programs on the Web server without having to create the AJAX code. jQuery does the hard part of getting and sending data dynamically for you.

AJAX on the Web

Here are some examples of where you may have seen AJAX in use on the Web:

- In a Yahoo! or Google e-mail account, AJAX sends you new e-mail notifications without leaving the mail page.
- When you use Twitter, you automatically get a notification when people you follow have tweeted. Clicking the notification

loads these new tweets, again without you leaving the page.

- On Facebook, clicking a number of different links and options on the page changes the content on the page without sending you to a different page or reloading the current page.
- ✓ Yahoo! Maps and Google Maps dynamically update content as you scroll or zoom a map.

An additional benefit that jQuery offers is the ease with which you can make your AJAX communication happen in response to events. Instead of AJAX content showing up only when someone clicks something, you can use a jQuery event to make AJAX content appear to fade in when a visitor mouses over something on the page, for example. You see how to make AJAX interact with events later in this chapter.



Most chapters provide example code that you can save in a text file and view in a browser on your computer. You must test the examples in this chapter on a Web server because they are interacting with other pages or programs on the Web server.

This is a brief introduction to AJAX. Most AJAX applications depend on PHP, SQL, or another Web programming language or technology behind the scenes to manage the information being sent to or received from your Web page. The point of this chapter is to help you understand how data can be sent and received, not the manipulation of it behind the scenes.

Loading Data with AJAX

One of the simplest but most powerful uses of AJAX is grabbing information from Web pages, text files, or XML files and displaying it dynamically on your page.

Getting the contents of a text file

To display the contents of a text file on your Web page, follow these steps:

1. Create a text file with the following text:

```
This text is from my text file.
```

2. Save this file as mytext.txt on your Web server.

This file must be saved in the same directory on your Web server as the Web page you create in the next few steps.

3. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                                     "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
 <html>
 <head>
 <title>My Test Page</title>
 <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
 $(document).ready(function(){
 //Your code goes here.
});
 </script>
 </head>
 <bodv>
 <div></div>
 </body>
 </html>
```

4. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('div').load('mytext.txt');

5. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

The text in the text file appears on your Web page, as shown in Figure 15-1.

Getting the contents of a Web page

You can also use AJAX to pull in the contents of a Web page.

To display the contents of another Web page on your page, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<html>
<body>
<strong>This is from my Web page.</strong>
</body>
</html>
```

2. Save this file as mywebpage.html on your Web server.

As with the preceding example, this file must be saved in the same directory on your Web server as the Web page you create in the next few steps.

3. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
                                                                   "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
  <html>
 <head>
 <title>My Test Page</title>
 <script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></s
 <script type="text/javascript">
 $(document).ready(function(){
 //Your code goes here.
});
 </script>
 </head>
 <body>
 <div></div>
 </body>
 </html>
```

4. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('div').load('mywebpage.html');

5. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

The contents of the Web page file appears in the <div> element, as shown in Figure 15-2.



Figure 15-1: The contents of the text file appear on your page.

Chapter 15: Understanding How AJAX Works with jQuery



Getting part of a Web page

The preceding example grabbed all the contents of a Web page. The load() function allows you to grab a selection instead.

To display selected content from a Web page on your page, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<html>
<body>
<div id="monday">Content for Monday.</div>
<div id="tuesday">Content for Monday.</div>
<div id="wednesday">Content for Monday.</div>
<div id="thursday">Content for Monday.</div>
<div id="friday">Content for Monday.</div>
<div id="saturday">Content for Monday.</div>
<div id="sunday">Content for Monday.</div>
<div id="sunday">Content for Monday.</div>
<div id="sunday">Content for Monday.</div>
</body>
</html>
```

- 2. Save this file as days.html on your Web server.
- 3. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD XHTML 1.0 Strict//EN"
    "http://www.w3.org/TR/xhtml1/DTD/xhtml1-strict.dtd">
```

```
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<div></div>
</body>
</html>
```

4. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

\$('div').load('days.html' #friday);

Only the content in days.html with the id friday is selected and displayed in the <div> element on your page.

5. Save this file, and then open it in your browser.

The selected content in the Web page file appears in the <div> element, as shown in Figure 15-3.



Only the selected content Web page appears on your page.

Sending Data with AJAX

Traditional Web forms work as follows:

- 1. A visitor fills out the form fields.
- 2. The visitor clicks the Submit button.
- 3. The browser sends the data from the form fields to a file on the Web server that contains code, such as PHP.
- 4. This code does something with the information, such as e-mailing it or saving it to a database.
- 5. The code sends a new Web page to the visitor's browser.

With AJAX, the process changes to the following:

- 1. A visitor fills out the form fields.
- 2. The visitor clicks the Submit button.
- 3. AJAX techniques send the data from the form fields to a file on the Web server that contains code.
- 4. This code does something with the information, such as e-mailing it or saving it to a database.
- 5. The AJAX code receives a response from the processing code and updates the current Web page without reloading it.

You can use the jQuery post() function to send and receive data. A simple post() function looks like this:

\$.post(url, data, success())

Here are the parts of the ${\tt post}$ () function:

- ✓ \$.post: Begin the function.
- url: Contains the path to the file on the Web server to which you want to send data. For example, the path might be to a PHP file that will e-mail form data to you when a visitor submits it.
- data: Contains the data you want to send to the Web server. The information a visitor enters into a Web form, such as name and e-mail address, can be part of the data element.
- success: Contains code that executes if the data was sent to the url successfully. For example, the code in the success() function can send a message to the person who filled out the form, letting him or her know the form was sent.

Using other AJAX functions

In this chapter, you find out how to send data from a form to a PHP file on a Web server for further processing. Other jQuery AJAX functions let you execute code before sending data, after receiving data, when something goes wrong with the data transfer, or when the data is successfully sent or received.

AJAX involves the processing of data with Web server languages (such as PHP, .NET, and SQL) and technologies. For more information and examples of their use, visit api.jquery. com/category/ajax.

Here's an overview of some of jQuery AJAX functions:

- ajax(): Performs an AJAX request. This function can send and receive data from the Web server using either GET or POST.
- ajaxComplete(): Contains code to be executed when an AJAX request is completed.
- ajaxError():Contains code to be executed if an AJAX request causes an error.
- ajaxSend(): Contains code to be executed before an AJAX request is sent.

- ajaxStart(): Contains code to be executed when an AJAX request begins.
- ajaxStop(): Contains code to be executed after all AJAX requests have stopped.
- ajaxSuccess(): Contains code to be executed when an AJAX request completes successfully.
- get(): Performs an AJAX request. This function can send and receive data from the Web server using GET.
- getScript(): Loads a JavaScript file from the Web server.
- Load (): Loads data from the Web. For example, load data from a text file or HTML file. As in the first example in this chapter, the loaded data can be displayed inside an element on the current page.
- post (): Performs an AJAX request. This function can send and receive data from the Web server using POST.
- werialize(): Grabs the values from a
 Web form and turn them into a single string
 of data to send using get(), post(), or
 ajax() function.

Do the following to create a basic Web form that uses AJAX to send code to a PHP script:



1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

You must have a Web server that can process PHP code for these steps to work.

```
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<form id="testform">
Email: <input type="text" name="email" />
<br />
First Name: <input type="text" name="fname" />
<br />
Last Name: <input type="text" name="lname" />
<br />
<input type="button" name="submit" id="submit" value="Submit" />
</form>
</body></html>
```

2. Save this file to your Web server.

This code creates a simple Web form that asks for an e-mail address, first name, and last name (see Figure 15-4).



Figure 15-4: Web page with simple

3. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$("#testform").submit(function(){
//Code after form submitted
})
```

This code is triggered when the visitor clicks the Submit button on the form. The AJAX code will go inside this function.

4. Replace // Code after form submitted with the following code:

The $\mbox{s.post}$ jQuery function uses the \mbox{POST} method to send data to a PHP file.



You can use the jQuery get() function in the same way as post(). POST and GET are two techniques for sending form data to Web servers To learn more about Web programming, GET, POST, and Web server processing of data sent by a form, check out *HTML, XHTML, & CSS For Dummies* by Ed Tittel and Jeff Noble.

The serialize() function is a handy jQuery function that puts all the values of a submitted form in an query string.

Finally, the alert(data) command displays the data submitted in the form in a pop-up box. Seeing your data in a pop-up alert box is good for testing but unnecessary and annoying when you are using PHP code to process the form data.

5. Create the test.php file with the following code:

```
<?php
print_r($_POST);
?>
```



This PHP code displays the information sent by the jQuery post() function. If you weren't using AJAX, the data from the form would print on a blank page. But instead, the AJAX function displays the data in an alert box on the current page.

6. Open the Web page in your browser. Enter data in the form fields and click the Submit button.

You see an alert box containing the form data that was sent to the PHP file, as shown in Figure 15-5.

Chapter 15: Understanding How AJAX Works with jQuery



You can extend the code from the this example in a number of ways. You can use an alert to display a success message when the form is submitted. Or display a success message after the form is submitted by using a <div> element on the Web page. You can also hide the form after it has been submitted using jQuery hide methods.

Part V: Building AJAX Applications _____
Chapter 16 Using AJAX Plug-ins

In This Chapter

- ▶ Understanding the operation of jQuery plug-ins
- Creating a jQuery uploader
- Rotating content with AJAX
- Creating an AJAX pop-up window

Chapter 15 introduces you to jQuery AJAX functions. You find out how to load content from other Web pages and send and receive data from code files or scripts on your Web server. The AJAX functions allow you to execute code before and after AJAX requests, as well as when requests succeed or fail. But as with all jQuery functions, each AJAX function does a relatively small role. To build a robust AJAX Web application requires a great deal of coding.

.

As with jQuery plug-ins discussed previously in this book, the work of building robust AJAX-based applications already exists in the form of jQuery AJAX plug-ins, free extensions to the jQuery library that create AJAX effects with a minimal amount of effort on your part to install and use them.

This chapter introduces you to several jQuery plug-ins that use AJAX techniques, tells you where to get them, and shows you how to use them.

How AJAX jQuery Plug-ins Work

As with all jQuery plug-ins, AJAX plug-ins work in much the same way as jQuery. When you find a plug-in you want to use, you download a .js file and save it to a directory on your Web server. In your Web page, you include the path to that file. (For an overview of how jQuery plug-ins work, see Chapter 10.)

Unlike other jQuery plug-ins, however, AJAX plug-ins often need other code files on the Web server. AJAX exists to allow the transfer of data from and to a Web server without the current page reloading, and the code that receives the data and returns data back to the current page usually exists in additional files on the Web server.



Most chapters provide example code that you can save in a text file and view in a browser on your computer. The examples in this chapter must be tested on a Web server because they are interacting with other pages or programs on the Web server.

Using AJAX File Uploader

A common practice is to allow visitors to a Web page to upload a file to the Web server. With AJAX, the upload occurs without the Web page reloading. Instead, a success or failure message is displayed. Even nicer, most jQuery file uploaders include a progress bar so the user can see the progress of the upload.

A number of excellent jQuery AJAX file uploaders are available. A simple one to install is called AJAX Upload; its home page is located at http://valums.com/ajax-upload (see Figure 16-1).



To install and use AJAX Upload, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
//Your code goes here.
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<input type="button" id="upload_button" value="Upload">
</body>
</html>
```

This code creates a page with a button.

- 2. Browse to valums.com/ajax-upload and download the most recent version of the plug-in.
- 3. Unzip this plug-in and save the ajaxupload.js file in the js directory on your Web server.
- 4. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

and below it add this line:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/ajaxupload.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></scrip

The filename for the plug-in in your code must match the plug-in you downloaded and saved to the js directory on your Web server.

5. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

new AjaxUpload('#upload_button', {action: 'upload.php'});

The AjaxUpload() function is part of the AJAX Upload plug-in. This line of code tells the plug-in to tie the element with the id of upload_ button to the plug-in. When the visitor clicks the button, a file browse dialog box appears, as shown in Figure 16-2.

After the user selects a file to upload, the file information is sent to the PHP upload.php script, which handles the actual upload.

The upload.php script is just a placeholder for any code you want to use to handle the file upload itself.



The download file for the AJAX Upload plug-in includes not only a number of samples but also PHP code that you can use in your application. This file, called upload-handler.php, is in the server-side directory.



234 Part V: Building AJAX Applications



Rotating Dynamic Content

The Rich HTML Ticker plug-in displays content that changes every few minutes. Think of the plug-in as a rotating billboard. The plug-in pulls chunks of content into your Web page from an HTML page on your Web server, as shown in Figure 16-3.

To install and use the Rich HTML Ticker plug-in, do the following:

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

```
</body>
</html>
```

- 2. Browse to www.javascriptkit.com/script/script2/ richtmlticker.shtml and locate the link to richtmlticker.js.
- 3. Right-click the link and select Save As. Then save richhtmlticker.js in the js directory on your Web server.
- 4. Locate this line in the code:

```
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
```

and below it add these lines:

- * Rich HTML Ticker- by JavaScript Kit (www.javascriptkit.com)
- * This notice must stay intact for usage

```
</script>
```



The author of this plug-in requests that you include credit if you use the plug-in on your own site by adding the preceding comments to your code. Add the comments before the closing </script> tag. The comments are visible only when someone views the source code of your page.

()) · C (X	(The http://www.javascriptkit.com/script/script2/richhtmlticker.shtml
🕅 Cut & Paste Animated	Outline Menu +
Meta Tags Generator HTML Validation Tool	Description: Rich HTML Ticker is a practical script for displaying ordinary, rich HTML content in a rotated fashion on your page. The ticker content either be defined inline on the page, or within an external file and fetched using Ajax. A listing of the script's features: • Rotates regular HTML wrapped in DIV tags, either inline on the page, or within a <u>single external file</u> .
PreamTemplate PREMIUM WEB TEMPLATES	Taker pauses onMouseover. Session cockes used to persist the last message viewed, then recalled when the page is reloaded or returned to. This script is powered by the versatile (Query library.
DIOWNHOAD	Example:
CSS & XHTML for your design <w3-markurcom></w3-markurcom>	Sorting an JavaScript array using array.sorti) See how to harness the sort() method of JavaScript to sort an array aphabetically, numerically, or even shuffle the array elements.
SITE INFO	
Advertising Info	
Submit a script	
Link to Us!	
Email Us	
Privacy Statement	Directions:
	Step 1: Add the below sample HTML to your page, which includes two anchor links, plus two corresponding Animated Outline menus:
	<pre><script src="http://ajax.googleapis.com/ajax/libs/jquery/1.2.6
/jquery.min.js" type="text/javascript"></script> <script src="richtmlticker.js" type="text/javascript"></script></pre>

Figure 16-3: The Rich HTML Ticker plug-in changes the content after a specified interval.

- 5. In your text editor, open the file you saved in Step 3.
- 6. Scroll down to the last function in this file, richhtmlticker. define(), shown next:

7. Change the code

msgsource: "inline",

to read

msgsource: "mycontent.html",

The mycontent.html file will contain the dynamic content that you want to display.

8. Save the richhtmlticker.js file.

9. Create a Web page containing the following code:

10. Save this file as mycontent.html.

This file contains all the content. Each <div> element will be displayed in turn on the page you created in Step 1.

You can use any HTML code you want within the <div> elements in the mycontent.html file. You can also add as many <div> blocks as you want.

11. Open in a browser the file you created in Step 1.

Each <div> element in mycontent.html is displayed, one at a time, as shown in Figure 16-4.



Take another look at the code from richhtmlticker.js in Step 6:

You have three options you may want to modify:

- msgsource: Control where the content comes from. You can put the <div> code in a separate file, as you did in the preceding steps, or in the main file.
- rotatespeed: Control how long each <div> element containing content is visible.
- ✓ animateduration: Control the speed of the animation.

Part V: Building AJAX Applications



You can also use CSS style to control the appearance of the scrolling content. The demo at www.javascriptkit.com/script/script2/richhmlticker.shtml uses the following code to create a yellow box with a border that encloses the dynamic content, as shown in Figure 16-5.

```
<style type="text/css">
.tickerstyle{width:200px; height:180px; border:1px solid black;
background:lightyellow; padding:8px; overflow:hidden;}
.messagediv{display: none;background:lightyellow}
</style>
```



Creating AJAX Pop-Up Windows

In Chapter 15, you use the jQuery load function to load part or all of another Web page into the current page. The jmpopups plug-in allows you to load another Web page as a lightbox-style pop-up window over the current page. You can load multiple pop-ups at the same time (see Figure 16-6).

To create a page with an AJAX pop-up window using the jmpopups plug-in, do the following:

000		jmpopups – exa	mple page		0
	http://otavioavila	a.com/jmpopups-example/		Google	Q)
jmpopups - example pag	e +				×.
jmpopups	- examp	le page			
This is a page with a usage exan For more details access <u>http://m</u>	ple of the library impopups. copupa.googlecode.com				
S.openPopupLayer(name: "mySecondPopup" watch: 550, Toront "multidaeDos"	Now an ajax (It works!	Close		
Bight, hypothesister		Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, o elit. Sed non ligula nisl, mattis	consectetur adipiscing s ullamcorper dolor.		
Open a popuo using a html contr 6:	sti Im StopenPopupt aye name: "mySe width: 300, unt."ajex, exe	-My form	_		
le		Field 2			
K- Did you lind some bug? Please o	Open a popub using				
ıp		Field 3			
/S					
th					
nt					
er					
IL					
S.					

Figure 16-6 Multipli lightbox style pop-up window with conten from othe HTM pages

1. Create a Web page containing the following code:

This code creates a page with a link that will open the AJAX pop-up window.

- 2. Browse to code.google.com/p/jmpopups and download the most recent version of the plug-in.
- 3. Unzip the plug-in and save the jquery.jmpopups-0.5.1.js file in the js directory on your Web server.

Part V: Building AJAX Applications



Your version of this file may differ. Keep track of the actual filename and use it in the following step.

4. Locate this line in the code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

and below it add this line:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery.jmpopups-0.5.1.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></scr

The plug-in filename in your code must match the plug-in you downloaded and saved to the js directory on your Web server.

5. Replace // Your code goes here. with the following code:

```
$.setupJMPopups({
screenLockerBackground: "#000000",
screenLockerOpacity: "0.5"
});
function ajaxPopup() {
$.openPopupLayer({
name: "myPopup",
width: 300,
url: "mypopup.html"
});
}
```

The setupJMPopups() function contains two options that control the appearance of the screen when the pop-up opens. The ajaxPopup() function specifies how wide to make the pop-up and where to find the content. In this example, the content comes from the mypopup.html page we create and save in the next step.

- 6. Create a Web page named mypopup.html and use a text editor to add the content that you want to appear in the pop-up window. Save the page to your Web server.
- 7. Open the page you created in Step 1, and then click the Open pop-up link.

A pop-up window appears containing the content from mypopup.html.





Figure 16-7: HTML page appears in a pop-up window.

Part V: Building AJAX Applications _____

Part VI Integrating jOuery with Content Management Systems



"Evidently he died of natural causes following a marathon session animating everything on his personal Web site. And no, Morganstern – the irony isn't lost on me."

In this part . . .

reating HTML pages on your own can be tedious. As an alternative, many people turn to Content Management Systems to help them build and manage robust Web sites quickly and easily. You've probably heard of at least one of the three most popular Content Management Systems: Drupal, Joomla, and WordPress. And better yet, they're free.

All three software applications can use the jQuery library and even some jQuery plug-ins. In the next three chapters, you find how to use jQuery with each one and where to find compatible jQuery plug-ins for each.

Chapter 17

Cool Image Effects with jQuery and Drupal

In This Chapter

- ▶ Finding jQuery Drupal modules
- Including jQuery effects in Drupal posts
- ▶ Using the Thickbox jQuery plug-in with Drupal
- Installing and enabling jQuery modules in Drupal

Orupal is a popular, free software application that you use to build and manage a Web site and the content you post to it. Drupal also allows you to use modules, or add-ons, that extend the functionality of your Web site. Some of these modules incorporate jQuery plug-ins.

.

This chapter shows you how to find and use several jQuery-based Drupal modules devoted to fancy image effects.



This chapter does not provide you with information about setting up a Drupal Web site. Instead, the focus is on adding jQuery-based Drupal modules to your existing Drupal site. To get a Drupal site up and running, check out my *Drupal For Dummies*.

Investigating Drupal Modules

Before you can use a jQuery-based Drupal module, you have to find, down-load, and install it. This section shows you how.

Finding Drupal modules

When looking for new Drupal modules, the best place to go is http://
drupal.org. To find modules that use jQuery, follow these steps:

1. Browse to drupal.org, which is shown in Figure 17-1.

5 Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems



- 2. Click the Modules link, on the right side of the page.
- **3.** In the Search Modules section on the right, type jQuery in the search box and then click Submit.

The screen displays a list of jQuery-based Drupal modules, as shown in Figure 17-2.



You can view the most popular modules by clicking the Usage Statistics link in the Sort by menu on the right side of the page. Click the link once to display the list in the most-popular-first order. Click the link again to reverse the order.

Downloading Drupal modules

Before you can use jQuery-based Drupal modules with images, you need images on your Drupal site. The easiest way to include images on a Drupal site is to use the Image module. The Image module isn't part of the default Drupal installation. Several jQuery Drupal modules require the Image module to function, so you need to download and install it on your Drupal Web site. The Drupal module needs to be downloaded to your computer, uploaded to your Web server, extracted, enabled, and configured.

To download the Image module, follow these steps:

Chapter 17: Cool Image Effects with jQuery and Drupal



- 1. Browse to drupal.org/project/image.
- 2. Scroll down the page to find the download links, shown in Figure 17-3.
- **3.** Click the link to download the Image module, and save it to a directory you will remember.

The module is downloaded as a single compressed .tar.gz file.

As of this writing, the most current version of the Image module for Drupal 6 is 6.x-1.0-beta5. Feel free to download the more recent version of the Image module.

4. Log in to the control panel on your ISP's Web site.

The control panel is a Web page that lists various Web applications that allow you to control your Web site.



If you're comfortable using FTP software, you can connect directly to your Web server with the FTP login and password provided by your ISP. If you go this route, extract the module on your local computer and use your FTP application to upload the extracted Images directory to the Web server's module directory under your Drupal installation.

5. Click the link to a file manager, such as File Manager or File Manager Pro.

You need a file manager so that you can select the <code>.tar.gz</code> file and put it in the <code>module</code> directory on your Web server. After you click the file manager, you will see a screen that displays the files on your Web server.

248 Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems



6. Click the single folder or directory named html, www, or htdocs.

There may be several directories, but the one for your Web site should be easy to spot. Look for the directory containing several subdirectories including modules, scripts, sites, and themes. This area is where all your Web pages belong, and where you installed Drupal.

7. Click the modules directory.

8. Click the Upload link in your file manager.

You see an upload form with a Browse button.

9. Click Browse and select the .tar.gz file you downloaded in Step 3. Click Upload.

The compressed file containing the module is now on your site in the correct folder and ready to be extracted.

10. Click the .tar.gz module to select the file.

You see a list of files stored inside your compressed file, all selected.

- 11. Leave the selection set to Uncompress All, and then click the Go button.
- 12. Select the original .tar.gz module file on your Web server and delete it.

Enabling the Image and Image Gallery modules

After you have uploaded and extracted the Image module, it will show up in Drupal's list of modules. To enable the Image module, follow these steps:

1. Log in to your Drupal site as administrator, and choose Administer ⇒ Site Building Modules.

The Image module is made up of several modules, as you can see in Figure 17-4.

2. Select the Enabled check box next to the Image module and the Image Gallery module.

3. Click Save configuration.

The new modules are activated.

	(http://	drupalfordumn	nies.com/adr	nin/build/modules	☆ マ)・(8)	Google
Andules Drupal for Dummies	+					
			5	opendo on recontra (didabico)		
	- Image					
	Enabled	Name	version	Allows uploading resizing and viewing of images	-	
	Z	Image	6.x-1.0-beta	Required by: Image Attach (enabled), Image Attach Browse (enabled), Image Gallery (enabled), Image Import (enabled), Image Gallery Access (enabled)		
	2	Image Attach	6.x-1.0-beta	Allows easy attaching of image nodes to other content types. Depends on: Image (enabled) Required by: Image Attach Browse (enabled)		
	ø	Image Attach Browse	6.x-1.x-dev	Extends Image Attach with a paged-ajaxy image thumbnail browser Depends on: Image (enabled), Image Attach (enabled)		
	Z	Image Gallery	6.x-1.0-beta	Allows sorting and displaying of image galleries based on categories. Depends on: Image (enabled), Taxonomy (enabled) Required by: Image Gallery Access (enabled)		
	ø	Image Import	6.x-1.0-beta	Allows batches of images to be imported from a directory on the server. Depends on: Image (enabled)		
	ø	ImageMagick Advanced Options	6.x-1.0-beta	Adds advanced options to the ImageMagick image toolkit.		
	- Other					
	Enabled	Name	Version	Description		
	Ľ	Apture	6.x-1.7	Apture module		
	Ø	Author Pane	6.x-1.1	Gathers information from user related contrib modules into one template.		
	Z	Daily Twitter	6.x-1.1	Automatically adds daily twitter post summaries to an individual's blog. Depends on: Blog (enabled)		
		Frequently Asked Questions	6.x-1.11	Manages configuration of questions for a FAQ page.		
	M	Mollom	6.x-1.10	Protects against comment and contact form spam.		



Before you can create image effects with jQuery, you need to create a Drupal image gallery and upload images to your Drupal site. To accomplish these task, follow these steps:

- 1. Log in to your Drupal site as administrator, and choose Administer Content Management⇔Image Galleries.
- 2. Click the Add Gallery tab.

The Add Gallery form appears, as shown in Figure 17-5.

- 3. For Gallery Name, enter a short, descriptive title.
- 4. For Description, enter a few sentences that describe the images you will be storing in the gallery.



5. Click Save.

The Image Gallery module allows you to create as many galleries as you want. Simply repeat the preceding steps to add additional galleries.

Adding images to your gallery

Now that you've created your galleries, you can add images to them. To add an image to your new gallery, do the following:



Figure 17-5: Add gallery form to create a new image gallery. 1. Log in to your Drupal site as administrator, and choose Create Content=>Image.

The Create Image form appears, as shown in Figure 17-6.

- 2. Enter a title for your image in the Title field.
- **3.** Select one of the galleries you created in the preceding example from the Image Galleries drop-down list.
- 4. Click the Image text box or the Browse button and select the file you want to upload.
- 5. If you want to add more information about this image, type it in the Body field.
- 6. Click Save.

Your image is placed in your image gallery. You can add more images to this gallery, or other galleries you've created, by repeating these steps.

To view your new image gallery, browse to your Drupal site, yourwebsite name.com/image. For example, mine is located at drupalfordummies.com/image.



Creating Image Effects in Drupal

With the Image and Image Gallery modules now in place, you can add additional jQuery-based image modules so you can add jQuery effects to your images. A simple but impressive jQuery module to start with is Thickbox, which you can see at jquery.com/demo/thickbox. Thickbox is an easy-to-use, jQuery-based lightbox, as shown in Figure 17-7.

This section shows you where to get Thickbox and how to install and use it with your Drupal images.

Getting the Thickbox jQuery module for Drupal

The Thickbox module is available on the drupal.org Web site. To download this file, do the following:

- 1. Browse to drupal.org/project/thickbox.
- 2. Follow Steps 2–12 in the "Downloading Drupal modules" section, previously in this chapter.

Enabling Thickbox

1. Log in to your Drupal site as administrator, and choose Administer: Site Building: Modules.

The Thickbox module is under the Other section on the page, as shown in Figure 17-8.

- 2. Select the Enabled option next to the Thickbox module.
- 3. Click Save configuration.

Thickbox is now enabled.

Chapter 17: Cool Image Effects with jQuery and Drupal



Figure 17-7: The Thickbox module allows you to create a lightbox overlay for an image.

the

	000			Modul	es Drupal for Dummies		\bigcirc
		http://e	drupalfordummie	es.com/ad	dmin/build/modules	Google	Q
	Modules Drupal for Dummies	+					च
		Z	Advanced 6 Options	i.x-1.0-bet	a3 toolkit.		ſ
		- Other					
		Enabled	Name	Version	Description	_	
		◄	Apture	6.x-1.7	Apture module		
			Author Pane	6.x-1.1	Gathers information from user related contrib modules into one template.		
		\checkmark	Daily Twitter	6.x-1.1	Automatically adds daily twitter post summaries to an individual's blog. Depends on: Blog (enabled)		
			Frequently Asked Questions	6.x-1.11	Manages configuration of questions for a FAQ page.		
		◄	Mollom	6.x-1.10	Protects against comment and contact form spam.		
			Poormanscron	6.x-1.0	Internal scheduler for users without a cron application.		
		◄	Thickbox	6.x-1.5	Enables Thickbox, a jQuery plugin.		
		V	Token	6.x-1.12	Provides a shared API for replacement of textual placeholders with actual data. Required by: TokenSTARTER (disabled), Token action (enabled)	8	
		Z	Token actions	6.x-1.12	Provides enhanced versions of core Drupal actions usi the Token module. Depends on: Token (enabled)	ng	
Figure 17-8:			TokenSTARTER	6.x-1.12	Provides additional tokens and a base on which to buil your own tokens. Depends on: Token (enabled)	d	
The Thickbox			User registration notification	6.x-1.11	Notifies administrator of new user registrations.		ſ
modulo on		- Cuam	aantral				
		Enabled	Name Vers	ion	Description		
the Modules		₹	AntiSpam 6.x-1	1.0-beta2	Use the anti-spam service to protect your site from spam		
page.		7	CAPTCHA 6.x-2	2.1	Base CAPTCHA module for adding challenges to arbitrat forms.	ry	4
	Done						A.

Using Thickbox with your Image Gallery

To add the Thickbox jQuery module to your Image Gallery, do the following:

1. Log in to your Drupal site as administrator, and choose Administer Site Configuration Thickbox.

The Thickbox configuration page appears, as shown in Figure 17-9.

- 2. Select the Enabled for Image Nodes option under the Image Module Options section.
- 3. Select Original from the Image derivative drop-down list.
- 4. Click Save Configuration.

The Thickbox plug-in appears when you click an Image Gallery image. You can see an example of this action by clicking one of the thumbnail images in the Image Gallery at drupalfordummies.com/image (see Figure 17-10).



Chapter 17: Cool Image Effects with jQuery and Drupal



Integrating jQuery in Drupal

The preceding example used one of the many jQuery modules available for Drupal. But suppose you want to create a simple jQuery effect on an HTML element — as you do in Chapters 5, 6, and 7 — on your Drupal site? Drupal manages your site's content and navigation for you, so you can't easily create an HTML page and integrate it into your Drupal site.

First, you need your Drupal content set up to include jQuery code. Second, the jQuery library has to be included in your page with a <script> tag.

Configuring Drupal to recognize jQuery

To ensure that you can include jQuery code in your Drupal-generated content, such as pages and stories, do the following:

- 1. Log in to your Drupal site as administrator, and choose Administer Site Configuration I Input Formats.
- 2. Select the Full HTML option.
- 3. Click the Set Default Format button.

Now each time you post content, you can include jQuery code as well and Drupal will interpret it correctly. But you still need to make sure the path to the jQuery library is included.

Including the jQuery library in Drupal content

By default, Drupal installs a copy of jQuery. It's not the most recent version of jQuery, but in general most of the code in this book will work with the included version. But even though the jQuery code is installed, it isn't included in the HTML code of Drupal-generated pages and stories you create. An additional step is necessary to include the jQuery library in your pages.



A handy Drupal module called jQuery Update keeps your version of jQuery current. You can download this module from drupal.org/project/jquery_update. To install and enable the jQuery Update module, follow the steps for installing and enabling the Image module, presented in the "Downloading Drupal modules" and the "Enabling the Image and Image Gallery modules" sections.

To make sure the current jQuery library is included, do the following:

- 1. Choose Administer Site Building Themes.
- 2. Locate and note the name of the currently enabled theme.
- 3. Log in to your control panel on your ISP's Web site.
- 4. Click the link to a file manager.
- 5. Click the single folder or directory named html, www, or htdocs.
- 6. Click the themes folder.
- 7. Locate and open the folder that has the same name as your current Drupal theme, which you identified in Step 2.
- 8. Open the .info file inside the theme folder and use a text editor to add this line to the end:

scripts[] = jquery.js

The .info file contains a number of lines that control how the theme will be displayed. Figure 17-11 shows the .info file for the Bluemarine theme with the scripts line added.

Chapter 17: Cool Image Effects with jQuery and Drupal



9. Save the modified .info file.

When you include jQuery code in your page or story, the code will execute correctly.

You can now include any jQuery effect in your page or story. For example, create a story on your Drupal site with the following code:

```
This text will fade out if you click it.<script>$('p').click(function () {$('p').fadeOut('slow');});
```

When you preview or view this content on your site, it will behave as expected, with the text in the paragraph fading from view when you click it (see Figure 17-12).

Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems _



Chapter 18

Integrating jQuery and Joomla!

.

In This Chapter

- Getting jQuery to work with Joomla
- Creating a jQuery effect in a Joomla article
- ▶ Using a jQuery extension with Joomla
- Adding a jQuery-based image gallery for Joomla

Chapter 17 discussed using jQuery with Drupal. Like Drupal, Joomla! is a free software application that helps you build and manage a Web site and its content. And Joomla!, like Drupal, can be enhanced with the addition of extensions, some of which incorporate jQuery plug-ins. Unlike Drupal, however, Joomla! does not support jQuery by default. Joomla! uses a different JavaScript library that makes integrating jQuery code in a Joomla! site more difficult than in Drupal.

.

This chapter shows you how to install an extension that helps you overcome the code conflicts between jQuery and the JavaScript library that Joomla! uses. You also discover where to find and incorporate several jQuery-based Joomla! extensions.



This chapter does not provide information about setting up a Joomla! Web site. Instead, you add jQuery-based Joomla! extensions to an existing Joomla! site. To get a Joomla! site up and running, check out *Joomla! For Dummies* by Steve Holzner and Nancy Conner.

Understanding How jQuery Works with Joomla!

Suppose that you want to create a simple jQuery effect on an HTML element, as you do in Chapters 5, 6, and 7. Joomla! manages your content, but you can't use jQuery with Joomla! without some initial setup. First, you need to install the jQuery library and then you need to call it in your code.

Configuring Joomla! to recognize jQuery

You're in luck. A handy plug-in for Joomla! called SC jQuery installs a version of jQuery and allows you to use it. Here's how to get and install SC jQuery:

1. Browse to http://snellcode.com/downloads.



- You can avoid Steps 1-4 and install the plug-in directly from the snellcode.com site if, in the field below the Install from URL section, you enter the entire URL: http://snellcode.com/releases/plg_system_scjquery.zip.
- 2. Click the SC jQuery menu bar on the right side of the page.

The SC jQuery section expands, as shown in Figure 18-1.

- 3. Click the Download plg_system_scjquery.zip button, and save the file to a location you will remember.
- 4. Browse to your Joomla! site's control panel, and choose Extensions: Install/Uninstall.

The Extension Manager appears, as shown in Figure 18-2.



Figure 18-1: The home page for the SC jQuery Joomla! plug-in.

Chapter 18: Integrating jQuery and Joomla!

	()) - C X	Search B	lookmarks and H	Extens	sion Manager : In	nstall		•• 8.	Google	۵	ĺ
	Extension Mana	ager : Install +									;
	Joomle	a! jQuery For	Dummies	3						Version 1.5.15	
	Site Menus C	Content Components	Extensions	Tools	Help			M Preview	©0 \$\$	1 🔍 Logout	
	Extens	sion Manager								Q Help	
	Install Compo	onents Modules Pl	ugins Langu	lages	Templates						
	Upload Package File	e				Browse	Upload File & Ins	tall			
	Install from Director	ry									
	Install Directory:	/home/drupalfo/public_	html/joomla/tmp	p			Install				
	Install from URL Install URL:	http://snellcode.com/re	leases/plg_syster	m_scjquery	y.zip		Install				
			Joomla! is F	Free Softwar	re released under tr	he GNU/GPL License.					
Figure 18-2: The Joomla! Extension Manager.											
Ĵ	Done									the ,	1

- 5. Click the Browse button below the Upload Package File section, and select the plg_system_scjquery.zip file.
- 6. Choose Extensions >Plugin Manager.

You see a list of all installed Joomla! plug-ins, including the one you just installed. You still need to enable the new SC jQuery plug-in.

7. Browse through the list and locate the SC jQuery plug-in. Click the small red x icon under the Enabled column for the SC jQuery plug-in, as shown in Figure 18-3.

Click Next if necessary to display the second page.

Accessing jQuery from Joomla!

When you add a new post to your Joomla! site, you create a Joomla! *article*. To use jQuery code in your Joomla! articles, you must put the code inside the following code:

```
jQuery(function($) {
   //Your jQuery code goes here.
});
```

To create a simple jQuery fade effect when a element is clicked in a Joomla! article, follow these steps:

262 Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems _____

Outery For Dummies - Administra	rsion 1
Site Menus Content Components Extensions Tools Help Provide O # 1 Image: Plugin Manager Imag	rsion
Site Menus Content Components Extensions Tools Help Preview © 0 % 1 Image: Plugin Manager Plugin Manager Image: Pl	
Plugin Manager Sendo Disabe Edit Filer: Coo Reset -Select TypeSelect St Plugin Name Enable Order Access Level TypeSelect St Plugin Name Enable Order Access Level TypeSelect St Plugin Name Enable Order Access Level TypeSelect St Plugin Name Plugin Name Access Level Type	© Lo
Filer: Go Reset Select Type - Y - Select Typ	Ç
Filter: Co Reset - Select Type - * - Select St # Plugin Name Enabled Order * Access Level Type - * - Select St 21 Search - Sections ✓ * 5 Public search sections 22 Search - Newsfeeds ✓ * 6 Public search newsfeeds 23 System - SC JOUery ✓ * 1 Public system scjquery 24 System - SEF ✓ * 1 Public system scjquery 26 System - Debug ✓ * * 2 Public system legacy 27 System - Cache ✓ * * 3 Public system legacy 28 System - Log ✓ * * 5 Public system log 29 System - Remember Me ✓ * * 6 Public system backlink 30 System - Backlink ✓ * 7 Public user joomla 31 User - Joomlal ✓ Ø Public user joomla <th>H</th>	H
# Plugin Name Enabled Order ☆ Access Level Type_ File 21 Search - Sections ✓ ✓ 5 Public search sections 22 Search - Newsfeeds ✓ ▲ 6 Public search newsfeeds 23 System - Sc JQuery Q ✓ 0 Public system sc jQuery 24 System - SEF ✓ ▲ 1 Public system set 25 System - Debug ✓ ▲ 1 Public system debug 26 System - Logacy Q ▲ 3 Public system legacy 27 System - Log Q ▲ 4 9 Public system legacy 28 System - Log Q ▲ 5 Public system log 29 System - Renember Me ✓ ▲ 6 Public system backlink 30 System - Backlink Q ▲ 7 Public system backlink 31 User - Joomlal ✓ Q Q Public user joomla	ate -
21 Search - Sections ✓ ✓ 5 Public search newsfeeds 22 Search - Newsfeeds ✓ ▲ 6 Public search newsfeeds 23 System - Sc JOuery ✓ ▲ 6 Public system sciquery 24 System - SEF ✓ ▲ 1 Public system sef 25 System - Debug ✓ ▲ 1 Public system debug 26 System - Legacy ✓ ▲ 3 Public system legacy 27 System - Log ✓ ▲ 4 Public system legacy 28 System - Log ✓ ▲ 5 Public system legacy 29 System - Remember Me ✓ ▲ 5 Public system backlink 30 System - Backlink ✓ ▲ 7 Public system backlink 31 User - Joomlal ✓ ● 9 Public user joomla	,
22 Search - Newsfeeds Image: Comparison of the system Search - Newsfeeds Image: Comparison of the system Search - Newsfeeds Search - Newsfeeds <td< td=""><td>_</td></td<>	_
23 System - Sc JQuery Image: System - Sc JQuery	
24 System - SEF Image: system - Debug Image: s	1
25 System - Debug Image: Comparison of the system - Legacy Image:	:
28 System - Legacy Image: Constraint of the system - Legacy Image:	1
27 System - Cache Image:	1
28 System - Log Image: System - Log Image: System - Remember Me I	3
29 System - Remember Me Image: Comparison of the system - Remember Me sy	3
30 System - Backlink Image: System - Backlink	3
31 🔲 User - Joomla!	3
32 🖸 XML-RPC - Joomla 🕲 🔻 7 Public xmlrpc joomla	1

Figur Ena jQι clicki sma icon

> 1. Browse to your Joomla! site's control panel, and then choose **Content** Article Manager.

The Article Manager appears, as shown in Figure 18-4.

2. Click the green New button in the Article Manager menu bar.

The New Article page appears, as shown in Figure 18-5.



If you see the text editor shown in Figure 18-5, and you type jQuery code in the form, Joomla! will treat your code as text, not as code. You need to enter it as HTML code, which you do next.

Chapter 18: Integrating jQuery and Joomla!

Article Manager Image: Constraint of the state of							Help	ns Tool	Extensio	Components	Content	lenus	,	ite
Filter: Co Reset - Select Section - Select Category - Select Author # Title Published Front Page Order the Category Access Level Section - Category 1 test Image: Category Image: Category 0 0	ameters	New	Trash Edit	ve Copy	h Move	h Unput	Archive F	Unarchive		nager	cle Mar	Arti	Char- Intro	10.00
# Title Published Front Page Order Access Section Category Author 1 test ✓ 1 Public 0 0	lect State -	thor – 💌	- Select A	t Category -	– Select	Section -	– Se		eset	Go			er:	Filt
1 🖸 test 👳 🖌 1 Public 0	ate Hits	Author	Category	Section	vel S	er 🗞 🧍	ont Page	Published		Title				#
	03.10 0				blic	1	₹	1				test		1
Published, but is <u>Pending</u> Published and is <u>Current</u> To Published, but has <u>Expired</u> O Not Published O Archived Click on icon to toggle state.		Archived	Published I 🚫	ed I 😳 NotF	as <u>Expired</u>	blished, bu gle state.	Current I	Jblished and	ing I 👳 Pi	blished, but is Penc	Put			

Figure 18-4: The Joomla! Article Manager.

Do



3. Click the blue word *HTML*.

The HTML editor opens, and you can enter <script> tags and jQuery code, as shown in Figure 18-6.

4. Type the following code in the HTML source editor:

```
This is a jQuery test.
If you click on this paragraph you'll see it just fade away.
<script type="text/javascript">
    jQuery(function($) {
    $('p').click(function () {
    $('p').fadeOut('slow');
    });
});
</script>
```

5. Click the Update button.

6. Enter a title for your page and publish it as you would any Joomla! article.

When you view the article on your Joomla! site, clicking the text in the element causes the element to fade away. Reload to see the effect again.



Figure 18-6: The HTML editor.

Finding jQuery Extensions for Joomla!

The best place to find jQuery extensions for Joomla! is joomla.com. To find extensions that use jQuery, do the following:

- 1. Browse to extensions.joomla.com (see Figure 18-7).
- 2. Type jQuery in the search box in the top-right of the page, and then press Enter.

A list of extensions ordered by user rating is displayed.



Using jQuery Extensions with Joomla!

After you locate a jQuery extension, you still need to install, enable, and configure it. This section demonstrates how to install and use two jQuery Joomla! extensions: an image gallery and a Twitter plug-in.

Creating an image gallery

The first jQuery-based plug-in for Joomla! is a simple image gallery called, appropriately, Very Simple Image Gallery. To download and enable the Very Simple Image Gallery extension, do the following:

1. Browse to www.bretteleben.de/lang-en/joomla/very-simpleimage-gallery.html.



You can avoid Steps 1–3 and install the plug-in directly if you enter in the field below the Install from URL section the entire URL to the zip file: http://www.bretteleben.de/attachments/080_plugin_ vsig_1.5.5.zip.

2. Scroll down the page and click the link to download plugin_ vsig_1.5.5.zip.

The link is located about halfway down the page, as shown in Figure 18-8.

- 3. Save the plugin_vsig_1.5.5.zip file to a location you will remember.
- 4. Browse to your Joomla! site's control panel, and choose Extensions Install/Uninstall.
- 5. Click the Browse button below the Upload Package File section, and then select the plugin_vsig_1.5.5.zip file.



266
6. Choose Extensions >Plugin Manager.

You see a list of all installed Joomla! plug-ins. You still need to enable the new plug-in.

7. Click the small red x icon under the Enabled column for the Very Simple Image Gallery plug-in.

You may have to click the Next link at the bottom of the list to find the plug-in.

Now you can create your first image gallery. To do so, follow these steps:

1. Browse to your Joomla! site's control panel, and choose Site=>Media Manager.

The Media Manager appears, as shown in Figure 18-9.

- 2. Click the stories folder on the left side.
- **3.** Type a name for a new folder in the text field on the right, below the Files section.

In Figure 18-9, I typed the name mygallery.



4. Click the Create Folder button.

Your new folder now appears in the folder list on the left in the stories folder.

- 5. Select your new folder and scroll to the bottom of the page to the Upload File form, which is shown in Figure 18-10.
- 6. Click Browse, select the image file you want to upload, and click Open. Then click Start Upload.
- 7. Repeat Step 6 until you have uploaded all the images you want in your gallery.

Now that your images are loaded into your folder, you need to display your gallery in an article.

- 8. Choose Content Article Manager. Edit or create a new article where you want your article to appear.
- 9. In the New Article or Edit Article page, add the following code to your article where you want your gallery to appear (see Figure 18-11):

{vsig}mygallery{/vsig}

10. Click the Save button to save your article.

Your gallery now appears in the article, as shown in Figure 18-12.



Chapter 18: Integrating jQuery and Joomla!

	jQuery For Dummies - Administration	ption=com_content& 🏠 🔻	Coogle Q	
	Site Menus Content Components Extensions Tools Help		Version 1.5.15	
	Article: [Edit]	Preview	Save Apply Close Help	
	Title my gallery Published No Yes Alas my-gallery Front Page No Yes Section Uncategorised ▼ Category Uncategorised ▼	Article ID: 2 State Published Hits 0 Revised 4 Times Created Tuesday, 0 Modified Tuesday, 0)2 March 2010 01:59 12 March 2010 02:33	
	B / ឬ Ank 臣 吾 妻 重 Styles · Paragraph · 臣 曰 臣 禄 孝 ળ (* ⇔ 委 贞 昱 ♂ @ wm. - 2 (圓 ×, ×* Ω	Parameters (Article) Author Author Author Allas		
Figure 18-11: The code	Here's my gallery: (vsig)mygallery(/vsig)	Access Level Created Date	Public 2010-03-02 01:59:56	
indicates where I want the		Start Publishing Finish Publishing	2010-03-02 01:59:56	
gallery to appear.		 Parameters (Advance) Metadata Information 	sed) in	



Displaying tweets from Twitter on your Joomla! page

Another nifty jQuery-based extension for Joomla! is called jTweet, which displays your tweets from Twitter.com on your Joomla! site. To download and enable the jTweet extension, do the following:

- 1. Browse to joomlabamboo.com/joomla-extensions/free-joomlaextensions/jtweet-free-joomla-twitter-module.
- 2. Scroll down the page and click the link to download JB_jTweet_ J1.5_v1.5.2.zip. Then save the file to a directory you will remember.

The Download link is located at the bottom right, as shown in Figure 18-13.

- 3. Browse to www.joomlabamboo.com/joomla-extensions/freejoomla-extensions/jb-library-plugin-a-free-joomlajquery-plugin and download the JB Library plug-in.
- 4. Browse to your Joomla! site's control panel.
- 5. Choose Extensions Install/Uninstall.



- 6. Click the Browse button below the Upload Package File section and upload one of the two .zip files you just downloaded. Then upload the other one.
- 7. Choose Extensions >Plugin Manager.

You see a list of all installed Joomla! plug-ins. You still need to enable the new plug-in.

8. Click the small red x icon under the Enabled column for the JB Library plug-in.

You may have to click the Next link at the bottom of the list to find the plug-in.

- 9. Choose Extensions Module Manager.
- **10.** Click the small red x icon under the Enabled column for the jTweet extension.

You need to add your Twitter information to this module. To do so, follow these steps:

- 1. Browse to your Joomla! site's control panel.
- 2. Choose Extensions Module Manager, and click the jTweet extension.

The Edit Module settings for jTweet appears, as shown in Figure 18-14.



272 Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems



A number of settings are available in the Edit Module settings for jTweet. Check out www.joomlabamboo.com/joomla-extensions/freejoomla-extensions/jtweet-free-joomla-twitter-module to find out more.

- 3. In the Twitter Username(s) field on the right, type your Twitter username.
- 4. Click the Save button.

Your tweets now appear on your Joomla! site, as shown in Figure 18-15.



Chapter 19

Building Better Blogs with jQuery and WordPress

In This Chapter

Getting jQuery to work with WordPress

.

- Locating jQuery-based WordPress plug-ins
- Installing and activating WordPress plug-ins
- ▶ Using the Colorbox plug-in

WordPress is a free software application that helps you build and manage a Web site, typically one that features a blog. WordPress manages the content you post to it, automatically archiving old entries. Like Drupal and Joomla!, WordPress can be enhanced with the addition of plugins, some of which incorporate jQuery. WordPress also supports jQuery by default, making it relatively easy to use jQuery code in your posts.

.

This chapter shows you how to use jQuery code in your WordPress site and how to locate and use some impressive jQuery-based WordPress plug-ins.



This chapter does not provide information about setting up a WordPress Web site. Instead, the focus is on adding jQuery-based WordPress extensions to your existing WordPress site. To get a WordPress site up and running, check out *WordPress For Dummies*, 3rd Edition, by Lisa Sabin-Wilson.

Making jQuery Work with WordPress

By default, WordPress installs a copy of jQuery. But even though the jQuery code is installed, it isn't included in the template code of WordPress posts and pages. You have to explicitly include the jQuery code.

To include jQuery in your WordPress pages, do the following:

1. Browse to your WordPress administration panel and log in.



2. Click to expand the Appearance menu on the left, as shown in Figure 19-1.

3. Click the Editor link.

The WordPress editor appears with a list of files on the right.

4. Click the Header (header.php) file link on the right.

The header.php file opens in the editor.

5. Locate this line in the header.php file:

<head profile="http://gmpg.org/xfn/11">

and add the following code directly below it:

```
<?php wp_enqueue_script("jquery"); ?>
<?php wp_head(); ?>
```

This code calls the jQuery library that was installed with WordPress (see Figure 19-2). Because this jQuery call occurs in the Header file, jQuery will now be included on all site pages for this WordPress theme.



The second line, <?php wp_head(); ?>, is probably already in the <head> section of the Header file. If it is, you can leave it out here, but it doesn't hurt anything if it appears twice.

Chapter 19: Building Better Blogs with jQuery and WordPress



6. Scroll down the page and click the Update File button to save your changes.

You can now include any jQuery effect in your post. For example, to add a fade out effect when a paragraph is clicked, do the following:

- 1. Browse to your WordPress administration panel and log in.
- 2. Click to expand the Posts menu on the left, as shown in Figure 19-3.
- 3. Click Add New.

The WordPress Add New Post page appears.



If you type jQuery code in the form with the Visual tab selected, WordPress will treat your code as text, not as code. You need to enter the code as HTML code. You need to enter the code in the HTML editor, which you do next.

4. Click the HTML tab.

The HTML editor appears, so you can enter < script > tags and jQuery code.

276 Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems _

Image: Control Contro Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Control C		000	Add New Post < jQuery for Dummies — WordPress	Add New Post « jQuery for Dummies — WordPress				
Add New Post: jQuery for Dummi. +			(f) (http://drupalfordummies.com/wordpress/wp-admin/post-new.php	Google Q				
Figure 19-3: ton panel with the Posts menu expanded. A poer for Dummies Values to the formation of		Add New Post c jQuery for Dummi						
Figure 19-3: with the Posts menu expanded. Appearance Plugins Mode count: 0 Mode count: 0 Deathood		n jQuery for I	Dummies Visit Site	Edit Posts + Howdy, lynn Turbo Log Out				
Figure 19-3: tion panel with the Posts menu expanded. My Fade With jQuery Test Post Permatink: http://drupationdummies.com/wordpress/?p=21 Change Permatinks Permatink: http://drupationdummies.com/wordpress/?p=21 Change Permatinks Upload/Insert III III Code IIII IIII IIII Code IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII		 Dashboard 	🔊 Add New Post	Screen Options * Help *				
Edt Permalink: http://drupatiodummies.com/wordpress/?p=21 Change Permalinks Post Tags Upload/Insert IIIII Post Tags Upload/Insert IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII		🖈 Posts 👘	My Fade With jQuery Test Post	Publish				
Post Tags Upload/insert Image: Categories Status: Draft Edit Wadia Image: Categories Image: Categories Visual HTML Status: Draft Edit Media Image: Categories Image: Categories Visual HTML Visual HTML Media Image: Categories Image: Categories Visual HTML Visual HTML Media Image: Categories Image: Categories Visual HTML Visual HTML Media Image: Categories Image: Categories Visual HTML Visual HTML Media Image: Categories Image: Categories Visual HTML Visual HTML Pages Image: Categories Image: Categories Visual HTML Visual HTML Pages Image: Categories Image: Categories Add More to Trash Post Tags Image: Categories Add More to Trash Image: Categories Image: Categories Add Word Count: 0 Dratt Saved at 5:39:29 pm. Image: Categories Al Categories Word count: 0 Dratt Saved at 5:39:29 pm. Image: Categories Al Categories Image: Categories Word fores Im		Edit > Add New	Permalink: http://drupaifordummies.com/wordpress/?p=21 Change Permalinks	Save Draft Preview				
Figure 19-3: The Appearance Word court: 0 Duery("#mydiv")- Comments Comments Duery("#mydiv")- Comments Comments		Post Tags Categories	Upload/Insert	Status: Draft Edit Visibility: Public Edit				
Image: Secret Pages div id="mydiv" > Figure 19-3: Comments Figure 19-3: Appearance The JOuery("#mydiv") click(function () () Word count: 0 Draft Saved at 5:39:29 pm. Image: Countor () Draft Saved at 5:39:29 pm. Image: Countor Draft Saved at 5:39:29 pm. <td></td> <td>াণ্ডু Media</td> <td>b / <u>link</u> b-quote eet ins img ui ol li code more lookup close tags</td> <td colspan="2">The Publish Immediately Edit</td>		াণ্ডু Media	b / <u>link</u> b-quote eet ins img ui ol li code more lookup close tags	The Publish Immediately Edit				
Image: Second control of the second control of th		Links	<div id="mydiv"> This text will fade out if you click it.</div>	Move to Trash Publish				
Figure 19-3: The	Figure 19-3: The WordPress administra- tion panel with the	Comments		Post Tags				
WordPress Widgets Editor Editor Intervention administra- tion panel with the Posts menu expanded. Word count: 0 Draft Saved at 5:39:29 pm.		 Appearance Themes 	jQuery("≢mydiv").olick(function () { jQuery("≢mydiv").fadeOut("slow");)); 	Add new tag Add Separate tags with commas.				
tion panel with the expanded. Custom Header Word count: 0 Draft Saved at 5:39:29 pm. All Categories Most Used 0 Plugins Excerpt I Uncategorized I Uncategorized		Widgets Editor Add New Themes		Categories				
with the Posts menu expanded. [87] Settings		Custom Header	Word count: 0 Draft Saved at 5:39:29 pm.	All Categories Most Used				
Posts menu Th Tools expanded.		Ø Plugins	Excerpt	Uncategorized				
expanded.	Posts menu	생 Users						
CAPUTIOU. IT Settings	exnanded	TI Tools						
Excerpts are optional hand-crafted summaries of your content that can be used in your	expanded.	IT Settings	Excerpts are optional hand-crafted summaries of your content that can be used in your					

5. Enter the following code in the text box:

```
This text will fade out if you click it.
<script>
 jQuery("p").click(function () {
 jQuery("p").fadeOut("slow");
 });
</script>
```



Note that the preceding code uses the word jQuery instead of the \$ shorthand that you may be accustomed to. Anywhere in your code where you need \$ to call jQuery, use the jQuery keyword instead!

6. Enter a title for your post and publish it as you would any WordPress article.

When you view your post on your WordPress site, clicking the text in the <div> element causes the element to fade away. Reload to see it again.

Finding WordPress jQuery-Based Plug-ins

You can find WordPress jQuery-based plug-ins by searching the administration panel on your WordPress site or by browsing to the Extend section of http://wordpress.org. The easiest method is using the administration panel. The downside, however, is that you won't get as many results when you search the administration panel as you will from the Extend section. For that reason, I present both techniques here.

To locate and install a jQuery-based WordPress plug-in using your WordPress administration panel, do the following

- 1. Browse to your WordPress administration panel and log in.
- 2. Click to expand the Plugins menu on the left, as shown in Figure 19-4.
- 3. Click Add New.

The WordPress Install Plugins page appears.

4. Type jQuery Colorbox in the Search box, and then click Search Plugins.

You are presented with a list of results.



Figure 19-4:

WordPress administration panel with the Plugins menu expanded.

5. Click the Install link to the right of the jQuery Colorbox plug-in.

A window pops up with an Install Now button at the upper right, as shown in Figure 19-5.

6. Click Install Now.

The Colorbox plug-in is installed.

To locate and install a jQuery-based WordPress plug-in at wordpress.org, do the following:

- 1. Browse to wordpress.org/extend/plugins. Enter the words jQuery Colorbox in the Search box, and then click Search Plugins (see Figure 19-6).
- 2. Click the jQuery Colorbox plug-in, click the link to download the plug-in, and then save the file to a directory you will remember.

This plug-in is downloaded as a single zip file.

- 3. Log in to the control panel on your ISP's Web site.
- 4. Click the link to a file manager.
- 5. Click the single folder or directory named html, www, or htdocs. Click the wp-content directory, and then click the plugins directory inside it.

The plugins directory is where you will upload your plug-in.

6. Click the upload link in your file manager.

You see an upload form with a Browse button.

7. Click Browse, and select the Colorbox zip file you downloaded. Click Upload.

The compressed Colorbox zip file is now on your site in the correct folder, ready to be unzipped.

8. Click the Colorbox zip file to select it.

You see a list of files stored inside your compressed file, all selected.

- 9. Make sure the Uncompress All option is selected, and then click the Go button.
- 10. Select the original Colorbox plug-in zip file on your Web server and delete it.

Chapter 19: Building Better Blogs with jQuery and WordPress



Figure 19-5: Plug-in detail page with Install Now button on the upper right.



Colorbox is installed, but it still needs to be activated. To activate Colorbox, follow these steps:

- 1. Browse to your WordPress administration panel and log in.
- 2. Click to expand the Plugins menu on the left, as shown in Figure 19-7.
- 3. Click the Installed link.

The Manage Plugins page appears.

4. Locate the jQuery Colorbox plug-in in the list and click its Activate link.

The plug-in is installed, and you can now use it in your posts.



Using the Colorbox jQuery Plug-in with WordPress

To use Colorbox with images in your posts, follow these steps:

- 1. Browse to your WordPress administration panel and log in.
- 2. Click to expand the Media menu on the left.
- **3.** Click Add New, and then upload an image to your WordPress media library.
- 4. Click to expand the Posts menu on the left.
- 5. Click Add New to create a new post.
- 6. Click the Add an Image button next to Edit/Insert.

An Add an Image pop-up appears.

- 7. Click the Media Library tab, and then click the Show link next to the image you want in your post.
- 8. Click the Insert Into Post button, near the bottom of this window.
- 9. Publish your post.

Your image now appears in a Colorbox when it is clicked, as shown in Figure 19-8.



Figure 19-8: Image displayed in a jQuery Colorbox.

Part VI: Integrating jQuery with Content Management Systems _____

Part VII The Part of Tens



"We're here to clean the code."

In this part . . .

Y ou've added some amazing jQuery effects, plugins, and widgets to your sites, but you're ready for more. Each chapter in this part consists of ten tips or Web sites that give you information, connect you with other users, and point you at more great jQuery plug-ins. You're ready to build something truly amazing with a little more help from jQuery.

Chapter 20

Ten Don't-Miss Plug-ins

In This Chapter

- Displaying images in a carousel
- Allowing users to upload files
- ▶ Turning large text blocks into tabbed blocks
- Creating drop-down menus

A s you've seen in previous chapters, your site can be enhanced with hundreds of free jQuery plug-ins available for download. I particularly like ones that help you control your content and make your site more user friendly, such as image carousels to manage lots of images, tab or page controls to break long texts into shorter bits, pop-up tool tips for links, and drop-down menus. In this chapter, I point out several useful or interesting ones and give you an overview of what they do.

.

.

The plug-ins mentioned in this chapter are just the starting point. Literally hundreds more are just as useful. The point of this chapter is to sample a few categories of plug-ins to give you a better understanding of what you can do with plug-in extensions to jQuery.



I haven't included instructions on how to install these plug-ins because they already come with clear documentation for installation and use. Refer to that documentation if you choose to use any of these.

uploadify

http://www.uploadify.com/

If you have a Web site where you want to allow users to upload files, uploadify can handle this task for you.



It's seldom a good idea to let people you don't know upload files to your Web server. And even trusting the user isn't enough because a user might upload a malicious file without realizing it. Make sure you have code in place to check any uploaded files for viruses before you do anything with the files.

The uploadify plug-in gives you several options for the upload form that the user sees. You can have a single file upload or a multifile upload with a browse button and progress bar, as shown in Figure 20-1, or you can customize the button and bar. You can make your users click an upload link or press a button when they're ready, or you can configure uploadify to automatically upload after the users select files.

To create a page with a basic uploadify script that allows a user to upload a single file, follow these steps:

1. Go to http://www.uploadify.com/download and download the latest version of the uploadify plug-in.

As of this writing, the latest version is 2.1.0.

- 2. Save the uploadify.zip file to a location you will remember.
- 3. Unzip the file.

The unzipped file expands into a directory containing a number of files, including several you need to move in the next two steps.

4. Save the swfobject.js and jquery.uploadify.v2.1.0.min.js files to the same directory on your Web server where you have your copy of jQuery.





The directory containing JavaScript (.js) files is typically in a directory called js. For the sample code to work, your file structure needs to look like the following in your Web directory (the directory on your Web server containing your HTML files):

```
your_uploadify_file.html
```

cancel.png

uploadify.swf

js (a directory)

css (a directory)

uploads (a directory)

- 5. Save the default.css and uploadify.css files to your css directory.
- 6. Create a directory where you want to eventually save the uploaded files.

In the example, I named it uploads.

- 7. Copy the uploadify.swf and cancel.png files to the base Web directory where your HTML file will be.
- 8. Create a Web page with the following code and save it to your Web server.

If you don't feel like typing the code, you can download it from www.dummies.com/go/jquery:

```
<html> <head>
k href="css/default.css" rel="stylesheet" type="text/css" />
<link href="css/uploadify.css" rel="stylesheet" type="text/css" />
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.3.2.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/swfobject.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery.uploadify.v2.1.0.min.js"><///>
           script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function()
         $("#uploadify").uploadify({
{
          'uploader' : 'uploadify.swf',
'script' : 'scripts/yourfiletoprocessuploads.php',
          'cancelImg'
                        : 'cancel.png',
          'folder'
                         : 'uploads',
          'queueID'
                         : 'fileOueue',
          'multi'
                          : true,
                         : true });
});
</script></head><body>
<div id="fileQueue"></div>
<input type="file" name="uploadify" id="uploadify" />
<a href="javascript:jQuery('#uploadify').uploadifyClearQueue()">Cancel
          All Uploads</a>
</body></html>
```



You can change any settings inside the uploadify block. For example, to put the uploaded files in a directory other than one named uploads, change the setting next to folder. Also, if you intend to do something with the files after they are uploaded, change the script setting to an appropriate filename and path. The one I use in this example is just a placeholder.

jCarousel

http://sorgalla.com/jcarousel/

Do you want to display images on a Web page but also leave room for more content? The nifty jCarousel plug-in lets you specify a set of images to display in a box that the user can scroll through by clicking arrow buttons, as shown in Figure 20-2.

You can configure whether jCarousel should display images horizontally or vertically. You can control how many images scroll at once when the arrow is clicked and can even make it scroll automatically after a specific number of seconds that you choose. jCarousel also comes with two skins to choose between. A *skin* is a set of images and a CSS file that controls the appearance of jCarousel.



288



Most plug-ins include examples, and jCarousel is no exception. Simply open the static_start.html file in the examples directory in your browser to see how jCarousel works.

jCarousel is simple to implement. You can use the static_start.html file and edit it with the correct paths to your JavaScript and CSS files, typically your js and css folders on your Web server. Then place your images in a block of code such as the following:

```
<ii>src="yourimagel.gif" width="75" height="75" alt="" />
<img src="yourimage2.gif" width="75" height="75" alt="" />
<img src="yourimage3.gif" width="75" height="75" alt="" />
```

qTip

http://craigsworks.com/projects/qtip

The qTip plug-in lets you add a pop-up bubble containing text, called a tooltip, whenever someone hovers a cursor over a link on your Web page (see Figure 20-3).



Figure 20-3: A tooltip window appears when a link is moused over with the qTip plug-in. The qTip download consists of a zip file containing some text files with basic information and the jquery.qtip-1.0.0-rc3.min.js file, which contains the code for the plug-in. The best place to begin is to view the demos page and read the provided documentation.

jQuery pager

http://rikrik.com/jquery/pager/

No doubt you've seen Web pages with lots and lots of text, requiring you to scroll down the page and risk losing track of your location. jQuery pager gives you an easy way to break up long blocks of text into smaller sections that your visitors can page through, as shown in Figure 20-4.

To use the jQuery pager plug-in, install it in the same directory as jQuery. Begin with the example page, making sure to change the jQuery and pager JavaScript file paths to the correct paths on your Web server.



You need to split your text into chunks and surround each chunk with a <div> element, which creates the pages. Each tabbed page of text will be inside a pair of <div> tags. The entire set of pages will also be surrounded by a pair of <div> tags. For example, your code might look like the following:

```
<div id="pagertext">
    <div>This is the text I want in the first page.</div>
    <div>The second page should contain this text</div>
</div>
```

jQuery Flash

http://jquery.lukelutman.com/plugins/flash/

If you have the Flash program, you can save a Flash (.swf) file to a Web page automatically. But if you don't have Flash, it can be a bit of a pain figuring out how to post an .swf file on your Web page — unless you have the jQuery Flash plug-in. Figure 20-5 shows the Flash plug-in being used to display a Flash movie.



Download and save the JavaScript for the plug-in to your js directory. Then place the following script block in your HTML page where you want the movie to appear:

```
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
$('#example').flash({
            src: 'example.swf',
            width: 360,
            height: 215 },
            { version: 8 }); });
</script>
```

You need to provide a height, width, and Flash version number for the movie.

toggleElements

http://jquery.andreaseberhard.de/toggleElements/

Similar to the preceding plug-in, jQuery pager, the toggleElements plug-in hides content until a user clicks a link to expand it. But instead of a horizontal presentation of links, toggleElements gives you a sliding window effect. When you click an arrow next to a title bar, the text and images in the block slide down (see Figure 20-6).



The author provides clear instructions for the setup of this plug-in at the bottom of the page (scroll down to see the instructions).

Coda-Slider 2.0

http://www.ndoherty.biz/2009/10/coda-slider-2/

The Coda-Slider plug-in, like the jQuery pager mentioned earlier, presents a block of content in a horizontal series of tabbed blocks (see Figure 20-7).

However, Coda-Slider is sleeker than its pager cousin, with lots of bells and whistles. You can set it to automatically scroll through your tabbed blocks and can even give it special effects, such as a rubbery bounce when the blocks shift. Visit the demos page at http://www.ndoherty.biz/demos/coda-slider/2.0/ and try the special effects for yourself.



By now it should not come as a surprise that the more polished and elaborate the jQuery plug-in, the more work is required to get it running and the more pieces there are to install. No matter what the complexity, your first, best bet is to view the demos and check out the source code in the examples. Feel free to test the plug-in by playing with the example code on your own Web server while you figure it out and make it your own.



Figure 20-7: Coda-Slider presents your content in blocks.

pagination

http://plugins.jquery.com/project/pagination

If you want to present a long list, the pagination plug-in may be what you need. It's similar to jQuery pager, but it gives your content a more list-like feel with a robust numbering system that appears at the top of your content block, as shown in Figure 20-8.

The pagination plug-in gives you plenty of options, such as:

- ✓ Number of items per page to display
- Number of pagination links shown
- ✓ Number of start and end points
- ✓ Label for Previous button
- ✓ Label for Next button

	000	Pagination		\bigcirc		
		http://d-scribe.de/webtools/jquery-pagination/demo/demo_options.htm	Google	Q		
	Pagination	+		₹		
	jQuery Pagination Plugin Demo Prev 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 60 61 Next List of former members of the United States House of Representatives (A) Brock Adams Washington					
Figure 20-8: The pagination plug-in is great for breaking long lists into shorter sections.	Democratic Democratic Charles H. Adams New York Republican Charles Francis Adams, Sr. Massachusetts Republican George E. Adams Illinois Republican George Madison Adams Kentucky Democratic					
	Config form for pagination para Number of items per page Number of start and end points "Previous" label "Next" label (Set options) Copyright © 2000-2000 by describe surges LML.	s 10 2 Prev Next 10				

Humanized Messages for jQuery

http://binarybonsai.com/2007/10/15/humanized-messagesfor-jquery/

The Humanized Messages plug-in is fun and useful. Try a demo, as shown in Figure 20-9, at http://binarybonsai.com/misc/humanmsg/ to get a sense of how the program works.

When a user clicks an element on your page, you can prominently display a custom message in response. Perhaps you might provide amusing feedback, or serve up flash cards, or present fortune-teller–style content.

The responses require a bit of code, but a look at the source code behind the demo page should give you a clearer understanding of how to set it up. You can also visit http://code.google.com/p/humanmsg/wiki/ UsingHumaneMessages to view a guide on installing and using this plug-in.



Single Drop Down Menu

http://www.codenothing.com/archives/jquery/single-dropdown-menu/

The Single Drop Down Menu plug-in creates drop-down submenus when you mouse over a category. For example, when you mouse over the Home link in Figure 20-10, three menu options drop down below it.



Make sure your drop-down menus make sense. For example, if you have an upper-level menu called Company Info, you probably don't want to have dropdown link to Photos of My Dog.

You can download the zipped plug-in at http://www.codenothing.com/ archives/jquery/single-drop-down-menu/#download.



Figure 20-10: Single Drop Down Menu creates a nice menu

Chapter 21

Ten Design and Code Tricks

.

In This Chapter

- Detecting the visitor's browser
- Animating the background of your Web page
- ▶ Changing the size of text
- ▶ Turning off the right-click menu
- Getting the newest version of jQuery
- Creating a slide panel
- Adding a special effect to disappearing elements
- ▶ Saving time with a jQuery cheat sheet
- Making any element clickable
- Simplifying document.ready code

any Web sites offer jQuery tips and tricks. This chapter provides a sampling of some of the most useful ones.

.

Detecting Browser Types

Not all Web browsers are created equal. A Web page viewed in Internet Explorer might look very different when displayed in Firefox. This is why it's useful to be able to detect which browser the visitor to your Web page is using, and display different CSS or HTML code depending on the browser. The code in the following example displays an alert box with information about the browser (see Figure 21-1).

Part VII: The Part of Tens

```
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
if( $.browser.safari )
alert('The browser is Safari');
if ($.browser.msie && $.browser.version > 6 )
alert('The browser is IE6 or later');
if ($.browser.mozilla && $.browser.version >= '1.8' )
alert('The browser is Firefox 2 or later');
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
</body>
</html>
```

You can find this code and more jQuery tricks at www.catswhocode.com/ blog/8-awesome-jquery-tips-and-tricks.



Animating a Background Image

The tip in the preceding section came from www.catswhocode.com. That site also has a tutorial that shows you how to animate a background image on a Web page. The tutorial is located at www.catswhocode.com/blog/animated-background-image-with-jquery. Animating a background image is an impressive trick; you can see a demo at www.codingkitty.com/demo/animated-background. In the demo, the image of clouds at the top of the Web page appears to move across the screen (see Figure 21-2).



Resizing Text

A nice feature to offer visitors to a text-heavy Web page is links to resize the text. jQuery gives you an easy way to add links that control the size of Web page text (see Figure 21-3).

You can find code to add resize text links to your Web page at www.shopdev. co.uk/blog/text-resizing-with-jquery. This code adds three links: Increase, Decrease, and Reset. Clicking Increase makes the text larger, Decrease makes it smaller, and Reset restores the text to the size it was when the Web page was first loaded.

Part VII: The Part of Tens



Disabling the Right-Click Menu

By default, users can right-click your Web page and get a variety of menu options, as shown in Figure 21-4.

You can disable this menu by using the following code:

```
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
$(document).bind('contextmenu",function(e){
return false;
});
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
A context menu will not open if you right-click this page.
</body>
</html>
```

This trick is from www.queness.com/post/126/useful-and-handy-jquery-tips-and-tricks.



Loading jQuery from Google

All the code examples in this book use the following line to load the jQuery library:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script>

This code calls the jQuery library from the js directory on your Web server. The article at www.tvidesign.co.uk/blog/improve-your-jquery-25-excellent-tips.aspx#tip1 recommends that you call the jQuery code from a copy of jQuery stored on Google's machines. To call jQuery from Google's Web server, replace the preceding code with

```
<script type="text/javascript" src="http://ajax.googleapis.com/ajax/libs/
jquery/1.4/jquery.min.js"></script>
```

The src attribute is replaced with the location of the current version of the jQuery library on Google's server.



The Google repository keeps copies of older versions of the jQuery library, which means that even though the current version of jQuery might be later than 1.4, the old version is still available. This means you don't have to worry about your code breaking while you switch to the latest version of jQuery.

There are several good reasons to load jQuery from Google:

- Loading jQuery from Google saves bandwidth. Because the code is hosted on Google's Web server, not yours, visitors are hitting those machines and not your machine.
- ✓ jQuery loads faster from Google. Odds are that Google's Web server is faster than your server, so the jQuery library downloads more quickly.
- ✓ jQuery may already be loaded. If your visitors have been to any other sites that call jQuery from the Google Web server, they will already have jQuery loaded, making your Web page load more quickly.

Creating a Simple Slide Panel

You can find a nice tutorial for creating a sliding panel at www.webdesigner wall.com/tutorials/jquery-tutorials-for-designers. This simple panel slides open when a visitor clicks the tab at the bottom of the panel, as shown in Figure 21-5.


The jQuery code to create the panel is short and simple, as follows:

```
$(document).ready(function(){
$('.btn-slide').click(function(){
$('#panel').slideToggle('slow');
$(this).toggleClass('active');
});
});
```



This effect requires CSS styles and elements with specific IDs or classes. Your best bet is to browse to the demo page at www.webdesignerwall.com/ demo/jquery/simple-slide-panel.html and choose View Source.

Creating a Disappearing Effect

You can create a simple <div> element with a button that closes it using a fading or disappearing effect. To see a demonstration, visit www.webdesigner wall.com/demo/jquery/simple-disappear.html. The tutorial at www.webdesignerwall.com/tutorials/jquery-tutorials-for-designers shows you how to create a nice-looking panel with a close button. When you click the close link (see Figure 21-6), the panel fades out, and any other panels below it move up.



The jQuery code to create a simple disappearing panel is as follows:

```
$(document).ready(function(){
$('.pane .delete').click(function(){
$(this).parents('.pane').animate({ opacity: 'hide' }, 'slow');
});
});
```

This code slowly fades the panel until it is invisible. The effect requires CSS styles and elements with specific IDs or classes. For further instructions, view the tutorial on the www.webdesignerwall.com site.

Using a jQuery Cheat Sheet

When you are working with jQuery and can't remember the correct syntax, it's great to have a cheat sheet handy. The www.javascripttoolbox.com/jquery/cheatsheet site offers a cheat sheet of the current jQuery version in several formats, as shown in Figure 21-7.



The best site to visit to find the current version of jQuery is always jquery.com.



Making Elements Clickable

You can make any HTML element clickable with the following simple code trick from www.tripwiremagazine.com/2009/11/more-jquery-and-general-javascript-tips-to-improve-your-code.html. The following code selects elements and makes them clickable, rather than just the <a> link inside each:

```
<html>
<head>
<title>My Test Page</title>
<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-1.4.min.js"></script></script></script></script></script>
<script type="text/javascript">
$(document).ready(function(){
$('ul li').click(function() {
 window.location=$(this).find('a').attr('href'); return false;
});
});
</script>
</head>
<body>
<a href="link1.html">Go somewhere</a>
 <a href="link2.html">Go somewhere else</a>
</body>
</html>
```

This code creates a Web page with a list (see Figure 21-8). When you test this code, notice that clicking the bullet to the left of each link also acts as a link and takes you to the linked page.



You can select any element you want, not simply elements, by changing the selector code. To find out more about using selectors, see Chapter 3.

Part VII: The Part of Tens _

]	🗯 Grab	File Edit Cap	pture Window Help		🙆 🕅 2 🧚	0 🗟 🔹	Sat 3:39 PM	* Q.
	000			My Test Page				\bigcirc
			file:///Applications/webte	st/21-3		\$v).	Google	Q)
		My Test Page	+					=
	• <u>Go sor</u> • <u>Go sor</u>	<u>newhere</u> newhere else						
		000	Source of: fil	e:///Applications/webtest/21-3		0		
		<pre>chtml> chead> ctitlo>My Tont cacript type=" cacript type=" cacript type=" cacript type=" cacript cacripts cheater can be call window.locat)); c/script> c/script</pre>	<pre>Page text/javasoript" arc="js/ text/javasoript"> text/javasoript"> iek(function(){ ion=S(this).find("a").att: "link1.html">Go somewhere "link2.html">Go somewhere</pre>	<pre>iquery-1.3.2.min.js"> r("href"); return false; else</pre>				
Figure 21-8:								
Make an								
entire								
element								
oliokoblo	Done							* 1
clickable.	¥00	COLA		K FW 🖨 👌 DW S FL 🗊 🖉				

Streamlining document.ready Code

You can simplify your \$ (document).ready() code with this handy tip from www.geekology.co.za/blog/2009/10/12-tips-improve-yourjquery-code. The standard code used to execute your jQuery functions when the page loads is

```
$(document).ready(function (){
//Your code goes here
});
```

Instead, you can save a few keystrokes and use the following instead:

```
$(function (){
//Your code goes here
});
```

306

Chapter 22

Ten jQuery Resources

In This Chapter

- ▶ Finding inspiration from jQuery sites
- Understanding jQuery from video tutorials
- Getting great jQuery plug-ins
- ▶ Using online jQuery references

Here are ten great online resources to help you discover even more about jQuery.

.

jQuery Web site

jquery.com

Your first, best source for all things jQuery is the official jQuery Web site. The most recent version of the jQuery library and the most current documentation are always here.



Each time the jQuery library is updated, the version number of the file changes. To avoid having to change the jQuery filename in the script lines on all your Web pages to reflect this filename change, always rename the latest jQuery .js file to something like jquery-latest.js and use a matching call to this file in your script code:

<script type="text/javascript" src="js/jquery-latest.js"></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></script></sc

The latest version of the jQuery library can be downloaded by clicking the Download jQuery button at the upper right of the Web page, which is shown in Figure 22-1.

Part VII: The Part of Tens

308



jQuery on Wikipedia

en.wikipedia.org/wiki/JQuery

The technical content on the jQuery Wikipedia Web page (see Figure 22-2) is dense, but great information is buried in the article. The Wikipedia page provides you with

- ✓ A quick refresher when you forget some of the syntax basics.
- ✓ An up-to-date record of the latest releases and planned future releases of the jQuery library.
- ✓ The latest news about jQuery.
- ✓ A set of reference links to additional information about jQuery.

Chapter 22: Ten jQuery Resources



jQuery for Absolute Beginners Video Series

blog.themeforest.net/screencasts/jquery-for-absolutebeginners-video-series/

With that long URL, navigating to the site shown in Figure 22-3 is a bit of a pain, but the content makes the site worth visiting. If you learn by seeing, check out this series of video tutorials.

Each video begins with a commercial you have to sit through. The tutorial is clear with easy-to-follow jQuery code and instructions. The topics are

- ✓ Day 1: Downloading the Library
- ✓ Day 2: Fade, Slide, and Show Methods
- 🖊 Day 3: The Animate Method
- Day 4: Advanced Selectors
- Day 5: Creating and Removing Elements
- ✓ Day 6: The toggle() and toggleClass() Methods

- ▶ Day 7: The hover() Methods
- ✓ Day 8: Image Slides
- ✓ Day 9: Resizing Text
- Day 10: Intro to AJAX: Using the Load Method
- ✓ Day 11: Fun Image Hovering
- ✓ Day 12: Advanced Tooltips
- ✓ Day 13: Submitting Information to a Database Asynchronously
- ✓ Day 14: Implementing Your First Plug-in
- ✓ Day 15: Building a jQuery Style-Switcher



Figure 22-3: jQuery for Absolute Beginners Web site.

Visual jQuery

visualjquery.com

It's easy to forget the exact name of a jQuery function that you want to use. The Visual jQuery site is a cheat sheet for all the jQuery functions, with an easy-to-navigate interface, as shown in Figure 22-4.





WARNING!

Visual jQuery does not use the most up-to-date version of the jQuery library. Although the majority of the information on the site is correct, some functions have changed. The final authority for everything jQuery is always jquery.com.

Use jQuery

usejquery.com/category/Background

If you find yourself in need of inspiration, look no further than Use jQuery. This self-styled showcase of jQuery sites presents hundreds of nifty Web sites with interesting jQuery treatments. The showcased sites are broken down into a category list on the right side of the page for easier browsing, as shown in Figure 22-5.

Categories of showcased jQuery applications include:

- 🖊 Ajax
- ✓ DOM Manipulation
- Drag 'n Drop

- ✓ Fading
- ✓ Forms
- 🖊 Lightbox
- ✓ Navigation
- Popup
- Preload
- ✓ Slider
- ✓ Slideshow
- Tabs
- ✓ Text Replacement
- 🖊 Tooltip
- ✓ User Interface
- ✓ Validation



Figure 22-5: Use jQuery showcases Web sites creatively using

jQuery Plug-ins

plugins.jquery.com/

When you need a specific plug-in, the place to begin looking is the plug-ins section of the official jQuery Web site. The only problem with the site is that you may have a tough time choosing a plug-in because there are so many. Plug-ins are organized by category (see Figure 22-6), are searchable, and are browsable.

Each plug-in has a link to a detail page, with download links and an overview of the plug-in's behavior. Most plug-in detail pages have a link to a demonstration of the plug-in.



Smashing Magazine

smashingmagazine.com/tag/jquery

Smashing Magazine is an online resource for Web designers and developers. It's a great destination if you create anything for the Web, and it also has a section specific to jQuery topics (see Figure 22-7).



You can find even more articles on jQuery topics by typing jQuery in the search box at the upper right of the Smashing Magazine Web site. My search turned up 1,270 articles.



Speckyboy Design Magazine

speckyboy.com/category/ajax

Much like Smashing Magazine, Speckyboy Design Magazine offers lots of jQuery information and tutorials, as you can see in Figure 22-8. The jQuery topics are found by clicking the AJAX & JavaScript link on the left side of the main menu.



Nettuts+

net.tutsplus.com/category/tutorials/javascript-ajax/

Nettuts+ is a Web site devoted to tutorials on Web design and development topics. They have a number of solid jQuery tutorials worth checking out. You can either use the search box in the upper right to find jQuery topics or click JavaScript & AJAX under the Categories button to the right of the main menu. Figure 22-9 shows the JavaScript & AJAX category page.

Part VII: The Part of Tens



Figure 22-9: Nettuts+ offers tutorials and articles on jQuery.



You'll find lots of results when you search for *jQuery*, but not all of them focus on jQuery. Also, the site offers a paid service, so some of your search results won't be available for free.

Woorkup

woorkup.com/tag/jquery/

Woorkup is a community Web site with lots of great information for Web designers and developers. It has an entire category devoted to jQuery, as shown in Figure 22-10. To reach the jQuery category, click the jQuery link in the main menu.



Part VII: The Part of Tens _____

Index

.

• Symbols •

\$ character, 16, 25
* character, 38–39
}); code, 18

• A •

<a> element, 23, 173, 176, 305 accessing jQuery, from Joomla!, 261-264 accordion menu adding, 213-214 collapsed, 192 creating, 191-196 with expanded section, 192 installing plug-in, 193 Accordion plug-in, 193, 195–196 Add an Image pop-up, WordPress administration panel, 281 Add gallery form, Drupal, 250 Add Gallery tab, Drupal, 250 Add New option, WordPress administration panel, 275, 277, 281 after() function, 138 AJAX (asynchronous JavaScript and XML) loading data with displaying content of text files, 220-221 displaying content of Web pages, 221 - 223displaying parts of Web pages, 223-224 overview, 219-220 plug-ins file uploaders, 232-234 overview. 231-232 pop-up windows, 238-241 rotating dynamic content, 234–238 sending data with, 225-229 ajax() function, 226 Ajax plug-in category, 158 AJAX Upload plug-in, 232-233

ajaxComplete() function, 226 ajaxError() function, 226 ajaxPopup() function, 240 ajaxSend() function, 226 ajaxStart() function, 226 ajaxStop() function, 226 ajaxSuccess() function, 226 AjaxUpload() function, 233 ajaxupload.js file, 233 alert box, 17, 27-28, 153 alert(data) command, 228 alt attribute, 15, 17, 24, 36 American Standard Code for Information Interchange (ASCII) values, 59–60 animate function, 9, 109, 118, 120-121 animateduration option, 237 animation background images, 299 controlling duration of, 119-120 disabling, 121 font size and word spacing, 117–119 height and width, 111–113 hiding elements with, 76-78, 120 margin width and padding, 113-115 opacity, 115-117 showing elements with, 81-83, 120 toggling with, 86-87, 120 Animation and Effects plug-in category, 158 Appearance menu, WordPress administration panel, 274 appending content, 135–136 arrays, 46 Article Manager option, Joomla! Web site, 262,268 ASCII (American Standard Code for Information Interchange) values, 59-60 asynchronous JavaScript and XML (AJAX) loading data with displaying content of text files, 220-221

jQuery For Dummies

asynchronous JavaScript and XML (continued) displaying content of Web pages, 221 - 223displaying parts of Web pages, 223–224 overview, 219-220 plug-ins file uploaders, 232-234 overview, 231-232 pop-up windows, 238-241 rotating dynamic content, 234–238 sending data with, 225-229 attr() function, 24-25, 30 attribute values changing, 29 removing, 29-30 retrieving, 24-26 setting, 28–29 attributes defined, 15, 24 selecting, 47-48

• B •

background images, animating, 299 background-color style, 108 balloon, 165 before() function, 138 Blind effect, 205 blog. See WordPress Bluemarine theme, 256 Body field, Drupal, 251 <body> element, 18, 23, 85, 194 border style, 108 border-color style, 108 border-style style, 108 borderWidth style, 110 bottom style, 111 Bounce effect, 205
 element, 24 breaking up Web pages, 191 Browse button, 248, 251, 261, 271, 278 browser repaint action, 80 Browser Tweaks plug-in category, 158 browsers, detecting type of, 297–298 Build Your Download page, 210-211 buttons, hiding elements by type with, 71 - 73

• C •

calendar plug-in, 187-188 callback function defined. 109 partial fading, 105 sliding with, 97–99 using, 88-89 calling jQuery, from Web pages, 13-14 camel case capitalization, 110, 140 cancel.png file, 287 change() function, 133 change effect, 9 changemytext class attribute, 42 cheat sheets, 304 : checkbox form element selector, 47 : checked form element selector, 47 child elements replacing parent elements while retaining, 144-146 selecting, 48-50 class attributes, 41-42, 48 class="required" attribute, 186 class="required email" attribute, 186 class="url" attribute, 186 classes, selecting, 40-43 Clearfield plug-in, 181-184 click event, 53-54 Clickable: active state section, 209 Clickable: default state section, 209 Clickable: hover state section, 209 clicking, 53-57 clickme class, 53, 56 Clip effect, 205 clone() function, 151-152, 154 cloning elements with events, 151-152 with events and data, 152-154 Coda-Slider 2.0 plug-in, 293 code creating, 15-19 downloading, 2 color wheel pop-up, 209 colorbox() method. 173 colorbox directory, 171 Colorbox plug-in additional options for, 177 creating basic image Colorbox, 172-174

locating and installing, 171-172, 278-280 using with WordPress, 281 Colorbox Web site, 171 Colorbox zip file, 278 colorbox-min.js file, 171 colorize() function, 164 Colorize plug-in, 163-165 colorselect id, 133-134 content. See also dynamic content inserting inside elements appending, 135-136 overview, 134-135 prepending, 136-137 inserting outside elements, 138-139 paginating, 196-198 removing, 149-150 retrieving HTML, 128-130 text, 125-128, 220-221 Web pages, 221–223 setting HTML, 128-130 text, 125-128 wrapping around elements, 141–142 content directory, 179-180 Content section, 208-209 copying elements with events, 151-152 with events and data, 152-154 Corner Radius section, 208 Create Folder button, Joomla!, 268 Create Image form, Drupal, 251 css directory, 211-212 css files, 166-167, 173, 179, 213 CSS styles, 79, 108, 110, 145, 238

darkness theme, 206–207 data copying elements with, 152-154 loading with AJAX displaying content of text files, 220-221 displaying content of Web pages, 221 - 223displaying parts of Web pages, 223-224 sending, 225-229 data, post() function, 225

Date Input plug-in, 187-189 date_input- 1.2.1.zip file, 187 date_input directory, 187 date_input.css file, 188 datepickers, creating, 187-190, 214-215 days.html file, 223 dblclick event, 54, 56 Decrease text link, 299 default values, displaying, 181-184 default.css file.287 Description field, Drupal, 250 development-bundle directory, 211 disabling animation, 121 right-click menu, 300-301 disappearing effects, creating, 303-304 display=none style attribute, 92, 100 <div> element click events, 53 defined, 23 fade in effect, 101 floating, 198-201 hiding elements by type with buttons, 72 jQuery pager plug-in, 291 page loading, 52 sliding effects, 91 toggling, 84 //Do things here comment, 17 <!doctype...>element, 18 \$(document).ready() code defined. 18 function of, 16 streamlining, 306 DOM plug-in category, 158 double-clicking, 53-57 download files, building, 211-212 Download jQuery button, 10, 307 Download link, 158, 171, 211 download options building download files, 211-212 customizing themes, 207-210 downloading themes, 210 overview. 205 selecting themes, 206-207 Download plg_system_scjquery.zip file, 260 Download Theme button, 210-211 downloading jQuery, 10-11

jQuery For Dummies

Drag-and-Drop plug-in category, 158 Dragging interaction, 204 Drop effect, 205 Drop Shadows section, 210 Dropping interaction, 204 Drupal application images adding to galleries, 250-251 creating image effects, 252-255 integrating jQuery into configuring Drupal to recognize jQuery, 255 - 256including jQuery library in Drupal content, 256-258 modules downloading, 246-248 enabling Image and Image Gallery modules, 249-250 enabling Thickbox module, 252-253 locating, 245-246 using Thickbox module with Image Gallery, 254-255 duration argument, 109, 119 duration of animation, controlling, 119-120 dynamic content defined, 52 inserting inside elements appending, 135-136 overview, 134-135 prepending, 136-137 inserting outside element, 138-139 moving elements around, 139-141 retrieving and setting form values, 131-134 HTML, 128-130 text, 125-128 rotating, 234-238 wrapping around elements, 141-142

• E •

e argument, 60 Edit link, ThemeRoller section, 207 Edit Module settings, 272 Editor link, WordPress administration panel, 274

effects. See also Drupal application animating, 120 disappearing, 303-304 Drupal application, 252-255 image, 252-255 image galleries creating, 179-180 Galleria plug-in, 177–179 lightboxes Colorbox plug-in, 171–172 creating, 172-174 displaying set of images, 174-176 displaying slideshow, 177 overview, 169-171 titles, 174 overview, 9 sliding elements, 96-97 Effects Core effect, 204 element text swapping, 33 elements. See also Web pages animating controlling duration of, 119-120 disabling, 121 font size and word spacing, 117-119 height and width, 111-113 hiding, 120 margin width and padding, 113-115 opacity, 115-117 overview, 107-111 showing, 120 toggling, 120 attribute values overview, 24 removing, 29-30 retrieving, 24-26 retrieving content, 26-28 setting, 28-29 changing content of HTML, 30-32 text, 32-33 clickable, 305-306 cloning with events, 151-152 with events and data, 152-154 common, 23-24 defined, 9

fading in, 100–102 out, 102-104 partial, 104-106 focus, 57-59 hiding with animation, 76-78 by id when clicked, 74-75 by type with buttons, 71-73by using this keyword, 76 inserting content inside appending, 135-136 overview, 134-139 prepending, 136-137 inserting content outside, 138-139 list of, 24 moving, 139-141 overview, 21-23 removing content, 149-150 overview, 147-150 replacing parent element while retaining child elements, 144-146 with replaceAll() function, 146-147 with replaceWith() function, 143-144 rules of order, 23 selecting all elements, 38-39 attributes. 47-48 classes, 40-43 from forms, 46-47 id, 39-40 by order, 43-45 parents and children, 48-50 specific element types, 35-38 visibility, 48 sliding with callback function, 97-99 changing speed, 96 down, 92-94 overview, 91 with toggle effect, 96-97 up, 94–96 wrapping content around, 141–142 tags, 31, 33

E-Mail field, 186 empty() function, 148-149 Enabled check box, Drupal, 249 Enabled for Image Nodes option, Drupal, 254 Enabled option, Drupal, 252 :eq(index) form element selector, 45 Error section, 209 : even form element selector, 44 events clicking and double-clicking, 53–57 copying elements with, 151-154 detecting keyboard events, 59-60 mouse events, 61-63 focus, 57-59 interaction helpers hovering, 63-65 toggling functions, 65-67 overview, 9 using jQuery when page loads, 51-52 using together, 63 Events plug-in category, 158 examples directory, 289 Explode effect, 205 Extend section, 277 extensions displaying Tweets from Twitter, 270-272 image galleries, creating, 266-269 locating for Joomla!, 265 overview. 265

• F •

fadeIn effect, 9 fademe class, 116 fadeOut effect, 9 fading elements creating effect, 261-264 in, 100-102 out, 102-104 partial, 104-106 fasthide id, 78 fields, validating, 184-187 file browse dialog box, 234 file manager, 247, 256

Index 323

jQuery For Dummies

file uploaders, 232-234 Files section, 267 :first form element selector, 44 :first-child selector, 49 Flash (.swf) files, 291-292 Flash movies, 291-292 Flash plug-in, 291-292 floating <div> elements, 198-201 Floating Div .js file, 199 Floating Div plug-in, 198-199 focus, 57-59 Fold effect, 205 Font Settings section, 208 font size, animating, 117-119 fontSize style, 110, 118 form fields, 228 form values, 131-134, 181-184 <form> element, 23, 133 forms datepickers, creating, 187-189 selecting from, 46-47 validating fields, 184-187 Forms plug-in category, 158 Full HTML option, Drupal, 255 future releases, 308

• G •

Galleria plug-in, 177-179 galleria.css link, 179 galleries adding images to, 250-251 creating, 179-180, 266-269 enabling, 249-250 Galleria plug-in, 177–179 using Thickbox module with, 254-255 Galleries drop-down list, Drupal, 251 Gallery Name field, Drupal, 250 Gallery tab, ThemeRoller section, 206-207, 210 get() function, 226, 228 getScript() function, 226 .gif image file, 15 gobtn id attribute, 121 Google, loading jQuery from, 301-302 gray-and-white theme, 207 :gt(index) form element selector, 45

• *H* •

<h1> element, 23 HEAD section, 195 <head> element, 18, 23, 195, 274 Header (header.php) file link, 274 header.php file, 274-275 Header/Toolbar section, 209 height, animating, 111-113 height attribute, 15, 24, 29, 48 height style, 108, 110 hidden <div> element, 81, 101 :hidden selector, 48 hide effect, 9, 120 hide function callback functions, 89 hiding elements with animation, 76 by id when clicked, 74 by type with buttons, 72 by using this keyword, 76 hideme id, 74, 76 hiding elements with animation, 76-78 by id when clicked, 74-75 by type with buttons, 71-73 by using this keyword, 76 Highlight effect, 205 Highlight section, 209 home.gif image, 54 hover event, 63-64 hovering, 63-65 hover(over, out) syntax, 64 hovertip() method, 167 Hovertip . js file, 167 Hovertip plug-in, 165-168 HTML, XHTML, & CSS For Dummies (Ed Tittel, Jeff Noble), 228 html() function form values, 131 HTML content, 128 inserting content inside elements, 134 - 135replacing elements with replaceAll(), 147 replacing parent elements while retaining child elements, 144-145 text content, changing, 32

HTML content changing, 30-32 retrieving and setting, 128-130 swapping, 32 HTML editor, 264 HTML elements. See elements HTML tab, WordPress administration panel, 275 HTML Web form, 182 <html> element, 18, 23 Humanized Messages plug-in, 295

• 1 •

icons used in book, 4 id attribute adding to every element, 38-39 assigning, 72 hiding elements by, when clicked, 74-75 moreTxt, 40 mouseoverme, 61 rules governing, 39 selecting, 39-40 selecting elements by, 40-41, 79-81, 200 selecting HTML content, 128 if statement, 60 Image derivative drop-down list, Drupal, 254 image effects. See also Drupal application creating, 252-255 image galleries creating, 179-180 Galleria plug-in, 177–179 lightboxes Colorbox plug-in, 171-172 creating, 172-174 displaying set of images, 174-176 displaying slideshow, 177 overview, 169-171 titles, 174 image galleries creating, 179-180, 266-269 getting Galleria plug-in, 177–179 Image Galleries option, Drupal, 250 Image Gallery module enabling modules, 249-250 using Thickbox module with, 254-255

Image module download page, Drupal, 248 Image module, enabling, 249-250 Image Module Options section, Drupal, 254 Image option, Drupal, 251 Image text box, Drupal, 251 images adding to galleries, 250-251 background, animating, 299 displaying set of, 174-176 images directory, 54, 92, 100, 247 element Colorbox effects, creating, 173 defined, 23 detecting mouse events, 62 image galleries, creating, 180 page loading, 52 selecting attributes, 48 selecting classes, 40 selecting specific element types, 36 toggling functions, 66 Increase text link, 299 index.html file, 211 .info files, 256-257 inner val() function, 134 input field, Date Input plug-in, 189 :input form element selector, 46 Input Formats option, Drupal, 255 <input> element, 23 Insert Into Post button, WordPress administration panel, 281 insertAfter() function, 139-141 insertBefore() function, 139-140 Install link, WordPress administration panel, 278 Install Now button, WordPress administration panel, 278-279 Installed link, WordPress administration panel, 280 installing jQuery calling from Web page, 13-14 downloading, 10-11 setting up testing directory, 11-12 viewing Web page on computer, 14-15 Install/Uninstall option, Joomla! Web site, 260, 266, 270

jQuery For Dummies

integrating jQuery into Drupal configuring Drupal to recognize jQuery, 255–256 including jQuery library in content, 256–258 interaction helper hovering, 63–65 toggling functions, 65–67

•] •

JavaScript, 8, 18 JavaScript (.js) files directory containing, 287 floating <div> elements, 200 renaming, 307 saving, 11, 157, 231 tooltips, 166 JB Library plug-in, 270–271 JB_jTweet_ J1.5_v1.5.2.zip file, 270 jCarousel plug-in, 288-289 jmpopups plug-in, 238-239 Joomla! application accessing jQuery from, 261-264 configuring to recognize jQuery, 260–261 using jQuery extensions with creating image galleries, 266-269 displaying Tweets on pages, 270-272 locating, 265 overview, 265 Joomla! article, 261 Joomla! Article Manager, 263 Joomla! Extension Manager, 260-261 Joomla! Extensions page, 265 Joomla! For Dummies (Steve Holzner, Nancy Conner), 259 Joomla! Media Manager, 267 Joomla! New Article page, 263 jQuery installing calling from Web page, 13-14 downloading, 10-11 setting up testing directory, 11-12 viewing Web page on computer, 14–15 integrating into Drupal application configuring Drupal to recognize jQuery, 255 - 256including jQuery library in Drupal content, 256-258 loading from Google, 301-302

jQuery Extensions plug-in category, 158 jQuery Flash plug-in, 291-292 jQuery for Absolute Beginners video series, 309-310 jQuery library, including in Drupal content, 256 - 258jQuery Lightbox plug-in, 9-10 jQuery pager plug-in, 290-291 jQuery Plug-ins Web site, 313 jQuery User Interface (UI) Web site, 203-204 jQuery Web site, 307-308 jquery.accordion-1.3.zip file, 193 jquery.accordion.source.js file, 193 jquery.clearfield.js file, 183 jquery.date_input.pack.js file, 188 jquery.galleria.js file, 179 jquery.jmpopups-0.5.1.js file, 239 jquery.qtip-1.0.0-rc3.min.js file, 290 jquery-ui files, 213 jquery.uploadify.v2.1.0.min.js file, 286 .js (JavaScript) files directory containing, 287 floating <div> elements, 200 renaming, 307 saving, 11, 157, 231 tooltips, 166 js directory, 12 jTweet extension enabling and downloading, 270 settings for, 271

• K •

keyboard events, detecting, 59–60 keydown event, 59 keypress event, 59 keyup event, 59

• [•

:last form element selector, 44 :last-child selector, 49 Layout and User Interface plug-in category, 158 left style, 111 length keyword, 46

<1i> element, 180, 194, 305 lightbox plug-ins, 9–10, 171 lightboxes Colorbox plug-in, 171–172 creating Colorboxes, 172–174 defined, 169 displaying set of images, 174-176 displaying slideshows, 177 overview, 169-171 titles, 174 lightbox-style pop-up windows, 239 load() function, 223, 226, 238 load effect, 9 loading data with AJAX retrieving content of text files, 220-221 retrieving content of Web pages, 221 - 223retrieving parts of Web pages, 223-224 jQuery from Google, 301-302 :lt(index) form element selector, 45

• M •

Make Plain Text option, 13 Manage Plugins page, WordPress administration panel, 280 margin style, 110 margin width, animating, 113-115 Media Library tab, WordPress administration panel, 281 Media Manager option, 267 Media menu, WordPress administration panel, 281 Media plug-in category, 158 menus accordion adding, 213-214 collapsed, 192 creating, 191-196 with expanded section, 192 installing plug-in, 193 with CSS formatting, 196 right-click, disabling, 300-301 static, 191 with tabs, creating, 214 Menus and Navigation plug-in category, 158

min keyword, 11 minlength="2" attribute, 186 Modal Screen for Overlays section, 210 module directory, 247 Module Manager option, 271 modules downloading, 246-248 enabling Image and Image Gallery, 249 - 250locating, 245-246 Thickbox enabling, 252-253 using with Image Gallery, 254-255 Modules link, Drupal, 246 Modules option, Drupal, 249, 252 Modules page, Drupal, 253 modules subdirectory, 248 moreTxt id. 40-41 mouse events detecting, 61-63 using together, 63 mousedown event, 61 mouseenter event, 61 mousemove event, 61 mouseout effect, 9 mouseout event, 61-64 mouseover effect, 9 mouseover event, 61-64, 126, 152 mouseoverme id. 62 mouseup event, 61 msgsource option, 237 mycontent.html file, 236 mydiv id attribute, 200 myImage variable, 52 mypopup.html page, 240

• N •

naming variables, 26 Nettuts+ Web site, 315–316 New Article page, 262 New button, Joomla! Article Manager menu bar. 262 Next button, label for, 294 Notepad option, 13

Index 327

• () •

:odd form element selector, 44 online resources jQuery for Absolute Beginners video series, 309-310 jQuery Plug-ins Web site, 313 jQuery Web site, 307-308 Nettuts+ Web site, 315-316 Smashing Magazine Web site, 314 Speckyboy Design Magazine Web site, 315 Use jOuery Web site, 311-312 Visual jQuery Web site, 310–311 Wikipedia Web page, 308-309 Woorkup Web site, 316–317 opacity, animating, 115–117 Open File dialog box, 14 order, selecting elements by, 43-45 Original option, Drupal, 254 Other section, Drupal, 252 outer elements, 23 outer id. 129 outer val() function, 134 outputdiv id, 61-62, 64

• p •

 element changing HTML content, 31-32 defined, 23 removing, 147 retrieving element content, 28 rules governing class attributes, 41-42 padding, animating, 113–115 padding space, 115 padding style, 111 page layout accordion menus, 191-196 floating <div> elements, 198-201 paginating content, 196–198 page loading, 51-52 pager plug-in, 290-291 paginating content, 191, 196-198 Pagination plug-in, 196-198, 294 paginator.js file, 197

panels, slide, 302-303 params function part, 109 parent > child selector, 49 parent elements replacing while retaining child elements, 144 - 146selecting, 48-50 parent node, 149 partial fading, 104-106 pContent variable, 28, 31 percent value, 104-105 plg_system_scjquery.zip file, 261 Plugin Manager option, 261, 267, 271 plugin_vsig_1.5.5.zip file, 266 plug-ins Accordion, 193, 195-196 AJAX file uploaders, 232-234 overview, 231-232 pop-up windows, 238-241 rotating dynamic content, 234-238 calendar, 187-188 Clearfield, 181–184 Coda-Slider 2.0, 293 Colorbox adding titles, 174 creating basic image Colorbox, 172-174 displaying set of images, 174-176 displaying slideshows, 177 locating and installing, 171-172, 278-280 options for, 177 overview, 169-171 using with WordPress, 281 Colorize, 163-165 Date Input, 187-189 Flash, 291-292 Floating Div, 198–199 function of, 157 Galleria, 177-179 Hovertip, 165-168 Humanized Messages, 295 JB Library, 270-271 jCarousel, 288-289 jmpopups, 238-239 lightbox, 9-10, 171

locating, 158-159 overview, 9-10 pager, 290-291 Pagination, 196-198, 294 qTip, 289-290 requirements for, 157 Rich HTML Ticker, 234-235, 237-238 SC jQuery, 260–262 Single Drop Down Menu, 296 Snowfall, 160-163 Snowflake, 162 Thickbox, 252–255 toggleElements, 292-293 uploadify, 285-288 Validation, 184–187 Very Simple Image Gallery, 266–267, 269 WordPress, 277–280 plugins directory, 278 Plugins menu, WordPress administration panel, 277, 280 pop-up boxes, 165 pop-up calendar, 214 pop-up windows, creating, 238-241 \$.post, post() function, 225 post() function, 225-226, 228 \$.post function, 228 POST method, 228 Posts menu, WordPress administration panel, 275-276, 281 prepend() function, 136 prepending content, 136–137 Previous button, label for, 294 Pulsate effect, 205

qTip plug-in, 289-290

• R •

:radio form element selector, 47 ready() function, 51-52 ready command, 51 rel attribute. 176 rel="mygroup" attribute, 176

Releases table, 158-159 remove() function, 148 removeAttr() function, 29 removing attribute values, 29-30 content, 149-150 elements, 147-149 replaceAll() function, 143, 146-147 replaceWith() function, 143-145, 147 replacing elements parent element while retaining child elements, 144-146 with replaceAll() function, 146-147 with replaceWith() function, 143-144 Reset text link, 299 Resizing interaction, 204 resizing text, 299-300 retrieving attribute values, 24–26 content element, 26-28 HTML, 128-130 text, 125-128, 220-221 form values, 131-134 plug-ins, 158–159 Web pages, 221–223 Rich HTML Ticker plug-in, 234-235, 237 - 238richhtmlticker.define() function, 236 richhtmlticker.js file, 236 right style, 111 right-click menu, disabling, 300-301 Roll Your Own tab, ThemeRoller section, 207-208, 210 rotatespeed option, 237 rotating dynamic content, 234-238

• 5 •

Save Page As option, 11 SC jQuery menu bar, 260 SC jQuery plug-in, 260-262 SC jQuery section, 260 Scale effect, 205

jQuery For Dummies

script type="text/java script"> script tag, 18 <script> element, 18, 23, 235, 264, 275 scripts directory, 248 Search box, WordPress Install Plugins page, 277 Search Modules section, Drupal home page, 246 Search Plugins option, WordPress Install Plugins page, 277–278 select box value, 133 selecting all elements, 38-39 attributes, 47-48 classes. 40-43 from forms, 46-47 id, 39-40 by order, 43-45 parents and children, 48-50 specific element types, 35-38 visibility, 48 Selecting interaction, 204 selectors :checkbox, 47 :checked, 47 :eq(index), 45:even, 44 :first.44 :first-child.49 :gt(index),45 :hidden, 48 :input, 46 :last,44 :last-child, 49 :lt(index), 45 :odd. 44 :radio.47 :submit animating height and width, 112 fading in, 101 fading out, 103 hiding elements by id when clicked, 74 hiding elements by type with buttons, 72 hiding elements with animation, 78 showing elements by id, 80

showing elements with animation, 83 sliding down, 93 sliding up, 95 sliding with toggle effect, 97 toggling, 84 :text.46 :visible, 48 sending data, 225-229 serialize() function, 226, 228 server-side directory, 233 Set Default Format button, Drupal, 255 setting attribute values, 28–29 form values, 131-134 HTML content, 128-130 text content, 125-128 setupJMPopups() function, 240 Shake effect, 205 show effect, 9, 120 show function, 80-81, 86, 89 Show link, WordPress administration panel, 281 showcode id, 129 showing elements with animation, 81–83 by id, 79-81 showme id, 79-80 Single Drop Down Menu plug-in, 296 sites directory, 248 skins, 288 slide animation alert box, 99 Slide effect, 205 slide panels, creating, 302–303 slideDown effect, 9, 93 slideshows, displaying, 177 slideUp effect, 9, 95, 103 sliding effect, 91 sliding elements with callback function, 97-99 changing speed, 96 down, 92–94 overview, 91 with toggle effect, 96-97 up, 94-96 sliding window effect, 292 slowhide id, 78

330

Smashing Magazine Web site, 314 Smoothness theme, 207 snellcode.com Web site, 260 snowfall() function, 161, 163 Snowfall plug-in, 160–163 snowflakes, 161 Sort by menu, Drupal home page, 246 Sorting interaction, 204 Source option, 196, 303 Speckyboy Design Magazine Web site, 315 speed value, 88, 105 src attribute defined, 15, 24 page loading, 52 selecting classes, 40-41 selecting specific element types, 36 setting element attribute values, 28 Start Upload option, 268 static menus, 191 static_start.html file, 289 Stop button, 121 stop function, 121 stopbtn id attribute, 121 stories folder, 267 streamlining document.ready code, 306 element changing HTML content, 31-32 defined, 23 removing content, 149-150 removing elements, 148 selecting classes, 42 selecting specific element types, 36-38 selectors, 44-45, 49-50 strongContent variable, 31, 38 <style> element, 23 Submit button, 125 :submit selector animating height and width, 112 fading in, 101 out, 103 hiding elements with animation, 78 by id when clicked, 74 by type with buttons, 72

showing elements with animation, 83 by id, 80 sliding down, 93 with toggle effect, 97 up, 95 toggling, 84 success, post() function, 225 success() function, 225 swapping element text, 33 HTML content, 32 .swf (Flash) files, 291-292 swfobject.js file, 286

• 7 •

tab key, 58 element, 24 Tables plug-in category, 158 tabs, displaying, 214-215 .tar.gz file, 247-248 testing directory, 11-12 text changing, 32-33 containing elements, 31 removing, 149 resizing, 299-300 retrieving, 125-128, 220-221 setting, 125-128 text() function changing text content, 32-33 retrieving and setting form values, 131 retrieving and setting text content, 125, 127 selecting specific element types, 36, 38 text editor, 236, 256 text field. 131 text files contents of, 222 displaying content of, 220-221 :text form element selector, 46 TextEdit option, 13 theme gallery, 206-207

ThemeRoller section, 206 themes customizing, 207-210 defined. 203 downloading, 210 overview, 205 selecting, 206-207 Themes button, 206 themes directory, 248, 256 Themes option, Drupal, 256 Themes page, 207 Thickbox configuration page, Drupal, 254 Thickbox module enabling, 252-253 using with Image Gallery, 254-255 Thickbox option, Drupal, 254 this keyword, 76, 134 title attribute, 174, 180 Title field, Drupal, 251 <title> element, 23 titles, adding to lightboxes, 174-175 toggle effect animating with, 120 sliding with, 96-97 toggle event, 65-66 toggle function, 65-67, 83-84, 86-89, 97 toggleElements plug-in, 292-293 toggleme id, 66 toggling <div> elements, 86 visibility with animation, 86-87 overview, 83 using callback function, 88-89 using toggles, 84-86 tooltip window, 289 tooltips, 289 top style, 111 traditional Web forms, 225 Transfer effect, 205 true keyword, 152-153 tutorial videos, 309 Tweets, displaying, 270-272 Twitter, 7-8, 270-272 Twitter Username(s) field, 272

• 11 •

UI (user interface) download options customizing themes. 207–210 download files, building, 211-212 downloading themes, 210 overview, 205 selecting themes, 206-207 using, 203–205 widgets accordion menus, adding, 213-214 datepickers, creating, 214 tabs, displaying, 214-215 using, 213–215 <lu><lu><lu><l Uncompress All option, 278 Uncompress All option, Drupal, 248 Update button, 264 Update File button, 275 Update module, 256 Upload button, 234 Upload File form, 268 Upload link, file manager, 248 Upload Package File section, 261 uploaders, 232-234 upload-handler.php file, 233 uploadify block, 288 uploadify plug-in, 285-288 uploadify.css file, 287 uploadify.zip file, 286 upload.php script, 233 url, post() function, 225 Usage Statistics link, Drupal, 246 Use jQuery Web site, 311-312 User Interface library, 203 user interface (UI) download options customizing themes, 207-210 download files, building, 211–212 downloading themes, 210 overview, 205 selecting themes, 206-207 using, 203-205

Index

widgets accordion menus, adding, 213–214 datepickers, creating, 214 tabs, displaying, 214–215 using, 213–215

• 1/ •

val() function, 125, 131, 134 validating fields, 184-187 Validation plug-in, 184-187 value attribute, 183-184 values attribute changing, 29 removing, 29-30 retrieving, 24-26 setting, 28-29 form, 131-134, 181-184 variables, 25-26 Very Simple Image Gallery plug-in, 266-267, 269 visibility, selecting, 48 visible buttons, 80 :visible selector, 48 Visual jQuery Web site, 310-311

• W •

Web browsers, detecting type of, 297–298 Web forms, traditional, 225 Web pages calling jQuery from, 13–14 contents of, 223 with <div> elements, 55 with form data, 229 getting content of, 221–223 getting parts of, 223–224 hiding elements with animation, 76–78 by id when clicked, 74–75 by type with buttons, 71–73 by using this keyword, 76

showing elements with animation, 81-83 by id, 79-81 with simple form, 227 with elements, 37-38 toggling element visibility with animation, 86-87 overview, 83 using callback function, 88-89 using toggles, 84-86 viewing on computer, 14-15 Web server languages, 226 Web sites Colorbox, 171 jQuery, 307-308 jQuery Plug-ins, 313 jQuery User Interface, 203-204 Nettuts+, 315-316 Smashing Magazine, 314 snellcode.com, 260 Speckyboy Design Magazine, 315 Use jQuery, 311-312 Visual jQuery, 310-311 Woorkup, 316-317 widgets accordion menus, adding, 213-214 datepickers, creating, 214 download files, building, 211 tabs, displaying, 214-215 themes, 205 using, 213-215 Widgets plug-in category, 158 width, animating, 111–113 width attribute, 15, 24 width style, 108, 110-111 Wikipedia Web page, 308-309 windows, pop-up, 238-241 Windows and Overlays plug-in category, 158 Woorkup Web site, 316-317 word spacing, animating, 117-119 WordPress locating jQuery-based plug-ins, 277-280 making jQuery work with, 273-276 overview, 273 using Colorbox plug-in with, 281

333

jQuery For Dummies

WordPress administration panel, 273, 275-277, 280-281 WordPress editor, 274 WordPress For Dummies (Lisa Sabin-Wilson), 273 WordPress Install Plugins page, 277 WordPress plug-in, 277 wordSpacing style, 111 wrap() function, 141 wrapAll() function, 141 wrapInner() function, 141

• X •

x icon, 261, 267, 271

• ¥ •

//Your code goes here comment, 44

Business/Accounting & Bookkeeping

Bookkeeping For Dummies 978-0-7645-9848-7

eBay Business All-in-One For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-470-38536-4

Job Interviews For Dummies, 3rd Edition 978-0-470-17748-8

Resumes For Dummies, 5th Edition 978-0-470-08037-5

Stock Investing For Dummies, 3rd Edition 978-0-470-40114-9

Successful Time Management For Dummies 978-0-470-29034-7

Computer Hardware

BlackBerry For Dummies, 3rd Edition 978-0-470-45762-7

Computers For Seniors For Dummies 978-0-470-24055-7

iPhone For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-470-42342-4 Laptops For Dummies, 3rd Edition 978-0-470-27759-1

Macs For Dummies, 10th Edition 978-0-470-27817-8

Cooking & Entertaining

Cooking Basics For Dummies, 3rd Edition 978-0-7645-7206-7

Wine For Dummies, 4th Edition 978-0-470-04579-4

Diet & Nutrition

Dieting For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-7645-4149-0

Nutrition For Dummies, 4th Edition 978-0-471-79868-2

Weight Training For Dummies, 3rd Edition 978-0-471-76845-6

Digital Photography

Digital Photography For Dummies, 6th Edition 978-0-470-25074-7

Photoshop Elements 7 For Dummies 978-0-470-39700-8

<u>Gardening</u>

Gardening Basics For Dummies 978-0-470-03749-2

Organic Gardening For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-470-43067-5

<u>Green/Sustainable</u>

Green Building & Remodeling For Dummies 978-0-470-17559-0

Green Cleaning For Dummies 978-0-470-39106-8

Green IT For Dummies 978-0-470-38688-0

<u>Health</u>

Diabetes For Dummies, 3rd Edition 978-0-470-27086-8

Food Allergies For Dummies 978-0-470-09584-3

Living Gluten-Free For Dummies 978-0-471-77383-2

<u>Hobbies/General</u>

Chess For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-7645-8404-6

Drawing For Dummies 978-0-7645-5476-6

Knitting For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-470-28747-7

Organizing For Dummies 978-0-7645-5300-4

SuDoku For Dummies 978-0-470-01892-7

Home Improvement

Energy Efficient Homes For Dummies 978-0-470-37602-7

Home Theater For Dummies, 3rd Edition 978-0-470-41189-6

Living the Country Lifestyle All-in-One For Dummies 978-0-470-43061-3

Solar Power Your Home For Dummies 978-0-470-17569-9



Available wherever books are sold. For more information or to order direct: U.S. customers visit www.dummies.com or call 1-877-762-2974. U.K. customers visit www.wiley.ca or call 1-800-567-4797.

<u>Internet</u>

Blogging For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-470-23017-6

eBay For Dummies, 6th Edition 978-0-470-49741-8

Facebook For Dummies 978-0-470-26273-3

Google Blogger For Dummies 978-0-470-40742-4

Web Marketing For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-470-37181-7

WordPress For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-470-40296-2

Language & Foreign Language French For Dummies

978-0-7645-5193-2

Italian Phrases For Dummies 978-0-7645-7203-6

Spanish For Dummies 978-0-7645-5194-9

Spanish For Dummies, Audio Set 978-0-470-09585-0

Macintosh

Mac OS X Snow Leopard For Dummies 978-0-470-43543-4

<u>Math & Science</u> Algebra I For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-470-55964-2

Biology For Dummies 978-0-7645-5326-4

Calculus For Dummies 978-0-7645-2498-1

Chemistry For Dummies 978-0-7645-5430-8

Microsoft Office

Excel 2007 For Dummies 978-0-470-03737-9

Office 2007 All-in-One Desk Reference For Dummies 978-0-471-78279-7

Music

Guitar For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-7645-9904-0

iPod & iTunes For Dummies, 6th Edition 978-0-470-39062-7

Piano Exercises For Dummies 978-0-470-38765-8

Parenting & Education

Parenting For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-7645-5418-6

Type 1 Diabetes For Dummies 978-0-470-17811-9

Pets

Cats For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-7645-5275-5

Dog Training For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-7645-8418-3

Puppies For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-470-03717-1

Religion & Inspiration

The Bible For Dummies 978-0-7645-5296-0

Catholicism For Dummies 978-0-7645-5391-2

Women in the Bible For Dummies 978-0-7645-8475-6

Self-Help & Relationship

Anger Management For Dummies 978-0-470-03715-7

Overcoming Anxiety For Dummies 978-0-7645-5447-6

<u>Sports</u>

Baseball For Dummies, 3rd Edition 978-0-7645-7537-2

Basketball For Dummies, 2nd Edition 978-0-7645-5248-9

Golf For Dummies, 3rd Edition 978-0-471-76871-5

Web Development

Web Design All-in-One For Dummies 978-0-470-41796-6

Windows Vista

Windows Vista For Dummies 978-0-471-75421-3



Available wherever books are sold. For more information or to order direct: U.S. customers visit www.dummies.com or call 1-877-762-2974. U.K. customers visit www.wiley.ca or call 1-800-567-4797.

DUIMMIES.GOM.

How-to? How Easy.



From hooking up a modem to cooking up a casserole, knitting a scarf to navigating an iPod, you can trust Dummies.com to show you how

to get things done the easy way. Visit us at Dummies.com

Dummies products make life easier!

DVDs • Music • Games • DIY • Consumer Electronics • Software • Crafts • Hobbies • Cookware • and more!

For more information, go to **Dummies.com**[®] and search the store by category.





There's a Dummies App for This and That

With more than 200 million books in print and over 1,600 unique titles, Dummies is a global leader in how-to information. Now you can get the same great Dummies information in an App. With topics such as Wine, Spanish, Digital Photography, Certification, and more, you'll have instant access to the topics you need to know in a format you can trust.

To get information on all our Dummies apps, visit the following: www.Dummies.com/go/mobile from your computer. www.Dummies.com/go/iphone/apps from your phone.



You don't need to be a Web programmer to jazz up your Web site with jQuery!

Want to keep your Web site cutting-edge but don't want to invest a lot of time? No worries! This book will help you add simple but compelling jQuery effects and cool prebuilt plug-ins to your site — no geekiness required. You can quickly use widgets and AJAX plug-ins, and gain the essential jQuery know-how to achieve great effects fast.

- Starting point find out what jQuery can do, use HTML elements, connect the jQuery library to a Web page, and understand the basics
- Make things happen learn to make page elements appear and disappear, slide, fade, and move
- Plug it in explore the array of available plug-ins, download and test them, and add widgets to your site
- Meet AJAX see how AJAX works with jQuery and how you can give your Web site visitors a richer experience
- Manage your content discover how to use jQuery with Drupal, Joomla!, and WordPress content management systems

Open the book and find:

- How to acquire and test jQuery
- Tips on understanding parentchild elements
- Different types of event handlers
- Cool things to do with page elements
- Effects you can achieve with animation
- Ways to make forms easier and more appealing to use
- How to add a calendar to a page
- Ten terrific plug-ins you'll want

Go to Dummies.com[®]

for videos, step-by-step examples, how-to articles, or to shop!

> For Dummies® A Branded Imprint of WILEY

\$29.99 US / \$35.99 CN / £21.99 UK ISBN 978-0-470-58445-3 5.2.9.9

Visit the companion Web site at www.dummies.com/go/ jqueryfd for all the code examples used in this book

Lynn Beighley is a Web designer, a Web developer, and the author of several books and training courses. She creates Web applications of every imaginable type using Drupal, jQuery, and other technologies.